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Rafting is an adventurous outdoor sport which comprises of a group of 
people mounting an inflatable raft to navigate across rough white waters. It 
is an exemplary game that is also conducted to practice, improve and revive 
the spirit of teamwork among individuals on both professional and personal 
levels. This activity has become a popular leisure sport since the mid-1970s.

While playing this sport, the team on the boat paddles in sync to pass 
through very rough water conditions and aims to reach their destination in 
presence of the guide who navigates the rafting route. Dealing with risk and 
the need for teamwork is always a part of the rafting experience. Keeping in 
mind the rough waters and the risks involved, meticulous planning and 
experiential learning are mandatory requirements. Being an adventurous 
sport, rafting has its full share of innovative ideas and out-of-the-box 
thinking. 

Taking inspiration from this adrenaline fueled team sport, Teamwork at the 
Central Depository Company is driven by passion and ambition. This spirit helps 
us to excel in all circumstances, under any given contingency or uncertainty, while 
being in sync with strategically devised objectives by our management, a 
thoroughly professional and experienced team that navigates us towards 
achieving our targets. Keenly observing and effectively guiding, the Board of 
Directors provide apt governance and oversight, constantly ensuring that the path 
and direction of the game are rightly set.   

CDC has continued to progress, even in times of adversity, through propelling 
teamwork.          

TEAMWORK
PROPELLING 





Rafting boat is inflatable in nature. Filled with air, it floats with the river flow 
while gushing through different degrees of rough white waters and bustling 
water routes, in order to provide thrill and excitement to the raft 
passengers. It is designed to sail through, moving forward both in smooth 
and extreme waters due to its buoyancy.
  
In the last 23 years of its existence, CDC’s hallmark has been its utmost resiliency. 
Through continuous teamwork and collaboration, the Company has not only 
survived the tests of time but also secured more stability and feats in its path to 
success. Each team with its remarkable acumen, perseverance and passion under 
the guidance of its team lead collaborates with the rest to sail through challenging 
times. Be it economic downtimes, stock market volatility or business variability, the 
people at CDC work their way through the situation. 

Some things benefit from shocks; they thrive and grow when exposed to volatility, 
risk, and uncertainty. The resilient resists shocks and stays the same; the 
antifragile gets better. Likewise, CDC has become stronger at its core, better with 
its understanding and superior in its delivery with every challenge. 

Sailing through
Challenging Times

RAFTING
BOAT





PADDLE
In order for the rafting boat to move ahead and maintain balance 
during its course in varying degrees of rough water, a set of carbon 
paddles are given to each rafter to manually propel the boat and 
provide the desired thrust. On each side, there are 4 to 5 paddlers 
according to the size of the boat, moving their paddles coherently, 
steering the vessel to keep sailing forward, while maintaining the 
balance.

The various teams at CDC consistently perform in alliance through 
teamwork. This yields into a partnership that has a positive impact on the 
company’s day to day functions. Each team is focused on its core tasks and 
works strategically, meeting deadlines and generating results. While the 
business lines are assigned with providing the desired thrust to the revenues, 
the internal functions provide the required balance and stability for 
continued progress. The harmonized efforts between the various teams in 
line with the needs of regulator, investors and market participants has 
helped us in winning the trust of all stakeholders. 

Performing
in Coherence





LIFE
JACKET

Life jacket is a mandatory safeguard for rafting. It is crucial in 
helping a rafter to keep his/her head up above the water when 
being thrown from the boat into rough waters. While saving a 
rafter from drowning, it also reduces the impact of water pressure. 
It is important to select a jacket that fits best since it keeps the 
upper body afloat.

The proficient teams at CDC are always geared up to combat countless 
challenges. From solving complex market problems to facing volatile 
market conditions and bracing for any unexpected disaster, the 
Company has withstood multiple tests of time. 

To ensure readiness of responding to a disaster situation, each team 
works in unison to follow a comprehensive Business Continuity 
Management Program (BCP), which prepares the organization to 
respond and recover with minimal impact of any untoward incident. 
Champion users from each department collaborate together and lead 
their respective teams towards recovery of critical business processes & 
assets while ensuring the welfare of staff. This preparedness has been 
acknowledged with a global accreditation of ISO/IEC 22301:2012, 
making CDC the first Pakistani company to achieve this international 
certification.

Preparing
for the WorsT





Helmet
Rafting is an extreme sport and can cause serious injury if proper 
safety measures are not observed. Helmets are exclusively designed 
to prevent any head injury during rafting. The size of the headgear 
must be responsibly picked so that it fits perfectly and ensures 
complete safety. 

Being the most critical infrastructure institution in the Pakistan Capital 
Market, each team at CDC fully understands the risks that accompany 
technology based businesses. The Company has a collective approach 
towards the effective implementation of a Risk Management system with 
various levels of security mechanisms to protect its information assets 
and technology infrastructure from potential risks. Each department and 
function regularly examines work procedures and practices to help 
secure its systems, processes and assets, preventing any untoward 
situation that may cause material loss and interruption of business. 

This method is simultaneously implemented whenever any action is 
taken regarding market participants, whether a new product or service is 
launched, or an infrastructure is upgraded or a regulation is introduced, 
cautiously making the choices in their best interest and prudently taking 
all risks in consideration. 

Taking Actions
Responsibly





PADDLERS
Paddlers are the real performers of rafting. Equipped with their 
individual skills, strength and passion, the paddlers engage in this sport 
with utmost agility and determination, rafting through long routes of 
rough waters as one team. The paddle strokes in unison, the balancing 
acts and the focus on direction are only possible when there is a 
relentless passion to successfully reach the desired destination. 
Moreover, a key factor of a successful rafting game is finding the best 
guide and holding onto him. The best advice to paddlers though is to 
listen to their guide, paddle hard, and trust what the guide says.  

At CDC, each individual’s respective skills contribute towards achieving the 
overall departmental goals and objectives. While bringing out their distinctive 
expertise and wisdom, every staff member stands as a part of a team with an 
assigned purpose. Each team is coached and led by team leaders who are 
experts in their domain. The team leaders are a group of qualified and 
seasoned professionals who know how to collectively work their way through 
complex problems and deliver results. Through persistent teamwork, the 
Company has built a reputation to always deliver on its commitment. 

BRINGING THE
Passion
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Vision
To be a world-class institution providing 
innovative and reliable services primarily 
to the capital and financial markets,
stimulating business growth and maximizing 
benefits for all stakeholders.



Mission
Provide secure, reliable and innovative solutions that 

systematically reduce risk, enable transparency and bring 
efficiencies to Capital & Financial markets.

To be the centre of excellence by continuously employing 
state of the art technology and best talent in the country 

while maintaining good corporate governance.

Ensure to provide employees with an environment of 
professional & personal growth and; to society, we firmly 

believe in giving back to the community.





Core Values
Our corporate values represent the core priorities in the organization’s 
culture. Adherence to these values makes it possible for us to continue
on the road to sustainable development. 

Dispensing with our corporate responsibility, we are able to honour our
commitments to clients, partners & shareholders and; to our most
valuable resource, our employees.

RELIABILITY
• Reliable & trustworthy for all our stakeholders.
• Ensure integrity and security of information.

INTEGRITY
• Fair & honest in all our dealings.
• Take responsibility for our actions.
• Strive to perform to the best of our abilities.

TRANSPARENCY
• 

applied equally to all.
Policies & procedures are clearly defined, well communicated and

• Make adequate disclosure of company information.
• Strong adherences to the best practices of Corporate Governance.

Teamwork
• Build strong relationships within and across functions.
• Share ideas / best practices and value diversity 
• Communicate candidly and on an ongoing basis within team.
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Mr. Moin M. Fudda has over 40 years of rich and unique blend of 
professional experience which encompasses working for the 
corporate sector and performing diplomatic duties. He holds an MBA 
(Insurance & Risk Management) from St. Jones University, New York.

In his former role as Managing Director of Karachi Stock Exchange 
(now Pakistan Stock Exchange), he was elected as Chairman of the 
Corporate Governance Task Force of Federation of European and 
Asian Stock Exchanges (FEAS). He has helped in creation of Pakistan 
Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG). He is a Certified 
Corporate Governance Trainer by International Finance Corporation 
(IFC) since 2010 and is a Member of Faculty and has also served on the 
Board of PICG. He has contributed significantly towards development 
of Corporate Governance Rules for Public sector Enterprises and 
Corporate Governance Guide for Family Owned Businesses.

He is an Independent Director and Chairman of the Board of 
Directors of CDC. He also serves as an Independent Director and 
Chairman of the Audit Committees on the Board of Pak Suzuki Motor 
Company and Al Meezan Investment Management. He is also an 
Independent Director on the Board of Merit Packaging Limited as well 
as a Country Representative for SCOR – A Global Tier 1 Reinsurer. 
He is a Member of the Insurance Committee of the Policy Board of 
Securities & Exchange Commission of Pakistan and a Member of 
Committee of Insurance Sector Reform of the Ministry of Commerce. 
He is also a Member, Board of Karachi Council on Foreign Relations 
and a Member, Executive Committee of English Speaking Union of 
Pakistan. Moreover, since 2003, he continues to serve as a 
Chairman/Member of Alternate Dispute Resolution Committees 
(ADRC) of the Federal Board of Revenue.

Prior to joining KSE, he was Country Chief of New Zealand Insurance 
and Commercial Union (CU now AVIVA) and founder MD of CU Life 
(now Jubilee Life). Since 1990, he has been serving as the Honorary 
Consul General of New Zealand for Pakistan and being its sole 
representative, his responsibilities include, consular affairs, trade, 
education & facilitations of visas. Earlier he held positions such as 
Country Director, Center for International Private Enterprise, an 
affiliate of US Chamber, Chairman, Islamabad Stock Exchange, 
Director and Chairman of the Regulatory Affairs Committee of the 
Pakistan Stock Exchange, Presidents of Overseas Investors Chamber 
of Commerce & Industry and Management Association of Pakistan. He 
has also served on the Boards of Investment & Privatization 
Commission, Pakistan Institute of Management and Federation of 
Pakistan Chamber of Commerce & Industry and National Center for 
Dispute Resolution.

In 2006, Mr. Fudda was conferred the coveted Sitara-e-Imtiaz (S.I.) by 
the President of Pakistan. In 2002, he was recognized as the Honorary 
Officer of the New Zealand Order of Merit (ONZM) and in 1990, NZ 
Commemoration Medal was conferred by the Queen of New 
Zealand.
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Moin
M. Fudda
Chairman &
Independent Director

Mr. Akber has more than 20 years of diversified senior management 
experience in the fields of finance and operations. He has served in 
various renowned conglomerates in Pakistan as Head of Finance and 
Company Secretary. He has also served as the Chief Financial Officer 
and Chief Operating Officer at the National Clearing Company of 
Pakistan Limited.

Mr. Badiuddin Akber was previously serving as the Chief Compliance 
and Risk Officer at CDC since June 2015 before being elevated to the 
position of Chief Executive Officer on January 01, 2019. He was also 
the nominated Chairman of the Oversight Committee formed by the 
Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan under Joint 
Inspection Regulations, 2015.

Mr. Akber has demonstrated extensive expertise in the spheres of 
Financial Management, Clearing & Settlement, Risk Management, 
Operations, Product Development and Project Management in the 
Pakistan Capital Market. As Chief Operating Officer at NCCPL, he 
played an instrumental role in the implementation of various 
significant products, services and reform measures which include 
Revamping of Capital Gain Tax Regime, Unique Identification Number 
(UIN), Institutions’ Risk Management System, Straight Through 
Processing of Market Settlements and UIN Information System (UIS) 
and in the introduction of Leverage Products such as Margin Trading, 
Margin Financing and Securities Lending & Borrowing.

After completing his Bachelor’s Degree in Commerce from the 
University of Karachi, Mr. Akber attained various professional degrees 
in accounts and finance from prestigious national and international 
institutions. In addition to being a Fellow Member of the Institute of 
Cost & Management Accountants of Pakistan (FCMA), he also holds 
ACMA-CGMA (Chartered Global Management Accountants) 
qualification from the Chartered Institute of Management 
Accountants (CIMA – UK) and qualification of Chartered Professional 
Accountant (CPA, CMA – Ontario, Canada).

He has attended the Annual International Institute for Securities 
Market Growth and Development by the US Securities & Exchange 
Commission and various seminars and conferences in UK, India, 
Europe and Far-East countries on risk management, clearing & 
settlement and surveillance of capital market operations.

Badiuddin
Akber
Chief Executive Officer
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Dr. Aamir Matin has over 35 years of work experience in the IT 
industry both in Pakistan as well as abroad. He is currently the Head 
of Technology for HBL, prior to which he was the Country Manager 
for Cisco Systems Inc. in Pakistan for a number of years. Dr. Matin has 
also worked at senior levels with the Government serving as the MD 
of the Pakistan Software Export Board as well as Advisor on IT to the 
Federal Minister for IT and Telecommunications, Government of 
Pakistan during 2002-2006. His early career was with the United 
Nations Development Program, working with countries in the Asia 
Pacific region on the use of Information Technology to enhance 
productivity in their public sectors. 

Dr. Matin has a BS in Electronic Engineering, an MS in Computer 
Engineering, and a PhD in Information Technology. He has taught 
graduate level courses at some of the leading universities of the 
country. 

AAmir
Matin
Director

Mr. Abid Ali Habib is a shareholder director on the Board of Pakistan 
Stock Exchange Limited. He is the Chairman of the Trading and 
Commercial Affairs Committee of PSX. He is also a member of the 
Human Resources and Remuneration, Listing & Voluntary Delisting, 
Audit and Market Development & New Products Committees of PSX 
board. As a member of the Listing Committee, he plays an 
instrumental role in approving the listing applications and 
prospectuses of various reputed companies.

He has previously served as the Chairman and Chief Executive of Abid 
Ali Habib Securities (Private) Limited and as the Director of Aba Ali 
Habib Securities (Private) Limited. 

He has served on the board of the stock exchange for various terms 
between the years 1995 and 2015. During these terms, he has been a 
part of various Committees constituted by the Board, as Chairman or 
member. He played the central role in conceptualization, planning and 
design of internet-based order routing system and also supervised, 
implemented and tested Karachi Automated Trading System. 

As a member of Demutualization Committee of KSE during the years 
2005, 2006 and 2010, Mr. Habib was the key figure in preparation of 
Preliminary Report on proposed demutualization of KSE, identifying 
various issues and recommendations thereon, in line with existing 
models and international practices. Ultimately, the objectives of 
corporatization and demutualization were achieved in 2012. He was 
also actively involved in the listing process of PSX and played a key 
role in the roadshows conducted by the Consultant to the Issue for 
sale of shares of PSX through book building. 

Mr. Habib held the position of Chairman, Companies 
Affairs/Corporate Governance Committee of KSE for the years 2010 
and 2011. During this term, a number of tasks were initiated and 
successfully completed, having positive impact on overall regulatory 
environment of the Exchange. Some of the major achievements 
included (i) various amendments in Listing Regulations; (ii) action 
against delinquent/non-performing companies in violation of Listing 
Regulations; (iii) revision of annual listing fee; (iv) mechanism for 
verification of rumor mongering in the market pertaining to listed 
companies/securities; (v) implementation of revised Code of 
Corporate Governance; (vi) measures for disclosure of information to 
market participants/investors pertaining to sale/purchase of securities 
by any director, CEO or executive or their spouses; and (vii) revision 
of criteria for selection of Top Companies.

Abid Ali
Habib
Director



24

Mr. Ahmed Chinoy is the Managing Partner of Arch Sons Group of 
Companies and is engaged in various businesses including security 
investments, textiles, real estate and poultry farming.

He is an elected Director on the Board of Pakistan Stock Exchange 
Limited (PSX) and also a member of Audit Committee, Human 
Resources & Remuneration Committee and Listing & Voluntary 
De-Listing Committee of PSX. He is nominated by PSX as a Director 
on the Board of Directors of Pakistan Mercantile Exchange Limited 
and National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited. 

He has served the society in a variety of capacities in the areas of 
business, education, health and crime prevention. He has successfully 
served as the Chief of Citizen Police Liaison Committee, Sindh (a 
citizens’ body for prevention of crimes) from the year 2010 to 2015. 
He has also been actively serving on the Boards of various medical and 
educational institutions and as the President of All Pakistan Memon 
Federation. Previously, he has served on the Managing Committee of 
Federation of Pakistan Chamber of Commerce & Industry (FPCCI) 
and as Chairman of Pakistan Cloth Merchants’ Association (the apex 
body of textile exporters). For his services to the people of Pakistan, 
he has been awarded the prestigious national awards of Hilal-e-Imtiaz 
and Sitara-e-Imtiaz.

Mr. Chinoy is qualified from Institute of Cost & Management 
Accountants of Pakistan (ICMAP) and holds a graduate degree in 
Commerce from University of Karachi. He is also a certified director 
from Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance. 

Ahmed
Chinoy
Director

Mr. Aqeel Ahmed Nasir has rich professional experience spread over 
29 years in diversified fields of Law, Corporate and Regulatory Affairs. 
He is currently serving as the Company Secretary & Chief Legal 
Counsel of United Bank Limited (UBL). At UBL, he oversees and 
supervises legal, corporate and regulatory matters, both for local as 
well as for overseas operations and subsidiaries/associates of UBL. 
Being part of the senior management of UBL, Mr. Nasir is a member 
of various Management Committees. He also spearheaded the legal 
team for the issuance of GDRs of UBL and their enlisting on the 
London Stock Exchange.

Before joining UBL in 2006, he has served various public and private 
sector reputed and large companies/corporations including Sui 
Southern Gas Company Limited (SSGC) where he served as 
Company Secretary and General Manager (Legal).  

Mr. Nasir is a qualified Solicitor of Senior Courts of England & Wales 
and has a practicing certificate under Solicitor Act 1974, issued by 
Solicitor’s Regulation Authority (SRA). He also has a Master of Laws 
(LL.M.) degree from the University of London, England. 

He serves on the Board of Directors of Kot Addu Power Co. Limited 
(KAPCO), Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG), and 
United Executor and Trustee Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of 
UBL). Mr. Nasir is a Certified Director from Pakistan Institute of 
Corporate Governance and was part of the Task Force, constituted 
under the ambit of PICG, to review the code of Corporate 
Governance-2017. 

Aqeel
Ahmed Nasir
Independent Director
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Mr. Muhammad Ashraf Bawany is nominated by Pakistan Stock 
Exchange Limited (PSX) on the Board of Directors of CDC where he 
is also serving as a member of Audit and I.T. Steering Committees. He 
is also a director and chairman of CDC Share Registrar Services (SRS).  
He is also nominated by the CDC Board on the Board of Directors of  
ITMinds Limited – a wholly owned subsidiary of CDC. 

Besides CDC, he is serving as a Director on the Boards of Pakistan 
Stock Exchange Limited, National Clearing Company of Pakistan 
Limited, Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance, VIS Credit 
Rating Company Limited and German Pakistan Chamber of 
Commerce and Industry.

Currently, Mr. Muhammad Ashraf Bawany is President of Ghani 
Global Group of Companies which represents Ghani Gases Limited, 
Ghani Global Glass Limited and Ghani Chemical Industries Limited. 

Mr. Bawany served as Chief Executive and Managing Director of Linde 
Pakistan Limited – a Member of Linde AG, Germany from August 
2013 to January 2018 and later served as Advisor to Chairman & 
Board of Directors till March 2018. He served Linde Pakistan Limited 
for more than 30 years in various leadership roles including CFO & 
Company Secretary and was responsible for successfully executing 
several local and regional initiatives, strategies and projects.

Mr. Bawany is Trustee – Help International Welfare Trust (HIWT) 
and Member Supreme Council, Jetpur Memon Association. Mr. 
Bawany is also a Certified Director from the Pakistan Institute of 
Corporate Governance (PICG), and Chairman of the Board Audit 
Committee of PICG. In addition, he is a Former Chairman of Pakistan 
German Business Forum (PGBF), Chairman Board Audit Committee 
of NCCPL, Vice President of Bin Qasim Association of Trade & 
Industry (BQATI), Vice-President Jetpur Memon Association (JMA) 
and Chairman, Strategic Advisory Board (SAB) of Memon Professional 
Forum.

He takes keen interest in the promotion of education, trade and 
industry and strongly advocates these causes through various 
professional, corporate and trade platforms and also supports various 
social and welfare activities. In this regard, he is associated with the 
Welfare Committees of Tabba Heart Institute (THI) and Tabba 
Kidney Institute under Aziz Tabba Foundation (ATF). He is the former 
President of Institute of Cost and Management Accountants of 
Pakistan (ICMAP) and Pakistan Institute of Public Finance Accountants 
(PIPFA) and member Education Board All Pakistan Memon 
Federation. 

Mr. Bawany is a fellow member of ICMAP and ICSP. He is also a Law 
graduate and has done various advanced management courses from 
local and foreign institutions.

Muhammad
Ashraf
Bawany
Director

Mr. Muhammad Sibghatullah Khalid has over two decades of 
diversified experience and has worked on several assignments for 
Microfinance institutions and Banks, Commercial Banks, 
manufacturing concerns; administrative and operational assignments 
both in Pakistan and abroad. 

Mr. Khalid has worked with organizations including Khushhali Bank; 
Mobilink; FINCA Afghanistan; First Microfinance Bank Afghanistan; 
and the Attieh Steel KSA. During his various assignments, he has had 
extensive exposure to Financial Controls and Regulatory Compliance, 
Working Capital Management; ERP development and implementation, 
cross border project financing facilities including export credit 
agencies and multilateral lending agencies financing facilities, due 
diligence methodologies, portfolio management, financial analysis and 
Risk Management practices.

Currently he is the Chief Executive Officer/ Managing Director of LSE 
Financial Services Limited (formerly Lahore Stock Exchange Limited). 
He also serves on the Board of Directors of National Clearing 
Company of Pakistan Limited.

Mr. Khalid is a Fellow member of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan. He has also worked with Deloitte, Grant 
Thornton and E&Y Chartered Accountants during his career in 
different roles.

Muhammad
Sibghatullah
Khalid
Director
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Mr. Tariq Rafi is the Chairman of Siddiqsons Group and is a recipient 
of the coveted Civil Award Sitara-e-Imtiaz. He was awarded the 
prestigious Best Businessman award for the year 1999 and best 
Export Trophies between years 1980 to 2005. He has been awarded 
the Privilege Card by the Prime Minister of Islamic Republic of 
Pakistan for being one of the top tax payers.

He is also the Honorary Consul General of Republic of Serbia. He also 
serves on the Board of Directors of MCB Bank Limited, Siddiqsons 
Limited, Siddiqsons Tin Plate Limited, and Triple Tree (Pvt.) Limited 
(Ocean Tower).

Muhammad
Tariq Rafi
Director

Mr. Shahnawaz Mahmood is currently the Deputy Managing Director 
of the Pak China Investment Company Limited. As an executive 
director, he is involved in devising the strategic direction for 
company’s business objectives as well as organizational management. 
He has been instrumental in developing new initiatives such as 
advisory, private equity and infrastructure financing. He has also 
played a vital role in attracting Chinese investments in initiatives such 
as acquisition of Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited (PSX). 

Mr. Mahmood has previously been a part of the Public Private 
Partnership (PPP) initiative for infrastructure development by the 
Government of Pakistan. In his role as the Head of Projects at the 
Infrastructure Project Development Facility (IPDF), Ministry of 
Finance, he had been responsible for developing and facilitating 
national PPP policy, sector initiatives and transactions portfolio for 
private sector investment. He has done extensive groundwork on 
corporate governance in Pakistan and has played an important role in 
implementing United Nations Development Program (UNDP) project 
on corporate governance with the Securities and Exchange 
Commission of Pakistan (SECP). He is also the recipient of Canadian 
International Development Agency (CIDA)’s President Award of 
Excellence awarded by the Canadian government in recognition of his 
work as Development Economist on Debt Swap. He started his 
career with PTCL working as Financial Analyst in the Project Finance 
department.

Besides being a director on CDC board, Mr. Mahmood is also serving 
as Deputy President of the Disciplinary Panel and member of Risk and 
Regulatory Affairs Committee and IT Steering Committee. In addition, 
he is serving as a Director on the Board of PSX and has also been 
nominated by PSX as Director on the Boards of National Clearing 
Company of Pakistan Limited (NCCPL) and Pakistan Mercantile 
Exchange Limited (PMEX).

Mr. Mahmood is a Chartered Banker from Chartered Banker 
Institute, UK and holds MBA, MSc Finance and Economics degrees 
from UK. He has also attended investment and risk management 
training courses at Harvard Business School and INSEAD. He has also 
attended Financial Derivatives course by Chartered Institute of 
Securities and Investment (CISI) UK.

Shahnawaz
Mahmood
Director
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Syed Majid Ali is a fellow member of the Institute of Chartered 
Accountants of Pakistan, presently working as Chief Financial Officer 
at Faysal Bank Limited. Prior to this position, he has served as Chief 
Financial Officer at Saudi Pak Commercial Bank Limited (now Silk 
Bank Limited) and Emirates Bank International PJSC (Pakistan 
operations). He has also served as a Partner in KPMG Taseer Hadi & 
Co, Chartered Accountants.

Mr. Ali has rich experience in banking mergers and acquisitions 
(M&A). He was the member of the core team responsible for the sale 
of Emirates Bank International PJSC (Pakistan Operations) and Saudi 
Pak Commercial Bank Limited. He was also actively involved in the 
acquisition of RBS Pakistan operations by the Faysal Bank Limited and 
its subsequent integration. In addition to Accounting & Finance, he has 
gained rich experience in the areas of Strategy, Human Resources and 
Technology. He has supervised Strategy, Technology and 
Administration functions at Faysal Bank Limited.

He is a member of the Accounting and Taxation Committees of the 
Pakistan Banks’ Association (PBA), Overseas Investors’ Chamber of 
Commerce and Industry (OICCI), and Pakistan Business Council. He 
is also a member of the Income Tax Bar Association, Karachi.

Syed 
Majid Ali
Independent Director

Syed Masoud Ali Naqvi is a senior accountant. He has served as an 
Advisor to the Board of KPMG Taseer Hadi & Co. until 31 December 
2017 and was a former Senior Partner of the same firm for 28 years.

Mr. Naqvi is currently serving as a member of Tax Reforms 
Implementation Committee of FBR and the Academic Council of the 
Commecs Institute of Business & Emerging Sciences. 

Earlier, he has also served as the President of the Institute of 
Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (ICAP) for the years 1994-1996, 
and has been a member of its Council, Committee on Corporate 
Governance, and Sub-Committee for revision of Code of Corporate 
Governance 2002. He has also served on Pakistan Institute of 
Corporate Governance – Committee for revision of the Code of 
Corporate Governance in 2012 and has delivered several keynote 
addresses on the Code of Corporate Governance. 

For two consecutive terms from 2001-2003, Mr. Naqvi was the 
President of Management Association of Pakistan and has also served 
as the Chairman of the Tax Reforms Commission of Pakistan formed 
in September 2014. Moreover, he served as a Director on the Board 
of Karachi Stock Exchange for the year 1999-2000, President of the 
Pakistan American Cultural Centre (PACC) in 1996, President of the 
Rotary Club Karachi – Downtown from 1984-85 and District 
Secretary for Rotary District 327 (Pakistan) from 1986-87. He has 
also served on the Board of Governors of National Centre for 
Dispute Resolution.

In honorary capacity, he also serves various NGOs and welfare 
organizations, community projects and trusts such as Baitul Sukoon 
and Talent Inducement & Placement Society.

Mr. Naqvi is a Fellow of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of 
Pakistan.

Syed 
Masoud 
Ali Naqvi
Independent Director
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operations &
Customer Support
Services

The core objective behind the foundation of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited was to establish Central 
Depository System (CDS), an electronic book-entry system for safekeeping of securities. On a day to day basis, CDS is 
managed by Operations and Customer Support Services Department (OCSS) at CDC.

OCSS comprises of two important functions i.e. Depository Operations which is the core business of CDC and 
Customer Support Services which is the essence of a service based organization. The Depository Operations Section 
comprises of multiple teams that manage and look after different areas of the depository function. 

Keeping in mind that CDC has always been a ‘Customer Focused’ organization, the Customer Support Services Section 
is responsible for multiple activities including: 

• Floor Management at CDC House through dedicated team to provide efficient service to the walk-in customers / 
clients.

• State-of-the-art Call Center along with professional team for active support of CDS Elements, eServices portal 
clients, Investor Account Services and Share Registrar Services.  

• Providing priority support at Special Care Counters for senior citizens and people with special needs. 
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Information
technology

CDC recognizes that IT plays a mission critical role in the efficient and quality delivery of services to its various 
stakeholders. To achieve CDC’s business objectives, the IT department continues to ensure strategic and balanced use 
of technology resources throughout the organization. The Information Technology Department is comprised of following 
major units: 

APPLICATION DEVELOPMENT 
The Software Development Team provides critical technology solutions to internal users and external customers to 
perform their business operations and to enhance their operational controls and productivity. Activities range from the 
simple tasks of providing data inquiries, all the way through business requirements’ capturing, developing, testing and 
maintaining major applications. The project management methodology for any project is adopted keeping in 
consideration project specific details, with emphasis on Agile methodologies and practices. This Team works specifically 
on multiple systems and applications developed in-house including CDS, FMS, RTA, BOAS, CISSII, CDC Access, etc. The 
Team comprises of Program Managers, Team Leads, Software Engineers, System Analysts and Quality Assurance 
Engineers.

IT OPERATIONS
The IT Operations Team is responsible for the administration, security and data integrity of centralized servers and 
storage devices, databases and application servers, software configuration management and networks housed across 
multiple data centers. One of the major roles of this Team is to provide hardware, software and consulting services for 
all IT operations on existing technologies and provides strategic direction for the acquisition and use of new 
technologies. 

IT Department plays a leading role in supporting Business Continuity Planning and Information Security Management 
of the organization.



Recognizing the potential of the Mutual Fund industry, CDC launched Trustee & Custodial (T&C) Services in 2002. 
Currently, CDC is providing trusteeship services to the majority of open-end schemes in the market.

The prime responsibility of CDC as the Trustee is to take into its custody all the assets of the Collective Investment 
Scheme/ Voluntary Pension Funds and to look after the interests of the investors. The main operations involve 
safekeeping of assets, settlement of cash and securities transactions made by fund managers, receiving investments & 
making payments to the investors and to ensure compliance of constitutional documents and relevant laws.

Through appropriate use of technology by developing an in-house, state-of-the-art software “Fund Management System, 
CDC has become the largest and most preferred T&C service provider in the private sector with 96% market share 
(with respect to total net assets), serving Mutual Funds, Voluntary Pension Funds and Discretionary Portfolio Customers 
of various categories. We are also trustee of Real Estate Investment Trust.

TRUSTEE &
CUSTODIAL SERVICES
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Legal, finance &
company secretariat

Legal, Finance & Company Secretariat (LF&CS) plays a central role in ensuring adherence to the Company’s 
governance structure in conformity with best practices. In order to effectively manage the given mandate, the 
department has three sections with adequately qualified and experienced staff. 

The Legal section liaisons with competent authorities, effectively manages litigations and centralized review of contracts 
to ensure that the Company’s objectives remain protected.

The Finance function includes planning, organizing, auditing, accounting for and controlling the Company's finances. The 
finance team is divided into two units that are general finance and business finance. 

The Company Secretariat liaisons with the Board of Directors & its committees to help organize board meetings and 
proactively coordinates in the implementation of board decisions. This team oversees timely implementation and 
compliance of changes and developments in corporate laws, regulations and the code of corporate governance within 
the Company. 
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COMPLIANCE

CDC is a Self-Regulatory Organization (SRO) working in strict compliance with statutory and regulatory frameworks.

CDC has a dedicated Compliance Department that functions under the supervision of Chief Compliance Officer, 
responsible for overseeing and monitoring compliance and related matters. The major functions of Compliance 
Department apart from ensuring compliance with statutory obligations, include departmental compliance audits, 
internal advisories, liaison with SECP & other SROs, formulation of CDC Regulations to govern CDS Elements, inspection 
of records of CDS Elements, market reforms & investor protection measures. 

Grievances and complaints of clients are also handled by the Compliance Department in light of applicable legal 
framework. In case of any non-compliances or contravention of regulatory provisions, disciplinary actions are also taken 
by Chief Compliance Officer.
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Internal Audit
& risk

CDC fully recognizes the significance of an effective, unbiased and objective Internal Audit and Risk function. The 
function aims to enhance and protect organizational value by providing risk-based objective assurance, consultancy 
services, advice and insight within the principles set out in the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations 2017 and the Charter defined by the Audit Committee of the Board.  

CDC puts strong emphasis on the effective functioning of financial and operational controls and uses various levels of 
security measures to protect its technological infrastructure and information assets from potential vulnerabilities and 
risk hazards. Performing evaluation and examination of adequacy and effectiveness of governance, risk management 
and internal controls serves as the core responsibility of Internal Audit and Risk function which has qualified, skilled and 
experienced resources striving continuously to strengthen the control environment of CDC. 

CDC is the only organization in Pakistan Capital Market that is voluntarily implementing the Enterprise Risk 
Management – Integrated Framework on the guidelines provided by The Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the 
Treadway Commission (COSO). This framework requires that risks including business, operational, regulatory and 
financial matters associated with the objectives of the Company should be properly identified, assessed, prioritized, 
managed and monitored through appropriate reporting mechanism. 
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36

PRODUCT DEVELOPMENT
AND MARKETING 

The PDM department is bifurcated in two sections, i.e., Product Development and Marketing. 

CDC continuously endeavors to expand the range of services and products it offers to the financial and capital markets 
of the country. Product Development serves as a focal point for the innovation of new products and services within the 
Company. It is credited for the conceptualization of a number of development projects that are equally beneficial for 
CDC, capital market and other industry sectors. It is accredited for playing an important role in increasing efficiency and 
ease of doing business for market players. PD is also the main catalyst in CDC’s drive for digitalization of important 
market processes. 

The Marketing function is responsible for Corporate Communications which includes developing publications and 
Product and Service Collaterals, managing all mediums of external communications, Public Relations and Investor 
Awareness campaigns in collaboration with other stakeholders. It organizes company events and also manages 
international relations for CDC which is a member of a number of regional and international associations, representing 
Pakistan and Asia Pacific region. Due to consistent efforts, CDC is an Executive Committee member of the Asia Pacific 
Central Securities Depository Group (ACG) and has served as its Chair and Secretariat in the past. 



Enterprise Security ensures safety and security of clients’ digital assets that are critical responsibility of CDC. Using 
technology-enabled insights with business context, it manages cyber risks, business continuity and information security 
governance through following technologies:

- Security Operations Centre (SIEM) for security and availability of IT infrastructure;

- Advance threat detection with global Threat Intelligence for zero-day defence;

- Endpoint DLP for safeguarding intellectual property and protecting sensitive data;

- Privilege identity & access management for mitigating IT administrator insider risk;

CDC’s entire operations and its subsidiaries are certified against ISO 27001 Information Security standard and ISO 
22301 Business Continuity standard. Comprehensive security policy procedures are developed in light of risk and 
business impact analysis. Regular staff awareness and BCP drills are conducted ensuring readiness to handle disaster 
scenarios. Enterprise Security works in unison with all business lines, internal functions and subsidiaries. 

Enterprise
Security
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CDC has always kept investor protection as its foremost priority in the past two decades of its existence. The Company 
launched Investor Account Services (IAS) in the larger interest of investors who wanted a more independent custodian 
for safekeeping of securities. This is a highly unique service, regarded for its safe custody and direct access to the 
portfolio. CDC is among the only two depositories in the world offering this service. 

IAS enables individual and corporate investors to open and maintain accounts directly with CDC in Central Depository 
System for the electronic custody of securities. Investor Accounts are operated only on written instructions of investors. 

As part of the digitalization drive by CDC, most of the processes related to IAS are available online round the clock 
through Multiple Value Added services including Online Account Opening Form, Subscription of Unpaid Rights, Viewing 
of Account & Cash Balance, Account & Cash Activities, Portfolio Transfer and Online Payment of IAS dues. The eServices 
portfolio includes Interactive Voice Response (IVR), dedicated web portal, SMS, eStatement and eAlerts for real time 
account information. Online access of Centralized Cash Dividend Register, Direct Settlement Services (DSS) and Online 
Transactions are a part of CDC’s recent eDrive to provide capital market related services electronically. 

INVESTOR ACCOUNT
SERVICES
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Human Resource

Human Resource is the most valuable asset of the Company and the role of HR Department is to help CDC attract, 
retain, develop and manage its human resource. 

The ’Employee Development Program’ which encompasses potential assessment, succession plan and skill development 
is an initiative that provides CDC an edge in the employment market. The affiliation with professional bodies like ICAP, 
ICMA, CIMA, ICAEW, ACCA and CFA Institute provides tremendous professional growth opportunities to CDC’s staff. 

To optimize the benefits, employees are engaged in trainings, various surveys, projects & audits to improve existing 
practices and align them with the market as well as statutory requirements. The HR Department always acts as a 
bridge between employees and management. 



Administration

The Administration Department at CDC is broadly divided into General Administration, Technical Support and Physical 
Security Management. The General Administration involves maintenance of company infrastructure, coordinating with 
third party vendors / service providers and coordinating for internal events. 

The Technical Support function is responsible for managing all electrical and technical systems. Physical Security 
Management comprises of a combination of physical and procedural measures designed to prevent or reduce threats 
to people, information, and assets. Extra care is taken for office premises perimeter security, ensuring access controls 
to create a secure zone where authorized persons can perform their responsibilities. The Administration Department 
has constituted Rescue Teams who are trained to cope with emergency situations. 

CDC House is considered as a landmark structure on the business district of Karachi and Administration Department 
is responsible for the upkeep of this prominent building on the Shahra-e-Faisal skyline.    
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share registrar
services limited

Share Registrar Services were launched as a business unit in 2008 in line with CDC’s commitment towards the 
development of Pakistan Capital Market. Now established as a wholly owned subsidiary, CDC Share Registrar Services 
boasts a clientele of 60% of listed banks along with 40% of the total market share of KSE100 Index companies, making 
it the Number One Share Registrar service provider in the market.

With its domain expertise, professional and seasoned team, state-of the-art IT infrastructure, a countrywide branch 
network, disaster recovery and business continuity capabilities, CDC Share Registrar Services Limited offers a composite 
portfolio of maintenance, registration, verification and direct customer dealing & interaction. CDC SR has developed a 
high-tech Share Accounting System with an exclusive Authority & Security Management System and workflow 
components to guarantee efficient services. Moreover, the capability to offer services like eVoting, IPO & balloting 
execution and Dividend reconciliation gives CDC SR a superior advantage over its competitors. 



ITMinds Limited - A wholly owned subsidiary was founded in 2009, specializing in innovative technology solutions. As 
part of CDC’s diversified portfolio of service offerings, ITMinds started providing Business Process Outsourcing (BPO) 
services in 2013 and today prides itself as the leading company providing technology backed BPO services to the 
Mutual Fund industry of Pakistan and as back office service to other corporates for their retirement benefit funds. 
Moreover, ITMinds is also offering its Back Office Accounting Software to asset management companies. 

The back office services by ITMinds mainly include settlement, unit management and accounting of funds. We believe 
that the outsourcing of non-core functions to ITMinds enables the client to give enhanced focus on its core business and 
helps it achieve long term profitability, reduce cost and improve efficiency.

ITMinds has recruited the most competent team in the industry with specialized skills and strong technical and financial 
background. It has built an impressive client portfolio through unprecedented strengths in high-speed innovation.

itminds limited 
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CELEBRATING
DIVERSITY

‘All the world’s a stage and all the men and women merely players.’ – Shakespeare

While technology has greatly facilitated the global marketplace, the human element holds the utmost value. Ideas, 
wisdom and collective physical and intellectual labor yield returns of expansive nature, guaranteeing long-term success 
and a sustainable future. 

At the time when women initially began rendering their efforts in the industrial workplace, they were only granted the 
role of low key responsibility. As the world progressed, the masses and companies at large gradually accepted that 
women can also work in equality and side by side to men in any organization. With a diverse composition of the human 
force, companies now have begun to recognize the value of the female workforce and foresee the level of dedication 
and agility that can be harboured when women are given a place to openly exercise their ambitious goals at work. 

CDC recognizes its employees as its most valuable asset. Being a corporate citizen, CDC is a vibrant, dynamic and a 
cosmopolitan organization that not only has diversity in its business, but the people it employs also belong to varied 
backgrounds. Be it professional qualifications or skill set, cultures or ethnicity, gender or religion, CDC takes pride in its 
human resource. 
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1993
Experts from PriceWaterhouseCoopers 
conducted a study to develop a conceptual 
framework for the depository. The United 
States Agency for International Development 
(USAID) sponsors the study and the report 
lays the foundation for depository design.

1994
The Board of Directors at CDC award a turnkey 
contract to an IBM consortium for the 
implementation of the depository system in 
Pakistan. The IBM consortium proposes a 
comprehensive Master Implementation Plan to 
the CDC Board after a detailed analysis of 
National requirements, Company & Banking laws, 
Regulations & Procedures and Financial 
Organizational aspects of the project.

1995
Master Implementation Plan approved.

1997
Promulgation of Central Depositories Ordinance & 
Central Depositories Act.

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 
Regulations developed and approved by the Corporate 
Law Authority (Securities and Exchange Commission 
of Pakistan).

September 3 – Central Depository System launched.

2000
Development of CDC 
Contingency Site.

Introduction of Electronic Merger 
of Securities Facility in CDS.

2002
Launches Trustee & 
Custodial Services for Mutual 
Funds, initially with two 
open-ended mutual funds 
with net assets value of Rs. 
500 million.

Introduction of 
Consolidation / Sub-division 
of Securities.

1999
Launches Investor Account Services 
for individual and corporate 
investors enabling them to directly 
open and maintain accounts with 
CDC in Central Depository System 
for electronic settlement of 
securities.

Induction of Term Finance 
Certificates (TFCs) into CDS.

2003
Introduction of Element Training 
Program for CDS users

Inducts WAPDA bonds into 
CDS.

2004
Implementation of National Clearing 
& Settlement System (NCSS).

Timeline OF
ACHIEVEMENTS
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2008
Launches Share Registrar Services for issuers and 
their shareholders.

Introduces Fund Management System.

CDC conducts Customer Satisfaction & Brand 
Awareness Survey through Gallop. According to 
survey results, CDC is rated Pakistan’s most 
recognized and prominent financial brand.

2009
Becomes ISO/IEC 27001:2005 certified for 
overall despository operations including 
functional, technical and legal aspects.

Implements Induction of Unpaid Rights in 
Central Depository.

CDC’s Trustee & Custodial Services (T&C) 
acquires 100 funds.

2005
Series of Investment Road Shows in 
major cities of Pakistan.

Deployment of Re-engineered Central 
Depository System.

Inducts Open-end Mutual Funds in CDS.

2006
Hosts 10th Annual General Meeting of 
Asia-Pacific Central Securities Depositories 
Group (ACG) in Karachi.

Holds ‘Investment Road Shows’ in Dubai and 
Abu Dhabi.

An independent brand-recall survey 
published in ‘Money’ magazine rates CDC as 
one of the top four brands in the country’s 
Investment Sector.

Launches CDC access IVR and Web.

2007
Completed a decade of CDS operations.

Holds ‘Capital Market Days’ in London and 
New York.

Introduces Secure ID Token for further 
security of CDS Terminalst.

2010
Exponentially Reduces Services Tariff.

Inducts National Savings Bonds in CDS.

Holds 3rd Pakistan Day Conference in New 
York.

Elected as Executive Committee Member of 
Asia Pacific Depositories Group.

Becomes ACCA Approved Employer.

Introduces new Automated Mechanism of 
Securities Transfer in CDS.
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2011
Integration of Standard Chartered 
(Pakistan) Bank’s Straight 2 Bank with 
CDC’s Fund Management System.

Government of Punjab appoints CDC as 
trustee for Punjab Pension Fund.

ITMinds becomes a subsidiary of CDC [IT 
Consultancy & Implementation Services].

Introduces Free of Cost eStatement and 
eAlert facilities for CDS Account Holders.

Receives CPD Approved Employer status 
from ACCA Pakistan.

2012
Becomes Custodian of over One Hundred 
Billion Securities worth over 21 billion 
dollars.

Becomes First Company in Pakistan to get 
BS 25999 Certification - the British Standard 
for Business Continuity Management.

Completes 15 years of successful operations.

2013
Celebrates 15 years of successful operations through 
a series of events.

Teams up with CFA Institute for Employee 
Development.

Extends Scope of ISO 27001 Certification.

Signs MoU with Life Insurance companies for 
Centralized Information Sharing Solution.

CDC becomes Secretariat of Asia-Pacific Central 
Securities Depositories Group (ACG) for 2014-16.

Mr. Muhammad Hanif Jakhura, CEO-CDC elected as 
the Executive Committee Chairman of ACG.

Timeline OF
ACHIEVEMENTS (CONT.)

2014
Initiates settlement services for 
Government Securities traded on 
PSX.

Conducts Investor Road Shows in 
6 major cities of Punjab.

CDC Employees conduct Disaster 
Relief activities for Thar Drought 
affectees.

2015
Launches Online 
Transactions service 
through Web.

CDC becomes Trustee of 
Dolmen City REIT.

CDC Trusteeship exceeds 
Rs. 500 Billion.

Acquires ISO/IEC 
27001:2013 Certification.

Introduces Direct 
Settlement Services.
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2016
Acquires International Standards for Assurance Engagement  (ISAE) Certification.

Launches Urdu Website.

Organizes Pakistan Investor Days in Dubai.

Discretionary / Non-Discretionary Portfolios under custody hit the 100 mark.

2017
Launches CDC Access Mobile App.

Launches Centralized eIPO System (CES).

Acquires ISO 22301 Certification for Business Continuity Management Program.

2018
Launches eDividend Repository.

Launches eLoR Service.

2019
Digital Account Opening Facility.

IAS payment though 1Link Banks.

Sales Tax Refund Bonds.

eIPO Facilitation.
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Company Information

CFO & Company Secretary
Shariq Jafrani 

Registered Office
CDC House

99-B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S.,

Main Shahra-e-Faisal,

Karachi-74400

Auditors
Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman

Chartered Accountants

BANKERS
Bank Alfalah Limited

Bank Al Habib Limited

Habib Bank Limited

Habib Metropolitan Bank Limited

MCB Bank Limited

National Bank of Pakistan

Standard Chartered Bank (Pakistan) Limited

Faysal Bank Limited

United Bank Limited

Meezan Bank Limited

Allied Bank Limited

LEGAL ADVISORS

M/s. Orr, Dignam & Co.
Advocates  

M/s. A. K. Brohi & Co.
Legal Consultants & Advocates

M/s. Bawaney & Partners
Advocates & Investment & Corporate Advisers

M/s. Mohsin Tayebaly & Co.
Corporate Legal Consultant / Barristers 

& Advocate High Courts & Supreme Court

M/s. Ijaz Ahmed & Associates
Advocates & Legal Consultants

M/s. Mandviwala & Zafar
Advocates

M/s. Haider Mota & Co.
Advocates & Corporate Counsel

M/s. Ahmed & Qazi
Advocates & Legal Consultants
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List of Shareholders

 S.no Shareholders Total No.of % of
  Shares Held Shareholding

 1. Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited  59,712,000 39.81

 2. MCB Bank Limited  22,500,000 15.00

 3. Habib Bank Limited  17,019,000 11.35

 4. LSE Financial Services Limited  15,000,000 10.00

 5. National Investment Trust Limited 9,519,000 6.35

 6. Industrial Development Bank Limited 7,500,000 5.00

 7. Pak China Investment Company Limited 7,500,000 5.00

 8. Crescent Steel and Allied Products Limited  4,124,999 2.75

 9. ISE Towers REIT Management Company Limited 3,750,000 2.50

 10. Allied Bank Limited 1,500,000 1.00

 11. IGI Investments (Private) Limited 974,997 0.65

 12. Innovative Investment Bank Limited  750,000 0.50

 13. Crescent Standard Business Management (Pvt.) Limited  150,000 0.10

 14. Others * 4 -

 TOTAL 150,000,000  100%

* Qualification shares allotted to independent directors in accordance with the Articles of Association of the Company. 

Audit Committee

 S.no Name Designation

 1 Syed Masoud Ali Naqvi Chairman

 2 Syed Majid Ali Member

 3 Mr. Muhammad Ashraf Bawany Member

 4 Mr. Ahmed Chinoy  Member

 5 Mr. Muhammad Sibghatullah Khalid Member

Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

S.no Name Designation

 1 Mr. Moin M. Fudda Chairman

 2 Mr. Badiuddin Akber Member

 3 Syed Majid Ali Member

 4 Mr. Abid Ali Habib Member

 5 Mr. Muhammad Sibghatullah Khalid Member
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* The Investment Committee is also authorized by the Board to approve donations in accordance with the approved CSR policy 

of the Company.

Risk & Regulatory Affairs Committee

 S.no Name Designation

  1 Syed Majid Ali Chairman

  2 Mr. Badiuddin Akber Member

  3 Mr. Abid Ali Habib Member

  4 Mr. Shahnawaz Mahmood Member 

  5 Mr. Aqeel Ahmed Nasir Member

[Formed under the CDC regulation for the purpose of conducting Disciplinary Proceedings]

Disciplinary Panel/Tribunal

 S.no Name Designation

  1 Mr. Ahmed Chinoy President

  2 Mr. Shahnawaz Mahmood Deputy President

  3 Syed Majid Ali Member

  4 Mr. Muhammad Sibghatullah Khalid Member 

  5 Mr. Aqeel Ahmed Nasir Member

Investment Committee *

 S.no Name Designation

  1 Mr. Muhammad Tariq Rafi Chairman

  2 Mr. Badiuddin Akber Member 

  3 Mr. Moin M. Fudda Member

  4 Mr. Abid Ali Habib Member

  5 Dr. Aamir Matin Member

Nomination & Compensation Committee

 S.no Name Designation

  1 Mr. Moin M. Fudda Chairman

  2 Mr. Badiuddin Akber Member

  3 Syed Masoud Ali Naqvi Member

  4 Mr. Aqeel Ahmed Nasir Member

  5 Mr. Muhammad Tariq Rafi Member
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Management Committee

S.no Name Designation

 1 Mr. Badiuddin Akber Chairman

 2 Syed Hassan Aslam Member

 3 Mr. Hammad Ali Faisal Member

 4 Mr. M. Anwar Gopalani Member

 5 Mr. Farooq Hussain Member

 6 Mr. Shariq Jafrani Member

 7 Mr. Iqleem-uz-Zaman Khan Member

 8 Mr. Shariq Naseem Member

 9 Mr. Atiq-ur-Rehman Member

 10 Mr. Abdul Samad Member

 11 Syed Asif Shah Member

Executive Steering Committee

 S.no Name Designation

 1 Mr. Badiuddin Akber Chairman

 2 Mr. Shariq Jafrani Member

 3 Mr. Shariq Naseem Member

 4 Mr. Atiq-ur-Rehman Member

 5 Mr. Abdul Samad Member

 6 Syed Asif Shah Member

I.T. Steering Committee

 S.no Name Designation

 1 Dr. Aamir Matin Chairman

 2 Mr. Badiuddin Akber Member

 3 Mr. Muhammad Ashraf Bawany Member

 4 Mr. Ahmed Chinoy Member

 5 Mr. Shahnawaz Mahmood  Member
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143
Rs. In Billion

4,266
Rs. In Billion

86 603
In Million

243,896130
In Million

Total Number of Shares in CDS

Percentage of Shares in CDS with
reference to Share Capital*

Units of Open-End
Funds in CDS

Number of Sub-Accounts

55,679

Number of Investor Accounts

Units of TFCs, Sukuks
& Bonds in CDS

Total Market Capitalization
of Shares in CDS

OPERATIONAL HIGHLIGHTS
Key Figures as of June 30, 2019
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84
Rs. In Billion

2,444
Rs. In Billion

187 195

704
Rs. In Billion

225

Total No. of Securities in IAS

Number of Securities in
Share Registrar Services

Number of Funds
under Trusteeship

Net Assets of Funds/Discretionary
Portfolio Clients Under Custody

Number of Discretionary Portfolio
Clients under Trusteeship

Total Market Capitalization of
Securities in IAS
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Central Depository System (cds)
As of June 30, 2019

Breakup of
securities

in cds

Preference Shares
13

Open End Mutual Funds
37

Bonds
2

Sukuk & Term Finance Certificates
106

Ordinary Shares
744

CDS
Elements

Participants / Account Holders
629

Securities (Issuer)
902

Eligible Pledgees
92
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Transactions handled through CDS
During the Year 2018 - 19  

Investor AcCounts
As of June 30, 2019

Deposit Free Delivery Pledge Withdrawal

28,318

2.60

601,663

36.20

185,875

21.89 9830.19

No. of Transaction
Volume (in billion)

No. of Accounts

No. of Securities (in Billion)

Market Capitalization of Securities
(Rs. in Billion)

53,777

21.00
775.25

1,902

63.24

1,668.26

Individual Corporate
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As of June 30, 2019
Six Years Operational Data

As of June 30, 2019

Activations 

for IAS Clients for Sub Accounts

              FINANCIAL YEARS ENDED ON JUNE 30

 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

Participants/Account Holders 629 631 643 657 651 575

Eligible Pledgees 92 94 94 94 95 97

CDS Live Securities 902 872 845 822 819 811

No. of Shares in CDS (in Billion) 142.92 131.82 133.94 128.68 117.73 110.35

Market Capitalization of Shares in CDS (Rs. in Billion) 4,265.65 5,266.28 5,922.68 4,938.23 4,649.56 3,852.07

Units of TFCs, Sukuks, Bonds & Open-End Funds  in CDS 
(in Million) 732.87 216.66 211.63 238.98 268.92 368.98

Investor Accounts (individual and corporate) 55,679  53,094   51,022   50,144   51,262   50,681 

No. of Securities in IAS (in Billion) 84.24 75.59 79.47 74.15 50.02 43.93

Market Capitalization of Securities in IAS (Rs. in Billion) 2,443  2,938   3,305   2,681   2,234   1,776 

55,679

30,091

43,202

243,896

88,045

195,814

Number of Accounts

Activation of SMS

Activation of IVR / Web
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Total Number of Employees (419)

Year-wise strength

As of June 30, 2019
Human Resources
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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

BALANCE SHEET   Rupees in Million

Shareholders Equity  4,580.07   4,131.01   3,671.52   2,833.82   2,606.40   2,356.54 

Fixed Assets  1,395.51   1,431.39   1,321.74   988.01   970.98   970.47 

Other Non-Current Assets  183.85   166.37   153.71   149.03   117.67   662.67 

Current Assets  3,782.50   3,344.88   2,982.73   2,307.26   2,096.13   1,180.37 

Non-Current Liabilities  228.77   234.69   228.58   182.94   197.69   183.26 

Current Liabilities  553.03   576.95   558.08   427.54   380.70   273.71 

 

OPERATIONAL RESULTS   Rupees in Million

Total Income  2,114.53   2,126.06   1,987.62   1,658.95   1,534.06   1,232.84 

Total Expenses  1,222.76   1,124.45   1,069.43   953.49   868.72   755.80 

Profit Before Taxation  891.77   1,001.61   918.19   705.46   665.34   477.04 

Profit After Taxation  616.32   668.98   608.71   459.46   431.74   329.03 

 

DIVIDEND   Rupees in Million 

Cash  183.75   159.14   183.00   20.00   211.25   195.00 

Bonus  500.00   439.10   60.90   350.00   -     -   

 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014

FINANCIAL YEARS ENDED ON JUNE 30
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Six YearS Financial Summary

Profit before tax as a %age of revenue 42.17% 47.11% 46.20% 42.52% 43.37% 38.69%

Net Profit Margin 29.15% 31.47% 30.63% 27.70% 28.14% 26.69%

EBITDA Margin to Sales 59.66% 59.24% 57.13% 55.49% 56.37% 54.10%

Debtors turnover  ratio (times per year)  9.27   7.61   7.93   8.23   9.29   8.47 

Operating Leverage Ratio   1.53   1.55   1.28   0.65   1.54   1.52 

Return on Equity 14.15% 17.15% 18.71% 16.89% 17.40% 14.34%

Return on Capital Employed 10.78% 16.19% 17.60% 15.79% 16.16% 13.27%

Debtors collection period (Days)  39.37   47.95   46.04   44.36   39.31   43.09 

Expense as a %age of revenue expense including depreciation
& excluding tax & WWF 57.83% 52.89% 53.80% 57.48% 55.74% 60.52%

Liquidity Ratios  

Current Ratio  6.84 5.80 5.34 5.40 5.51 4.31

Quick/Acid test ratio 6.79 5.76 5.31 5.34 5.43 4.23

Cash to Current Liabilities  6.26 5.25 4.63 4.64 4.87 3.48

Cash flow from operation to Sales   0.40   0.45   0.40   0.34   0.41   0.39 

Return on assets 11.96% 14.23% 15.41% 13.86% 14.40% 12.08%

Investment /  Market Ratio  

Earning per share (before tax)  5.95   6.68   6.12   4.70   4.44   3.18 

Earning per share (after tax)  4.11   4.46   4.06   3.06   2.88   2.19 

Dividend Payout ratio  30   24   30   4   49   59 

Cash Dividend Per Share   1.23   1.06   1.22   0.13   1.41   1.30 

Stock Dividend per Share  3.33   2.93   0.41   2.33   -     -   

Dividend Cover Ratio   3.35   4.20   3.33   22.97   2.04   1.69 

Breakup Value  per share without surplus on Revaluation
of Fixed Assets   25.87   22.80   19.68   15.79   14.21   12.48 

Capital Structure Ratio

Net Assets (Breakup value) Per Share   30.53   27.54   24.48   18.89   17.38   15.71 

Debt to Equity Ratio    0.05   0.06   0.06   0.06   0.08   0.08 

Profitability Ratios  2019 2018 2017 2016 2015 2014
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Directors’
REPORT
The Directors of Central Depository Company of
Pakistan Limited are pleased to present the Company’s
Annual Report and Annual Audited Unconsolidated
Financial Statements for the year ended June 30, 2019
along with Auditors’ Report thereon.



ECONOMIC PERFORMANCE

Pakistan’s macros have relatively declined, showing a GDP growth of 
3.8% in financial year 2019 which is the lowest since financial year 2014. 
Macroeconomic adjustment policies, such as monetary tightening, 
exchange rate adjustment, expenditure control and enhancement of 
regulatory duties on non-essential imports, have although impacted the 
economy, however, these steps have served to bring some degree of 
stability and have also helped in reducing economic uncertainty.

There are some positive indicators such as declining current account 
deficit, increasing foreign remittance and expected increase in Foreign 
Direct Investment. Moreover, the Federal Government has also been 
focused towards structural reforms. 

CAPITAL MARKET OVERVIEW

The performance of Pakistan Capital Market was on a declining trend in 
current financial year, the KSE 100 index which was at 43,557 in July 2018 
declined to 33901 in June 2019. The major reasons behind this negative 
performance are depreciation of PKR and increasing discount rate. 
Considering that government has finalized the IMF bailout package, the 
capital market is expected to start showing positive trend. Moreover, 
strong corporate earnings and discounted P/E ratio makes it attractive 
for investment.  

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE

The company’s revenue for the year 2018-19 is Rs. 2,115 million against 
Rs. 2,126 million of previous year showing a marginal decline of mere 
0.5%.  The profit before and after tax is Rs. 892  million and Rs. 616 

million respectively showing reduction of 11% and 8% respectively 
compared to the previous year’s results. 

The market performance was lower than the budgeted expectation, 
however, the shortfall in revenue target was covered to an extent by 
controlling expenses and diversified operations.  

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS

A tabular presentation reflecting revenue growth of its main segments over the years is as follows:

    June 30, 2019  June 30, 2018  

(Rupees in ‘000’)
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Operating income                 1,704,505  1,852,122 

Operating income from discontinued operations                     105,701  98,073 

Less: Operating and administrative expenses              (1,123,371) (1,009,585)

Less: Operating and administrative expenses from discontinued operations                    (90,454) (79,932)

Operating profit            596,382  860,678 

Other income          304,319  175,869 

Less: Other expenses           (8,931) (34,933)

Profit before income tax            891,770  1,001,614 

Less: Income tax expense  (275,448) (332,629)

Profit for the year            616,323  668,985 

Earnings per share - basic and diluted (in Rs.) 4.11  4.46 
   (Restated)

Revenue Sources CAGR 2019 2018 2017 2016 2015

 %   (Rupees in million)

Depository Services 4% 1,072 1,222 1,204 996 934

Trustee & Custodial services 12% 640 637 581 462 403

Share Registrar services 33% 107 99 65 40 34



eVoting Facility

Increasing Outreach of Depository
through banks and technology

MAJOR ACHIEVEMENTS

Tariff and Cost Rationalization

Zakat Declaration Repository

Number 1 RTA Service Provider
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I.T. Infrastructure Upgrade
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Continuous Development in Central Depository 
Services, Products, and Facilities

CDC has revolutionized the workings of Pakistan Capital Market with 
the establishment of Central Depository System which brought 
efficiency and transparency to the market processes. With regular 
advancement in its systems and introduction of new products, services 
and convenience facilities, CDC is continuing to increase investors’ trust 
in market processes and driving the Capital Market into a new phase of 
development through digitalization and automation.  The same is 
exhibited below as the number of shares in CDS. 

TECHNOLOGY

I.T. Infrastructure Enhancements
Technology infrastructure serves as the backbone for CDC’s multiple 
businesses and CDC always keeps abreast with latest solutions to 
upgrade its systems. To upgrade and safeguard its systems and mobile 
resources against theft, stolen data or any misuse beyond corporate 
needs, CDC has adopted an Enterprise Mobility Management solution 
for its internal mobile users. Data leakage prevention solution has been 
deployed organization wide on server side and end user level. Policies 
related to confidential data (business application reports) are being 
implemented.

Despite continuously upgrading its state-of-the-art IT infrastructure, 
CDC also thrives on choosing technology to reduce cost of doing 
business. In this regard, a new data backup solution has been 
implemented against which expected reduction in expenses (OPEX) is 
envisaged. 

Review of Internal Controls based on International 
Standard of Assurance Engagement ISAE3402
CDC is the custodian of trillions of rupees worth of securities, hence 
there is a dire need of an effective risk management. Accordingly as part 
of organizational development activity, it is very important to have a 
comprehensive and stringent Risk Management framework.  

This will also include adopting international practices and standards in 
areas like Information Security Management for businesses and internal 
functions and Business Continuity Management to evaluate business 
impact and risk assessment of disaster situations. 
 
In this regard, CDC has successfully implemented ERM (COSO) 

Framework in different business areas like Depository Operations & 
Share Registrar Business, for internal functions, Business Continuity & 
Enterprise Security. While controls have been identified, reviewed and 
documented, comprehensive Physical Security Assessment was also 
performed.

Enterprise Security Management
CDC‘s Information Security Management Program is certified with 
ISO/IEC 27001:2013 standard. The scope of certification covers 
depository, trustee, share registrar services and ITMinds Limited (wholly 
owned subsidiary) and all internal functions, which includes 
comprehensive Technical Security Assessment, Intrusion Prevention 
System, mobile device control and Password Management solution. CDC 
maintains this prestigious certification by complying with requirements 
that are audited annually by independent auditors.

Business Continuity Management Program
CDC has adopted international best practices in areas like CDC’s 
Business Continuity Management Program which is certified with 
ISO/IEC 22301:2012 standard. CDC complies with industry’s best 
practices by re-evaluating business impact and risk assessment of 
disaster situations. 

In this regard, CDC conducted successful unannounced BCP drill during 
business hours, to measure technology and staff readiness for resuming 
business services from alternate site in case of CDC House unavailability. 
Similarly, surprise BCP drill was conducted in order to measure network 
resiliencies in case of unavailability of primary link. Business impact 
analysis was also performed for business processes to evaluate impact 
on reputation, legal, financial and contractual obligations of CDC and 
subsidiary services. An advance threat defence system has been deployed 
to enable automated incident response.

INVESTOR FACILITATION

Introduction of IPO Facilitation account
CDC introduced the IPO facilitation Account, a facility through which 
investors can subscribe securities even if they do not have CDC Account 
at the time of IPO subscription. The investors can later open their 
accounts and get their securities transferred in their respective accounts, 
till then securities will be in safe custody of CDC. Recently in the 
successful subscription of the IPO of Interloop Limited, 2,283 investors 
subscribed shares through Centralized eIPO System (CES), which makes 
it around 80 percent of all electronic subscriptions in the Interloop IPO 
and around 43 percent of total subscriptions (both physical and 
electronic). 

Extending Depository Outreach through use of 
technology
A lot of emphasis is being given on extending depository outreach 
through use of technology. In line with this approach, CDC has 
introduced “Digital Account Opening solution”. Through this facility, 
investors are now able to fill the account opening form online.  This new 
digital solution help eliminate the need for multiple visits by investors to 
CDC premises for opening account with CDC. After successful 
completion of the online form, investors are required to visit CDC 
House only once for In-Person Verification (IPV). 

Similarly, CDC has collaborated with 1Link to enable a number of leading 
banks including Meezan Bank, UBL, HBL and ABL in offering the 
convenience of online payment service to Investor Account holders 
through their Automated Delivery Channels including ATMs, Online 
Banking etc. 
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Zakat Declaration Repository
CDC’s proposed model for Zakat Declaration Repository has been 
formally approved by the Ministry of Religious Affairs and Interfaith 
Harmony (MORA) which shall be recognized mechanism for matters 
concerning CZ-50 under the Zakat Law as well as for Zakat Audit 
purposes. System Development for the establishment of Zakat 
Repository has started. 

Maintaining High Standards of Service Delivery to 
Gain a Competitive Edge
In line to its resolve to facilitate its customers in availing its services with 
utmost convenience, CDC has established a dedicated, fast track and 
priority service facility for people with Special Needs including Senior 
Citizens at all CDC Offices. Moreover, eServices facilitation desks are 
also setup at different CDC offices to assist walk-in customers. 

Shares Custody Services through Banks
CDC has always strived to adopt international best practices in the 
workings of the Pakistan Capital Market. One such practice is the 
availability of depository services through Participants like banks. With 
the objective to increase depository outreach to existing and potential 
investors in far-flung areas, CDC has recently joined hands with Meezan 
Bank to offer Shares Custody Services for Meezan’s account holders. 
This initiative would provide the facility of shares custody to the Bank’s 
customers through its 650 branches in 180 cities of the country. 

Investor Protection

Approaching all existing investors to educate them 
about their rights and responsibilities for securing 
their assets
Since inception, CDC has been spearheading the drive to spread 
awareness about the risks and opportunities regarding investment in 
Pakistan Capital Market. This year, Investor Education Seminars were 
held in Karachi, Lahore, Faisalabad, Multan and Rawalpindi / Islamabad 
which were attended by Sub Account and Investor Account Holders who 
appreciated CDC’s efforts for investor awareness.  

CDC undertook numerous initiatives outlined in its Strategic Plan to 
approach existing investors like use of social media, print media 
campaign, workshops, dissemination of awareness SMS and circulation of 
account balance statements, etc. to educate them about their rights and 
responsibilities for securing their assets. With the above efforts, 
securities under the custody of CDC Investor Account now reached to 
around 60% of total securities in CDS. 

Strengthening Inspection & Monitoring Regime for 
CDC Elements 
CDC has always given utmost significance to the safety and security of 
client’s assets. As per Joint Inspection Regulation 2015, CDC is entrusted 
with the leading role of inspection. In this regard, comprehensive 
Inspection of CDS Elements and various monitoring activities were 
performed w.r.t. Participant Inspection of Securities Brokers, Limited 
Scope Inspection of Sub-Accounts, Inspection of Issuers, monitoring of 
Free Delivery Movement and Pledge Transactions and Inspection of 
Participants other than Securities Brokers. Remote education messages 
were also disseminated to Participants and Issuers/ R/TAs.

Measures to ensure safety of investors’ assets
As part of its continuous resolve to contribute towards the development 
of the stock market and increase ease and security to invest in the 
market, CDC has decided to provide relief to the investing public by 
offering Direct Settlement Service as a free-of-cost facility. This service is 

designed to safeguard investor assets including “cash”, which would in 
turn increase investor confidence and participation in the capital market. 

Financial Literacy Initiatives
CDC understands the importance of spreading financial education with 
the help of experts of the relevant industry sector to ensure sound 
knowledge reaches the general public. CDC regularly organizes sessions 
to offer awareness about diverse investment opportunities and avenues 
available in the capital market. Furthermore, awareness sessions are 
regularly held for students of different educational institutes, apprising 
them about the workings of the Pakistan Capital Market, the roles of 
different stakeholders and the function of CDC. 

Business Innovation / Reforms

Centralized Insurance Repository
The Centralized Information Sharing Solution for the Insurance Industry 
(CISSII), a system developed and maintained by CDC as per the 
recommendations of the Insurance Industry Reform Committee (IIRC), 
has undoubtedly proven to be an important mechanism for promoting 
ease of doing business and transparency in the Life/Health insurance 
sector. Based on the leverage offered by CISSII to the Insurance 
companies and the recommendations of IIRC, CDC is gearing up to 
embark on its vision of setting up an Insurance Repository to enable the 
centralized storage of life insurance and family takaful policies in 
electronic form.

In line with the above objective, CDC has signed an MoU with Life 
Insurance Companies to work on the establishment of Centralized 
Insurance Repository through the technological support of CDC. The 
envisioned repository is expected to serve as the central point for 
critical policy holders to keep their policies in dematerialized form. 

Agri Collateral Management Company
CDC for quite some time is advocating the formation of a Collateral 
Management Company for farmers to get finances against their produce. 
A major achievement in this regard is the agreement of various major 
stakeholders including CDC, Arif Habib Group, Pakistan Agriculture 
Coalition (PAC) and National Foods to form Pakistan’s first Agricultural 
CMC with the title of Naymat Collateral Management Company. An 
important meeting of sponsors of Naymat CMC was recently held along 
with PAC representatives where CDC has presented its Facility 
Management Agreement proposition.  

Dematerialization of Federal Bond for Tax Sales Tax 
Refund Claims to be issued by FBR
CDC facilitated businessmen in their Sales Tax Refund payments through 
Refund Bonds for those claimants who had CDC Accounts. This initiative 
was taken subsequent to the approval of amendments in Supplementary 
(Second Amendment) Act, 2019 by the Federal Government through 
which sales tax payments to claimants were to be made through Bonds 
in book-entry form in CDC. In this regard, the Federal Board of Revenue 
(FBR) asked the refund claimants who have opted for Sales Tax Refund 
payments through Refund Bonds to open account with CDC and has 
issued procedures for opening of such accounts. The FBR Refund 
Settlement Company Limited has so far issued sales tax refund bonds 
(promissory notes) of Rs. 17.03 billion to 689 refund claimants in the 
Central Depository System in book entry form. 

eVoting
After the promulgation of Companies (Postal) Ballot Regulations, 2018, 
CDC Share Registrar service has launched an eVoting facility which has 
recently been developed in house. This will enable shareholders to cast 
their votes pertaining to company resolution(s) and elect directors 
electronically during general meetings. 
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Support to Market through Reduction in Tariff & 
Cost Rationalization
Substantial revision in the tariff structure of both depository and trustee 
services to provide relief and ease of doing business to investors despite 
the depressed capital market situation and comparatively lower income 
of the Company as compared to preceding years. As the infrastructure 
backbone of Pakistan Capital Market, CDC’s main objective is to provide 
efficient and cost effective services to all its customers.  

As part of the recent reduction, CDC has provided 100% waiver on 
Maintenance fee for such Sub-Account holders who also have Investor 
Accounts. Taking this initiative further in order to promote the growth of 
Pakistan’s corporate debt market, CDC has significantly reduced its 
annual fee for long-term redeemable securities by approximately 65%. 
Additionally, CDC has rationalized its tariff structure for next five years 
which also includes reduction in custody fee for the year 2019-20 and 
2020-21 by 14% and 16% respectively. 

CDC has also significantly reduced its service tariff for the Mutual Fund 
Industry up to 57% applicable to different categories of funds. Apart from 
the said reduction, CDC has also rationalized the trustee fee for small 
sized mutual funds / schemes by permanently eliminating the minimum 
fee component and implementing flat rate instead of slab system. This 
reduction is expected to facilitate Asset Management Companies in 
making their funds / schemes more investment-worthy in the current 
challenging times. 
 
This is not the first time CDC has reduced its service tariff. In fact, in the 
past, the tariffs for depository services (both custody and transaction 
fee) and trustee services have been reduced a number of times.

Sahulat 
Sahulat Account is launched to facilitate small investor who wish to 
invest up to Rs. 500,000 only. This account can be opened with simplified 
KYC requirements. 

Other Businesses

Trustee and Custodial Services - Net Assets under 
Custody reached PKR 704 billion as on June 30, 2019
The overall momentum of Trustee & Custodial Business remained on 
positive side despite the fact that in the last fiscal year, the capital market 
often faced declining trend in KSE 100 Index which also impacted the 
size of Mutual Fund Industry. However, CDC as Trustee maintained 
market leadership in the following segments:

• Trustee Services to the Collective Investment Schemes (CIS) 
including Voluntary Pension Schemes (VPS):  The market share of 
CDC remained 97% on which Assets under our Trusteeship 
including VPS reached Rs. 633.56 billion with number of funds 
increased to 195 as against 183 as at June 30, 2018. 

• Trustee Services to the Real Investment Trust (REITs): We are the 
only trustee of rental REITs in Pakistan having Net Assets of Rs. 
45.24 billion under trusteeship.

• Custody Services to Discretionary Portfolio (DP) clients: The 
Custodian business for DP clients has shown tremendous growth 
wherein our clientele has reached to 225 as against 170   as at June 
30, 2018. On the same lines, Net Assets under custodianship have 
also increased (decreased) by 51billion and reached Rs. 40.22 billion 
as at current financial year end.  

• Trustee to Punjab Government Pension Fund: We are the only 
trusteeship provider to the Government backed Fund whose 
relevant size is increasing day by day and have reached to Rs. 59.16 
billion as at June 30, 2019.

Share Registrar Services
Since its launch in 2008, CDC has been successful in redefining the Share 
Registrar service standards for the industry and now caters to 187 
securities, including various listed public sector entities, making it the 
number one R/TA service provider in the market within 10 year times. 
CDC Share Registrar Services have deeply penetrated in banking sector 
of Pakistan and acquired 31% listed banks on its clients list. Apart from 
this, CDC as Share Registrar is also the Share Registrar of major listed 
companies of KSE100 list.
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ITMinds Limited (Wholly owned subsidiary) 
ITMinds Limited in its endeavor to augment its business of BPO services, 
has signed a Service Level Agreement with Faysal Asset Management 
Limited bringing on board their eleven funds. The number of funds have 
grown to 33 with net asset size of Rs. 40 billion.
 
ITMinds Back Office Accounting Software being state of the art software 
developed by an in house IT Team has gained the attraction of few AMCs 
who have shown interest in acquiring this software as service. 
Considering the challenges being faced by these AMCs with reference to 
tailor made softwares available in the market with no satisfactory 
support and significant cost elements involved therein, ITMinds is the 
best available solution for them at most competitive rates. This service 
will provide a complete IT solution with system having cloud based 
hosting as well as end to end IT Support  including software 
maintenance/upgrade, backups etc. 

ITMinds is also revisiting its processes and technologies to increase its 
operational efficiencies and further strengthening its infra-structure set 
up to cope with increasing client requirements. Moreover, its digitization 
tools like web portal is already a dire need for AMCs in this competitive 
environment.

FUTURE PLAN AND STRATEGIC 
OBJECTIVES FOR 2019-21

The CEO of CDC with his management team has developed a strategic 
plan for organizational and market development and also to effectively 
perform the oversight function. The plan provides the direction for the 
next three years, devised after carefully assessing our internal strengths 
and external requirements. It is important to understand that CDC’s 
business has a peculiar nature, as we are a Self-Regulatory Organization 
(SRO) and by nature CDC is an Infrastructure Institution. In line with this 
understanding, the core objective of CDC is to provide smooth & 
efficient services to the capital market and ensuring safe & secure 
custody of investors’ assets. Accordingly, our future strategic objectives 
are also coherent with our role as SRO and a Public Interest Company.  
 
After a rigorous exercise of assessing local and regional business 
environment and evolving market requirements, CDC has developed the 
new strategic plan based on the following seven objectives to pursue in 
the next three years (2019 to 2021):

• Reforms for Investor Awareness and Protection
• Enhancing Customer Convenience
• Implementing a Stringent Risk Management Framework
• Organizational Growth through Diversification and Process 

Improvements
• Information Technology Infrastructure Enhancements
• Strengthening Organizational Efficiency and Effectiveness
• Support for Market Development

For the first time since inception, CDC is formally following a Strategic 
Plan while firmly believing in the use of latest technologies to upgrade 
the mechanisms of Pakistan Capital Market for the purpose of 
introducing efficiency and transparency and reducing the manpower and 
time involved. 

RISK MANAGEMENT

CDC has adopted Enterprise Risk Management framework based on 
COSO principles. Risk management at CDC is considered vital to the 
creation and enhancement of shareholders’ value. The uncertainties and 
risks that may influence the achievement of our corporate goals and 
objectives are managed while opportunities are tapped into. Our risks 
are ranked based on their impact on CDC and probability of occurrence. 
Upon identification of risks, mitigating strategies and action plans are 
developed, implemented and monitored. In this respect, CDC has 
employed various levels of security mechanisms to protect its 
information assets and technology infrastructure from potential risks 
and hazards. Regular guidelines are issued encompassing risk policies, risk 
management methodologies and tools for increasing employee 
awareness. 

CDC maintained its strong emphasis on internal controls and third party 
verifications. Besides continuous IT Audits by the Internal Audit team, 
CDC successfully conducted Annual Review, penetration testing and 
source code reviews by external Auditors / Consultants. CDC is the first 
SRO in Capital Market to adopt ISAE 3402 and develop the 
comprehensive Enterprise Risk Registers which will assist in 
re-characterization of risk sensitivity, applied controls and its mitigation. 
During the year we closely reviewed and monitored the risk of various 
business activities mainly focusing on operational, legal and reputational 
risk. In order to further protect the Company from any monetary loss, 
CDC has also obtained risk insurance policy covering computer crimes, 
professional indemnity and employee infidelity from reputed insurance 
company.

HUMAN RESOURCE DEVELOPMENT

The Company strives to foster a culture that places people at the core 
of everything it does, celebrates diversity, is forward looking, and 
provides equal opportunity in its drive to achieve its objectives and 
long-term goals. A clear approach towards employee motivation and 
continuous learning is adapted through rewards, trainings and job 
rotations. 

CDC is clearly focused towards the health & safety of its employees, 
customers, and all other stakeholders. We foster the culture of 
precautionary measures by implementing the means and measures that 
ensure minimum Health and Safety risk in performance of our activities 
and rendering services. 

At CDC, we strive to implement all applicable environmental, health and 
safety requirements and promote energy efficiency to ensure protection 
of environment. In times of unforeseen circumstances, our first priority 
and line of action is to save human life.  
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The Company has recently introduced a number of facilities for the 
convenience and comfort of its employees, enabling them to focus better 
on their core responsibilities at work. 

COMMUNITY INVESTMENTS

Every year CDC allocates 2.5% of its profit before tax to Corporate 
Social Responsibility projects to support underprivileged members of 
the society. Through this contribution we sponsor wide range of 
initiatives including health, education, and environmental protection. We 
believe in playing our role in strengthening of these fundamental building 
blocks for the development of society. Since inception, CDC has 
sponsored many projects among which sponsorship for construction of 
a TCF owned school at Mirpur Khas, and a Cancer Consulting Clinics to 
The Indus Hospital are two projects to mention among a few that we 
have sponsored. With such like engagements, our aim is to assist the 
philanthropists in providing quality education and health services to 
deserving individuals of the society. Presently, we are working in two 
provinces, this year we have increased our reach to Baluchistan as well 
and in years to come we will be reaching across Pakistan. 

CODE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Good Governance lies at the core of our values and ethical standards. 
The Board is aware of its responsibilities towards the shareholders, value 
of inputs from our stakeholders, besides upholding the reputation of 
CDC.  

The Company firmly believes in the importance of good governance and 
best practices, and the mechanism for good governance encompasses 
the highest standards of professionalism, ethical practices, accountability 
and transparency.

The Board and management of the Company are committed to good 
corporate governance and complying with the best practices. 

BEST CORPORATE PRACTICES

Over the years, CDC has positioned itself to surpass the legal 
requirements and adhere to global best practices and standards of 
governance. Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of 
Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 and the review report by the 
Company’s Auditors are attached. 

Composition of Board of Directors
Apart from regulatory requirements, execution of the Company’s 
current and future strategic objectives define the parameters for the 
qualification and composition of the Board of Directors. This enables the 
Company to achieve highest levels of good governance, transparency, 
awareness of Board’s responsibilities in achieving Company’s objectives, 
besides ensuring smooth business operations.

CDC’s board comprises of a mixture of individuals representing 
shareholding institutions as well as independent directors. Total number 
of directors on the Board is 12 representing male Directors. 

Precisely, the Board comprises of seven individuals representing 
shareholding institutions, four independent directors and the Chief 
Executive Officer by virtue of position as per statute. All the Directors of 
the Company meet the eligibility criteria laid down under the 
Companies Act, 2017, Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2017 and the Fit & Proper Criteria 
incorporated in the Licensing Regulations. 

The tenure of office of a director is three years. Upon expiry of which, 
elections are held to appoint a new Board in accordance with the statute. 
Directors representing respective shareholding institutions have no 
direct interest in the Company’s business. 

The Board of Directors remained actively involved during the year in 
performing its duties and functions as specified under the Listed 
Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017. 

Annual Evaluation of Board’s Performance 
Board’s Evaluation Mechanism facilitates the Board of Directors to 
evaluate and assess performance for providing strategic leadership and 
oversight to the management. Accordingly, procedures have been 
developed based on emerging and leading practices to assist in the 
self-assessment of individual director, committees of the Board and the 
full Board’s performance. The main criteria for the Board’s evaluation is 
as follows:

- Board Composition
- Compensation
- Strategic Planning
- Board Procedures 
- Board Interaction
- Board Information
- Effectiveness 
- Board Committees

Changes in the Board
Casual vacancies incurred during the year were filled in accordance with 
the Companies Act, 2017. The Board places on record its appreciation 
for the valuable contribution made by the outgoing Directors. 

Board & Committee Meetings
As prescribed by the regulatory framework, the Board is required to 
meet at least once every quarter to monitor achievements of the 
Company’s objectives. CDC’s Board met nine times in the year 2018-19 
to discuss routine and special matters besides providing guidance to the 
management on achieving Company’s objectives. 

Notices / agendas of the meetings were circulated in advance, in a timely 
manner and in compliance of applicable laws. The quorum of all the 
meetings also exceeded the minimum requirements as prescribed by the 
Companies Act 2017, with the Chief Financial Officer and Company 
Secretary also in attendance. The Company Secretary meticulously 
noted the proceedings and maintained minutes of the meetings 
encompassing details regarding all decisions taken by the Board and 
explanations provided by the management. The minutes were circulated 
to the Directors within the prescribed time and were approved in the 
subsequent Board meetings. The Board’s attendance status is mentioned 
as under: 

* Leave of absence was granted to the Directors who could not attend 
some of the meetings.
** Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan retired on December 31, 2018.
*** Mr. Farid Malik resigned from the Board of CDC in August 2018.

Name of Directors No. of meetings No. of meetings
  held in tenure attended*

Mr. Moin M. Fudda 9 9

Mr. Badiuddin Akber 3 3

Syed Majid Ali 9 9

Mr. Muhammad Ashraf Bawany 9 9

Mr. Ahmed Chinoy 9 9

Mr. Muhammad Abid Ali Habib 9 9

Mr. Muhammad Sibghatullah Khalid 9 9

Mr. Shahnawaz Mahmood  9 9

Dr. Aamir Matin 9 8

Mr. Aqeel Ahmed Nasir 9 8

Syed Masoud Ali Naqvi 9 8

Mr. Muhammad Tariq Rafi 9 7

Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan** 6 5

Mr. Farid Malik*** 0 0
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Name of Directors No. of meetings No. of meetings
  held in tenure attended

Syed Masoud Ali Naqvi (Chairman) 7 7

Syed Majid Ali 7 7

Mr. Ahmed Chinoy 7 7

Mr. Muhammad Ashraf Bawany 5 5

Mr. Muhammad Sibghatullah Khalid 5 5

Mr. Farid Malik 2 2

Name of Directors No. of meetings No. of meetings
  held in tenure attended

Mr. Moin M. Fudda (Chairman) 9 9

Mr. Badiuddin Akber 2 2

Mr. Muhammad Abid Ali Habib 9 9

Syed Majid Ali 9 9

Mr. Muhammad Sibghatullah Khalid 6 6

Mr. Farid Malik 3 2

Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan 7 3

Name of Directors No. of meetings No. of meetings
  held in tenure attended

Syed Majid Ali (Chairman) 4 4

Mr. Badiuddin Akber 2 2

Mr. Muhammad Abid Ali Habib 4 4

Mr. Shahnawaz Mahmood 4 4

Mr. Aqeel Ahmed Nasir 4 3

Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan 2 2

Audit Committee
The Company’s Audit Committee is composed of five members, all of 
whom have extensive financial management, business and economics 
experience. The Chairman of the Audit Committee is an independent 
director, whereas the remaining members are non-executive directors.

The Audit Committee of the Board continued to perform its duties and 
responsibilities effectively as per its approved terms of reference. The 
Committee met 7 times during the year and also held a meeting with the 
external auditors without the presence of Chief Finance Officer and 
Head of Internal Audit.  The attendance status of the Audit Committee is 
mentioned as under:

Human Resource and Remuneration Committee
The Human Resource and Remuneration Committee reviews the human 
resource architecture of the Company and ensures that the human 
resource strategy is aligned to the overall corporate strategy. The 
Chairman of the Committee is an independent non-executive Director 
and all the members of the Committee excluding the Chief Executive 
Officer are non-executive Director. The Human Resource & 
Remuneration Committee met nine times during the year and its 
attendance status is mentioned as under:

Risk & Regulatory Affairs Committee (“RRAC”)
The RRAC oversees the matters relating to Regulations, Compliances, 
and Enforcement actions and other related functions as prescribed in the 
Licensing Regulations and related work performed by the Compliance 
Officer and makes recommendations to the Board for further 
improvements in the functions and consider and evaluate that the role 
and responsibilities assigned to the Compliance Officer are efficiently 
and effectively performed.  The name of Risk & Regulatory Committee 
was changed during the year to Regulatory Affairs Committee.

The RRAC met four times during the year and its attendance status is 
mentioned as under:

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION 
The Company has a policy for ascertaining Directors’ remuneration (for 
non-executive and independent directors) with review of external 
consultant every three years. This policy shall apply to all Non-Executive 
and Independent Directors who attend Board Meetings, Audit 
Committee Meetings, Regulatory Affairs Committee Meetings, Human 
Resource and Remuneration Committee Meeting and any other meeting 
called by the Board.

The review process is in compliance with legal requirements and 
remuneration includes fee for attending Board and Committee meetings, 
boarding and lodging expenses and separate benefit for Chairman of the 
Board in view of additional roles and responsibilities. Details of aggregate 
amount of remuneration separately of executive and non-executive 
directors is presented in the annual report. 

FORMAL ORIENTATION AT INDUCTION
CDC has detailed an orientation plan for new Board members apprising 
them on the Company’s long term strategy, business operations and 
environment, besides encouraging cohesion among the Board members.

Directors’ Training
The Company is committed to arrange orientation course and training 
programs for its directors to apprise them of their duties and 
responsibilities. The Board remained fully compliant with the provision of 
the Code pertaining to Directors training program.

Eight directors of the Company have completed formal directors training 
program and Three Directors have been exempted by the SECP from 
such certification. For the remaining one director, training will be 
scheduled accordingly.  

REVIEW OF RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
As per the requirements of the regulatory framework, the Audit 
Committee reviews details of all related party transactions, before 
approval by the Board in view of recommendations made by the Audit 
Committee.

Pattern of Shareholding
The Pattern of shareholding and categories of shareholders of the 
Company as at June 30, 2019 is presented on page no 180.

Ethics and Compliance
Code of Conduct has been disseminated to all employees and Directors 
of the Company in addition to being available on the Company’s website 
in compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate 
Governance) Regulations, 2017.

Capital Structure and Liquidity Management
The Company’s strategy is to maintain a strong capital base which is built 
on reserves so as to maintain investors’, creditors’ and market 
confidence and to sustain future development of the business. This has 
resulted in Company’s ability to operate in an efficient manner to enable 
it to provide healthy returns for shareholders and benefits for other 
stakeholders.

During the year an amount of Rs. 724 million was generated from 
operating activities of the Company.

At the year end, the Company had a liquid fund position comprising of 
cash/bank balances and short term investments amounting to Rs. 3461 
million.

To ensure sufficient availability of funds at all times whilst generating 
optimum returns through placement of surplus liquidity in various 
available investment avenues, the Company has developed and 
implemented a cash flow monitoring mechanism whereby cash inflows 
and outflows are projected and monitored on regular basis.

The Company is subjected to comply with financial resource 
requirements as envisaged in the Central Depositories (Licensing & 
Operations) Regulations after its promulgation in February 2016.
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Materiality Approach
The management has adopted a materiality approach which is based on 
a combination of stakeholder engagement, understanding of 
environmental limits and strategic alignment. It has made the process, 
assumptions and evidence the base for identifying material issues for 
more transparent, credible and amenable disclosures to have more 
transparency on risk and opportunities.

Key Source of Estimation Uncertainty
The preparation of financial statements is in conformity with approved 
accounting standards requires management to make judgments, 
estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and 
reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses as 
defined in note 2 of Financial Statements.

Appropriations 
The directors in their meeting held on August 29, 2019 have proposed 
bonus shares @ 33.3333% i.e. 50 million shares (2018: 43.91 million 
shares) and cash dividend of Rs. 1.225 per share (2018: Rs. 1.50 per 
share) of Rs. 10 each i.e. 30% of payout and 12.25% of the paid-up capital 
in respect of year ended June 30, 2019. 

The unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 
2019 do not include the effect of these appropriations which will be 
accounted for in the period in which it is approved by shareholders.

Financial Highlights
Key operating and financial data of previous years has been summarized 
on page nos. 56 & 58.

Contribution to National Exchequer and Economy
An amount of PKR 305 Million (2018: PKR 340 Million) was contributed 
during the year in respect of Income tax. As a responsible citizen of our 
country your Company contributed 14.42% (2018: 15.98%) of total 
revenue back to the Economy.

Statement as to the Value of Investment of Provident 
Fund
The value of the investment of the provident fund is PKR 59 Million.  

Subsequent Events
No material changes or commitments affecting the financial position of 
the Company have occurred between the end of the financial year of the 
company and the date of this report. With effect from July 01, 2019, CDC 
has separated its Share Registrar business to wholly owned subsidiary i.e. 
CDC Share Registrar Services Limited.

External Auditors
The present auditors of the company M/s. Grant Thornton Anjum 
Rahman, Chartered Accountants, audited the financial statements of the 
Company and have issued unqualified report to the members. The 
auditors will retire at the conclusion of Annual General Meeting. Being 
eligible, they have offered themselves for re-appointment. However, 
based on the recommendations of the Audit Committee to adopt the 
good practice to rotate the external auditors, the Board has 
recommended the appointment of M/s.  A. F. Ferguson & Co. - Chartered 

Accountants – a member firm of the PwC Network, as auditor for the 
ensuing year subject to approval by members in the 27th Annual General 
Meeting. 

Internal Audit
The Internal Audit function is effectively operating within the framework 
set out in the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2017 and the charter defined by the Audit Committee of the 
Board. The Board relies on the inputs and recommendations of the 
Internal Audit function through its Audit Committee on the adequacy 
and effectiveness of internal controls in the organization and takes 
appropriate measures.
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For and on behalf of the Board

 

MOIN M. FUDDA BADIUDDIN AKBER
Chairman Chief Executive Officer

Karachi, dated: Thursday, August 29, 2019
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 934 996 1,204 1,222 1,072 4%

 403 462 581 637 640 12%

 34 40 65 99 107 33%

2015 2016 2017 2018 2019 CAGR

(Rupees in million) %

Share Registar Services
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mix

Other Income
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Notice of 27th Annual
General Meeting

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the 27th Annual General Meeting of the Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited will be held on Tuesday, 
October 15, 2019 at 4:30 p.m. at its registered office situated at CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S, Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400 to transact 
the following business:

Ordinary Business:

1. To receive and adopt the annual audited unconsolidated and consolidated Accounts of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019, together 
with the Directors’ and Auditors’ Reports thereon and Statement of Compliance with Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) 
Regulations, 2017.

2. To consider and declare cash dividend of Rs. 1.225 per share of Rs. 10 each i.e. 30% of payout and 12.25% of the paid-up capital and bonus shares 
@ 33.3333% to the shareholders as recommended by the Board of Directors of the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019.

3. To appoint Auditors of the Company for the year ending June 30, 2020 and fix their remuneration.

By order of the Board,

Shariq Jafrani
CFO & Company Secretary       

Karachi, Dated: Monday, September 23, 2019

Notes:

1. A corporation or any other company registered under the Companies Act, 2017/Companies Ordinance, 1984, where such corporation or such 
other company, is a member of the company may, by resolution of its directors, authorise any of its officials or any other person to act as its 
authorized representative at the proposed general meeting of the Company, and the person so authorised shall be entitled to exercise the same 
powers on behalf of such corporation or such other company if he was an individual shareholder of the Company.

2. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote may appoint another member as his / her proxy to attend and vote instead of him / her. 

3. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or of his Attorney duly authorised in writing or if such 
appointer is a corporation under its common seal or the hand of its Attorney.

4. The proxy form shall be witnessed by two persons whose names, addresses and CNIC numbers shall be mentioned on the form.

5. Attested copies of CNIC or the passport of the proxy shall be furnished with the proxy form.

6. The proxy shall produce his / her original CNIC or original passport at the time of the meeting if requested.

7. The instrument appointing a proxy and the Power-of-Attorney or other authority (if any), under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy 
of that power or authority, shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company not less than forty eight hours before the time of above 
general meeting of the Company.

8. Members are requested to promptly notify any change in their address.

Book Closure:

The Share Transfer Books of the Company will remain closed on October 14, 2019 and October 15, 2019. Transfer received in order at the Registered 
Office of the Company located at CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S., Main Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi-74400 before the said date shall be treated in 
time, subject to Article 11 of Company’s Articles of Association, for any corporate entitlements approved by the members.
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Payment of Cash Dividend through the Chosen Mode:

In terms of Companies (Distribution of Dividend) Regulations, 2017, dividend payable in cash shall only be paid through the mode chosen by the 
respective shareholder via its mandate. 

If any shareholder wishes to change the mandate provided, it shall do so in writing during the year, which shall become applicable and effective for any 
future cash dividend pay-outs.

Deduction of Income tax from Dividend at Revised Rates:
 
Pursuant to the provisions of Finance Act, 2018, effective 01 July, 2018, the deduction of income tax from dividend payments shall be made on the basis 
of filers and non-filers.

Income Tax will be deducted on the basis of Active Tax Payers List posted on the Federal Board of Revenue website.

Members seeking exemption from deduction of income tax or are eligible for deduction at a reduced rate are requested to submit a valid tax certificate 
or necessary documentary evidence, as the case maybe.

The Shareholders who have joint shareholdings held by filers and non-filers shall be dealt with separately and in such particular situation, each account 
holder is to be treated as either a Filer or a Non-Filer and tax will be deducted  according to his shareholding. If the share is not ascertainable, then 
each account holder will be assumed to hold equal proportion of shares and the deduction will be made accordingly. Therefore, in order to avoid 
deduction of tax at a higher rate, the joint account holders are requested to provide the below details of their shareholding to the Share Registrar of 
the Company.

Unclaimed Dividend:

Shareholders who by any reason could not collect their dividend are advised to contact the Company to collect / enquire about their unclaimed 
dividend, if any. In compliance with Section 244 of the Companies Act, 2017, after having completed the stipulated procedure, all such dividends 
outstanding for a period of 3 years or more from the date due shall be deposited to the credit of Federal Government.

Folio /CDC
Account No

Name of
Shareholder CNIC Shareholding Total

Shares
Principal /Joint
Shareholder
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Statement of Compliance with Listed
Companies (Code of Corporate
Governance) Regulations, 2017
for the year ending June 30, 2019

The Company has complied with the requirements of the Regulations to the extent consistent with the provisions of the Securities Act, 2015 (III of 
2015) rules and regulations made thereunder, in the following manner:

1. The Company encourages representation of independent non-executive Directors on its Board of Directors. At present the Board comprises 
of following male directors:

2. The directors have confirmed that none of them is serving as a director on more than five listed companies, including this company (excluding 
the listed subsidiaries of listed holding companies where applicable). 

3. The company has prepared a Code of Conduct and has ensured that appropriate steps have been taken to disseminate it throughout the 
Company along with its supporting policies and procedures. 

4. A casual vacancy occurred in the Board as mentioned in the last year’s Statement of Compliance was filled in the current financial year within 
prescribed time. Casual vacancies occurred in the Board during the year were filled up by the directors in accordance with the Company’s 
Articles of Association.  

5. The board has developed a vision/mission statement, overall corporate strategy and significant policies of the Company. A complete record of 
particulars of significant policies along with the dates on which they were approved or amended has been maintained. 

6. The management has adopted a materiality approach which is based on a combination of stakeholder engagement, understanding of 
environmental limits and strategic alignment. It has made the process, assumptions and evidence the base for identifying material issues for more 
transparent, credible and amenable disclosures to have more transparency on risk and opportunities.

7. All the powers of the board have been duly exercised and decisions on relevant matters have been taken by board/ shareholders as empowered 
by the relevant provisions of the Act and these Regulations. 

8. The meetings of the board were presided over by the Chairman and, in his absence, by a director elected by the board for this purpose. The 
board has complied with the requirements of Act and the Regulations with respect to frequency, recording and circulating minutes of meeting 
of board. 

9. The board of directors have a formal policy and transparent procedures for remuneration of directors in accordance with the Act and these 
Regulations. 

Category Names

Independent Directors Mr. Moin M. Fudda

 Syed Majid Ali 

 Syed Masoud Ali Naqvi 

 Mr. Aqeel Ahmed Nasir

Non-Executive Directors Mr. Muhammad Ashraf Bawany

 Mr. Ahmed Chinoy

 Mr. Abid Ali Habib

 Mr. Muhammad Sibghatullah Khalid

 Mr. Shahnawaz Mahmood

 Dr. Aamir Matin

 Mr. Muhammad Tariq Rafi

Executive Director (CEO) Mr. Badiuddin Akber
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10. The Company is committed to arrange orientation course and training programs for its directors to apprise them of their duties and 
responsibilities. Eight directors of the Company have completed formal directors training program whereas three directors are exempted from 
the mandatory requirement under CCG for acquiring DTP certification. For the remaining one directors, training will be scheduled accordingly.  

11. There was no new appointment of Chief Financial Officer (“CFO”), Company Secretary and Head of Internal Audit during the year. The board 
has approved remuneration of CFO & Company Secretary and Chief Internal Auditor. 

12. CFO and CEO duly endorsed the financial statements before approval of the board. 

13. The board has formed statutory committees comprising of members given below: 

 a. Audit Committee

 b. Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

Syed Masoud Ali Naqvi Chairman (Independent Director)

Syed Majid Ali Member (Independent Director)

Mr. Muhammad Ashraf Bawany Member

Mr. Ahmed Chinoy Member

Mr. Muhammad Sibghatullah Khalid Member

Mr. Moin M. Fudda Chairman (Independent Director)

Mr. Badiuddin Akber Member

Syed Majid Ali Member (Independent Director)

Mr. Abid Ali Habib Member

Mr. Muhammad Sibghatullah Khalid Member

 c. Nomination & Compensation Committee

Mr. Moin M. Fudda Chairman (Independent Director)

Mr. Badiuddin Akber Member

Syed Masoud Ali Naqvi Member (Independent Director)

Mr. Aqeel Ahmed Nasir Member (Independent Director)

Mr. Muhammad Tariq Rafi Member

 d. Risk & Regulatory Affairs Committee

Syed Majid Ali Chairman (Independent Director)

Mr. Badiuddin Akber Member

Mr. Abid Ali Habib Member

Mr. Shahnawaz Mahmood Member

Mr. Aqeel Ahmed Nasir Member (Independent Director)

14. The terms of reference of the aforesaid committees have been formed, documented and advised to the committees for compliance. 

15. The frequency of meetings (quarterly/half yearly/ yearly) of the committee were as per following: 

 a) Audit Committee 

 The meetings of the Audit Committee were held at least once every quarter prior to approval of interim and final results of the Company as 
required by the CCG. 
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 b) Human Resource & Remuneration Committee

 The meetings of the Human Resource & Remuneration Committee were held at least once every quarter.  
 
 c) Nomination & Compensation Committee

 The meetings of the Nomination & Compensation Committee were held on need basis. 
 
 d) Risk and Regulatory Affairs Committee   
 
 The meetings of the Risk and Regulatory Affairs Committee were held at least once every quarter.  

16. The board has set up an effective internal audit function.

17. The statutory auditors of the Company have confirmed that they have been given a satisfactory rating under the quality control review program 
of the ICAP and registered with Audit Oversight Board of Pakistan, that they or any of the partners of the firm, their spouses and minor children 
do not hold shares of the Company and that the firm and all its partners are in compliance with International Federation of Accountants (IFAC) 
guidelines on code of ethics as adopted by the ICAP.

18. The statutory auditors or the persons associated with them have not been appointed to provide other services except in accordance with the 
Act, these regulations or any other regulatory requirement and the auditors have confirmed that they have observed IFAC guidelines in this 
regard. 

19. We confirm that all other requirements of the Regulations have been complied with. 

Karachi, dated:  Thursday, August 29, 2019

-sd-
MOIN M. FUDDA

Chairman

-sd-
BADIUDDIN AKBER

Chief Executive Officer
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Review Report to the Members
on the Statement of Compliance
with the Code of Corporate
Governance

We have reviewed the enclosed Statement of Compliance with the Listed Companies (Code of Corporate Governance) Regulations, 2017 (the 
Regulations) prepared by the Board of Directors of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (the Company) for the year ended June 30, 2019 
in accordance with the requirements of regulation 40 of the Regulations as mandated under the Central Depositories (Licensing and Operations) 
Regulations, 2016.

The responsibility for compliance with the Regulations is that of the Board of Directors of the Company. Our responsibility is to review whether the 
Statement of Compliance reflects the status of the Company's compliance with the provisions of the Regulations and report if it does not and to 
highlight any non-compliance with the requirements of the Regulations. A review is limited primarily to inquiries of the Company's personnel and review 
of various documents prepared by the Company to comply with the Regulations.

As a part of our audit of the financial statements we are required to obtain an understanding of the accounting and internal control systems sufficient 
to plan the audit and develop an effective audit approach. We are not required to consider whether the Board of Directors’ statement on internal 
control covers all risks and controls or to form an opinion on the effectiveness of such internal controls, the Company's corporate governance 
procedures and risks.

The Regulations requires the Company to place before the Audit Committee, and upon recommendation of the Audit Committee, place before the 
Board of Directors for their review and approval its related party transactions and also ensure compliance with the requirements of section 208 of the 
Companies Act, 2017. We are only required and have ensured compliance of this requirement to the extent of the approval of the related party 
transactions by the Board of Directors upon recommendation of the Audit Committee. We have not carried out procedures to assess and determine 
the Company’s process for identification of related parties and that whether the related party transactions were undertaken at arm’s length price or 
not.

Based on our review, nothing has come to our attention which causes us to believe that the Statement of Compliance does not appropriately reflect 
the Company's compliance, in all material respects, with the Regulations as applicable to the Company for the year ended June 30, 2019.

Karachi    Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Dated: August 29, 2019 Chartered Accountants
   Muhammad Khalid Aziz
   Engagement Partner

Chartered Accountants
Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd

Offices in Islamabad, Lahore

GRANT THORNTON ANJUM RAHMAN
1st & 3rd Floor, 
Modern Motors House
Beaumont Road,
Karachi 75530

T +92 021 3567 2952-56
F +92 021 3568 8834
www.gtpak.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBER OF THE CENTRAL DEPOSITORY
COMPANY OF PAKISTAN LIMITED

Report on the Audit of Unconsolidated Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the annexed unconsolidated financial statements of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (the Company), which comprise 
the unconsolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 2019, and the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss account and unconsolidated 
statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity, the unconsolidated statement of cash flows for the year then 
ended, and notes to the unconsolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory information, 
and we state that we have obtained all the information and explanations which, to the best of our knowledge and belief, were necessary for the 
purposes of the audit.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the 
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss account, the unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes 
in equity and the unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with the notes forming part thereof conform with the accounting and reporting 
standards as applicable in Pakistan and give the information required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017), in the manner so required and 
respectively give a true and fair view of the state of the Company's affairs as at June 30, 2019 and of the profit and other comprehensive loss, the changes 
in equity and its cash flows for the year then ended.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of 
the Company in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants as adopted by 
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Information other than the Unconsolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The management is responsible for other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not 
include the unconsolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the unconsolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the unconsolidated financial statements, our responsibility as to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the unconsolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the unconsolidated financial statements in accordance with the accounting and 
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and the requirements of Companies Act, 2017(XIX of 2017) and for such internal control as management 
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the unconsolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, 
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate 
the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Chartered Accountants
Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd

Offices in Islamabad, Lahore

GRANT THORNTON ANJUM RAHMAN
1st & 3rd Floor, 
Modern Motors House
Beaumont Road,
Karachi 75530

T +92 021 3567 2952-56
F +92 021 3568 8834
www.gtpak.com
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the unconsolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material 
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of 
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be 
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these unconsolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 
the audit. We also: 

 • Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the unconsolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 • Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Company’s internal control.

 • Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management.

 • Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue 
as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit 
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue 
as a going concern.

 • Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the financial 
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the board of directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards. 

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

Based on our audit, we further report that in our opinion: 

 a) proper books of account have been kept by the Company as required by the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017);

 b) the unconsolidated statement of financial position, the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss account and the unconsolidated statement 
of comprehensive income, the unconsolidated statement of changes in equity and the unconsolidated statement of cash flows together with 
the notes thereon have been drawn up in conformity with the Companies Act, 2017 (XIX of 2017) and are in agreement with the books of 
account and returns;

 c) investments made, expenditure incurred and guarantees extended during the year were for the purpose of the Company’s business; and 

 d) no zakat was deductible at source under the Zakat and Ushr Ordinance, 1980 (XVIII of 1980).

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Muhammad Khalid Aziz. 

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants

Karachi
Dated: August 29, 2019

Chartered Accountants
Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd

Offices in Islamabad, Lahore
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Unconsolidated Statement of financial position

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 
 
Share capital and reserves 
 
Authorised share capital 
250,000,000 (2018: 150,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each   2,500,000,000   1,500,000,000 

Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 
150,000,000 (2018: 106,090,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 5  1,500,000,000   1,060,900,000 

Reserves 
Reserve fund   100,000,000   100,000,000 
Unappropriated profit   2,279,778,553   2,258,962,946 
Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of investments at fair value  
 through other comprehensive income - net   381,719   (216,254)
Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment - net 6  699,910,981   711,360,913 
    3,080,071,253   3,070,107,605 
 Total shareholders' equity    4,580,071,253   4,131,007,605 

Non-current liabilities 
Long term deposits 7  129,301,460   123,373,500 
Deferred taxation - net 8  99,467,227   111,316,286 
 Total non-current liabilities   228,768,687   234,689,786 
 
Current liabilities 
Trade and other payables 9  497,835,933   518,147,026 
Unearned fee 10  55,190,798   46,917,167 
Taxation - net 11  -     11,888,337 
 Total current liabilities   553,026,731   576,952,530 
Total liabilities   781,795,418   811,642,316 
 
Contingencies and commitments 12 -    -   
Total equity and liabilities   5,361,866,671   4,942,649,921 
 
ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
Fixed assets 
Property and equipment  13.1  1,237,816,594   1,293,880,480 
Intangibles 13.2  157,698,292   137,513,529 
    1,395,514,886   1,431,394,009 
Long term investments 14  100,000,000   100,000,000 
Long term loans - secured 15  72,585,413   59,357,334 
Long term deposits and prepayments 16  11,267,170   7,015,328 
 Total non-current assets   1,579,367,469   1,597,766,671 
Current assets 
Trade debts - net 17  258,672,368   265,653,638 
Loans and advances 18  13,950,376   12,908,374 
Prepayments 19  28,455,915   23,010,839 
Other receivables 20  14,835,397   13,753,448 
Taxation - net 11  5,368,660   -   
Short term investments  21  3,414,350,928   2,976,249,077 
Cash and bank balances 22  46,865,558   53,307,874 
 Total current assets   3,782,499,202   3,344,883,250 
 
Total assets     5,361,866,671   4,942,649,921 
 

The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
As at June 30, 2019

Note
 June 30, 2019

Rupees
 June 30, 2018

Rupees

Chairman

-sd- -sd-
Chief Executive Officer

98



Chairman

-sd- -sd-
Chief Executive Officer

Operating income - net 23  1,704,505,143   1,852,122,005 
 
Operating and administrative expenses 24  (1,123,370,737)  (1,009,584,347)
 
Operating profit   581,134,406   842,537,658 
 
Other income 25  304,318,734   175,868,758 
 
Other expenses 26  (8,767,545)  (34,754,295)
 
Financial charges 27  (163,043)  (178,938)
    295,388,146   140,935,525 
 
Profit before tax - continued operations   876,522,552   983,473,183 
 
Income tax expense  28  (270,737,953)  (326,604,986)
 
Profit after tax - continued operations   605,784,599   656,868,197 
 
Profit after tax - discontinued operations 34  10,538,076   12,116,346 
 
Profit for the year   616,322,675   668,984,543 
 
     (Restated) 
    
Earnings per share from continued operations- basic and diluted   4.04  4.38 
 
Earnings per share from discontinued operations- basic and diluted   0.07  0.08 
 
Earnings per share - basic and diluted  29 4.11  4.46 
 
The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements. 

Note
 June 30, 2019

Rupees
 June 30, 2018

Rupees

Unconsolidated Profit and Loss Account
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2019
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Profit after tax - continued operations  605,784,599   656,868,197 
Profit after tax - discontinued operations  10,538,076   12,116,346 
Profit for the year  616,322,675   668,984,543 
 
Other comprehensive (loss) / income 
 
Items that may be reclassified to unconsolidated statement of profit 
or loss account subsequently 
Unrealised gain / (loss) on investments classified at fair value through other comprehensive income  928,342   (323,264)
Impact of deferred tax  (330,369)  96,979 
   597,973   (226,285)
Items that will never be reclassified to unconsolidated statement of profit  
or loss account 
Loss on remeasurement of retirement benefit obligation  (8,722,000)  (44,096,000)
Impact of current tax  -     14,551,680 
   (8,722,000)  (29,544,320)
 
Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment   -     -   
Impact of deferred tax  -     3,271,409 
  -     3,271,409 
 
Total other comprehensive loss  (8,124,027)  (26,499,196)
 
Total comprehensive income for the year  608,198,648   642,485,347 
 
The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements. 

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
Rupees

Chairman

-sd- -sd-
Chief Executive Officer

Unconsolidated Statement of
Comprehensive Income
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2019
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-sd- -sd-
Chief Executive Officer

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Profit before tax - continued operations   876,522,552   983,473,183 
Profit before tax - discontinued operations   15,247,765   18,140,780 
Profit for the year   891,770,317   1,001,613,963 
 
Adjustments for items not involving movement of funds 
Depreciation on property and equipment 13.1.1  139,334,858   111,504,419 
Amortization of intangibles 13.2.1  48,826,442   42,227,342 
Gain on disposal of property and equipment 25  (5,713,829)  (1,865,585)
Profit on bank deposits 25  (12,429,612)  (4,609,312)
Financial charges 27  163,043   178,938 
Reversal of workers' welfare fund   (13,745,902)  -   
Provision for compensated absences   4,221,427   8,261,962 
Provision for retirement benefit plans 31.3  37,000,000   28,954,000 
    197,656,427   184,651,764 
 Operating profit before working capital changes   1,089,426,744   1,186,265,727 
 
(Increase) / decrease in current assets 
 
Trade debts - net   6,981,270   77,850,744 
Loans and advances   (1,042,002)  442,144 
Prepayments   (5,445,076)  (4,687,875)
Other receivables   (1,081,949)  3,833,834 
    (587,757)  77,438,847 
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities 
 
Trade and other payables   (14,127,422)  (3,759,121)
Short term deposits   -     (460,500)
Unearned fees   8,273,631   2,551,545 
    (5,853,791)  (1,668,076)
 
Increase in loans (assets)   (13,228,079)  (16,845,734)
Decrease / (increase) in deposits and prepayments (assets)   (4,251,842)  4,185,057 
Increase in long term deposits (liabilities)   5,927,960   4,798,000 
    (11,551,961)  (7,862,677)
Cash generated from operations   1,071,433,236   1,254,173,822 
 
Contribution paid to retirement benefit plans 31.2  (37,000,000)  (32,336,000)
Compensated absences paid   (5,381,196)  (2,075,996)
Financial charges paid    (163,043)  (178,938)
Income tax paid   (304,884,068)  (339,756,601)
    (347,428,307)  (374,347,535)
 Net cash generated from operating activities   724,004,929   879,826,287 
 
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Capital expenditure incurred-net   (158,178,310)  (264,058,234)
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment   11,609,962   2,536,248 
Mark-up received    12,429,612   9,940,882 
Investments - net   928,342   (323,264)
 Net cash used in investing activities   (133,210,394)  (251,904,368)
 
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
 
Dividend paid   (159,135,000)  (183,000,000)
 Net cash used in financing activities   (159,135,000)  (183,000,000)
 Net increase in cash and cash equivalents   431,659,535   444,921,919 
 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning   3,029,556,951   2,584,635,032 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end 30  3,461,216,486   3,029,556,951 
 
The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements. 

Note
 June 30, 2019

Rupees
 June 30, 2018

Rupees

Unconsolidated Statement of Cash Flows
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2019
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Chairman

-sd- -sd-
Chief Executive Officer

Balance as at July 1, 2017    1,000,000,000   100,000,000   1,851,972,791   10,031   719,539,436   3,671,522,258 
 
Comprehensive income for the year 
 
   -  Profit after income tax    -     -     668,984,543   -     -     668,984,543 
   -  Other comprehensive loss   -     -     (29,544,320)  (226,285)  3,271,409   (26,499,196)
Total comprehensive income for the year   -     -     639,440,223   (226,285)  3,271,409   642,485,347 
 
Transactions with owners, recognised  
directly in equity 
Final dividend @ 18.3% (i.e. Rs. 1.83 per share)   -     -     (183,000,000)  -     -     (183,000,000)
 
Bonus shares @ 6.09% (i.e. 6.09 million shares)   60,900,000   -     (60,900,000)  -     -     -   
Total transactions with owners   60,900,000   -     (243,900,000)  -     -     (183,000,000)
 
Transferred from surplus on revaluation of 
fixed assets on account of incremental 
depreciation - net of deferred tax 6  -     -     11,449,932   -     (11,449,932)  -     

Balance as at  June 30, 2018   1,060,900,000   100,000,000   2,258,962,946  (216,254)  711,360,913  4,131,007,605 
 
Balance as at July 1, 2018   1,060,900,000   100,000,000   2,258,962,946   (216,254)  711,360,913   4,131,007,605 
 
Comprehensive income for the year 
 
   -  Profit after income tax    -     -     616,322,675   -     -     616,322,675 
   -  Other comprehensive loss   -     -     (8,722,000)  597,973   -     (8,124,027)
Total comprehensive income for the year   -     -     607,600,675   597,973   -     608,198,648 
 
Transactions with owners, recognised  
directly in equity 
 
Final dividend @ 15% (i.e. Rs. 1.50 per share)   -     -     (159,135,000)  -     -     (159,135,000)
 
Bonus shares @ 41.3894% (i.e. 43.91 million shares)   439,100,000   -     (439,100,000)  -     -     -   
Total transactions with owners   439,100,000   -     (598,235,000)  -     -     (159,135,000)
 
Transferred from surplus on revaluation of 
fixed assets on account of incremental 
depreciation - net of deferred tax 6  -     -     11,449,932   -     (11,449,932)  -   

Balance as at  June 30, 2019   1,500,000,000   100,000,000   2,279,778,553   381,719   699,910,981   4,580,071,253 
 
* The Reserve fund is a revenue reserve which has been created in accordance with the requirements of the Articles of Association of the Company. 
 
The annexed notes from 1 to 41 form an integral part of these unconsolidated financial statements.

Unconsolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2019

 Total 
 shareholders' 

 equity 

Surplus on
revaluation of
property and

equipment - net

Surplus on
revaluation of

investments at fair
value through

OCI - net
………………………………………………………………...Rupees………………………………………………………………...Note

 Unappropriated 
profit

* Reserve 
fund

Issued,
subscribed
and paid-up
share capital
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1 LEGAL STATUS AND NATURE OF BUSINESS 
 
 Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (the Company) was incorporated as a public company with its liability limited by shares on 

January 21, 1993 and received certificate of commencement of business on August 10, 1994.  The principal business activities of the Company 
are to act as a depository for securities, open securities account and acts as a registrar to the issuer of securities. The registered office of the 
Company is situated at CDC House, 99-B, Block B, S.M.C.H.S. Karachi, Pakistan. 

 
 The Company under trust deeds acts as a trustee for various open-end funds and closed-end schemes under the Non Banking Finance 

Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and also provides custodial-ship to closed-end funds formed under the said regulations. 
 
 The Company also provides custody and settlement services for Government securities to retail investor and is also managing Centralized 

Information Sharing Solution for Insurance Industry (CISSII).  
 
 The Company has two wholly owned subsidiaries with the names of ITMinds Limited (ITML) and CDC Share Registrar Services Limited 

(CSRSL).  
 
2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION 
 
2.1 Statement of compliance 
 
 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the approved accounting standards as 

applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) as are notified under the Companies  Act, 2017, provisions of and directives issued under the 
Companies Act, 2017. Wherever the requirements of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the requirements of IFRS, 
the requirements of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 shall prevail. 

 
 These unconsolidated financial statements comprise unconsolidated statement of financial position, unconsolidated statement of profit or loss 

account , unconsolidated statement of comprehensive income, unconsolidated statement of cash flows and unconsolidated statement of 
changes in equity together with the notes forming part thereof. 

 
2.2 Standards, Amendments and Interpretations to Approved Accounting Standards  
 
2.2.1 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant to the Company and adopted in the current 

year 
 
 The Company has adopted the following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations of IFRSs which became 

effective during the current year.  
 
 Standard or Interpretation Effective Date 
  (Annual periods  beginning 
  on or after) 
 
 IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' July 01, 2018 
 
 IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' July 01, 2018 
 
 Adoption of the above standard have no significant effect on the amounts for the year ended June 30, 2019. 

2.2.2 Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective but not relevant

 The other new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the financial year beginning on July 
01, 2018 are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Company's financial reporting and operations and are 
therefore not presented here. 

2.2.3 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant but not yet effective and not early adopted 
by the Company

 The following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations would be effective from the dates mentioned below 
against the respective standard or interpretation.
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 Standard or Interpretation Effective Date 
  (Annual periods beginning 
  on or after) 
 
 
  IFRS 16 'Leases' January 01, 2019 
 
 IFRIC 23 'Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments' January 01, 2019 
 
 IAS 28 'Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures' (Amendments to IAS 28) January 01, 2019 
 
 
 Annual improvements to IFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle January 01, 2019 
 
 IAS 19 'Plan Amendment, Curtail or Settlement' (Amendments to IAS 19) January 01, 2019 
 
 IFRS 3 'Definition of a business' Amendment to IFRS 3 January 01, 2020 
 
 IAS 1/IAS 8 'Definition of Material' (Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8) January 01, 2020 
 
 Various Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards January 01, 2020 
 
 The Company is in the process of assessing the impact of these Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards on the 

unconsolidated financial statements of the Company. 
 
2.2.4 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not yet notified by the Securities and Exchange 

Commission of Pakistan (SECP) 
 
 Following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) which are yet to be notified by the SECP for 

the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.  
  
  IASB effective date 
  Standard or Interpretation (Annual periods beginning 
  on or after) 
 
 
 IFRS 17 'Insurance Contracts' January 01, 2022 
 
 IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral accounts January 01, 2016 
 
 IFRS 1 - First time adoption of International Financial Reporting July 01, 2009 
 
2.3 Basis of measurement 
 
2.3.1 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for recognition of staff retirement 

benefits at present value based on actuarial valuation, lease hold land and building at revalued amount and measurement of certain investments 
at fair value and amortized cost. 

 
2.3.2 These unconsolidated financial statements have been prepared following accrual basis of accounting except for statement of cash flows.  
 
2.3.3 The preparation of  unconsolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards as applicable in Pakistan requires 

management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, 
income and expenses. The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed 
to be reasonable under the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and 
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying 
assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are 
revised if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future 
periods. The areas involving a higher degree of judgment or complexity or area where assumptions and estimates are significant to the 
unconsolidated financial statements are as follows:
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  Note

 a) Staff retirement benefits 4.1
 b) Useful life of operating property and equipment and intangible assets 4.2
 c) Investments 4.5
 d) Impairment of doubtful trade debts 4.6
 e) Provision for taxation and deferred taxation 4.10
 f) Revaluation of land and building 4.2 & 13
 
 Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectation of future 

events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management believes that changes in outcome of estimates will not have 
material effect on the unconsolidated financial statements. 

 
2.4 General 
 
 The figures have been rounded off to the nearest rupee. 
 
3 PRESENTATION AND FUNCTIONAL CURRENCY 
 
 The unconsolidated financial statements have been presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Company's functional and presentation currency. 

4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
 The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these unconsolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies and 

methods of computation have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated. 
 
4.1 Staff retirement benefits 
 
4.1.1 Defined benefit plan 
 
 The Company operates a defined benefit plan i.e. funded gratuity fund for all its confirmed employees who have completed minimum qualifying 

period of service as per the laid down rules and joined before January 01, 2014. Contributions are made monthly to this fund on the basis of 
actuarial recommendations. The amount arising as a result of remeasurements are recognized in the statement of financial position immediately, 
with a charge or credit to other comprehensive income in the periods in which they occur. The significant actuarial assumptions are stated in 
note 31. 

 
4.1.2 Defined contribution plan 
 
 The Company also operates two defined contribution plans i.e. provident fund and a defined contribution gratuity fund. 
 
 Provident fund 
 
 The Company operates an approved contributory provident fund for all employees. Equal monthly contributions at the rate of 10% of basic 

salary are made to the fund both by the Company and the employees. 
 
 Defined Contribution (DC) Gratuity fund 
 
 The Company has established a defined contribution plan - DC Gratuity Fund for permanent employees who joined on or after January 1, 2014. 

Contributions are made by the Company to the plan at the rate of 8.33% per annum of the basic salary. 
 
4.1.3 Other benefits 
 
 Compensated absences 
 
 The Company has the policy to provide for encashable compensated absences of its employees in accordance with respective entitlement on 

cessation of services. Related expected cost thereof has been recognized in the unconsolidated financial statements on the basis of actuarial 
recommendation.
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4.2 Property and equipment 
 
 Owned 
 
 These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any: except for land and building which are stated 

at revalued amounts less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any. Individual items 
costing Rs. 25,000 or less are not capitalized and treated as a period cost. Borrowing cost is dealt with as stated in note 4.3 of these 
unconsolidated financial statements. 

 
 Depreciation is calculated on a straight line method at the rates given in note 13.1.1 and is charged to statement of profit or loss account. 

Depreciation on additions during the year is charged from the month of addition, while no depreciation is charged in the month of 
retirement/disposal. 

 
 The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end. 
 
 Normal repairs and maintenance costs are charged to statement of profit and loss account in the period of their occurrence, while major 

renovations and improvements are capitalized. Gain or loss on disposal is taken to income currently. 
 
 Revaluation of assets 
 
 Revaluation is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from the fair value. 

Any surplus on revaluation of fixed assets is credited to the surplus on revaluation of property and equipment. Incremental depreciation arising 
on such revaluation will be charged from subsequent month of revaluation. 

 
 Leased 
 
 The Company accounts for assets acquired under finance leases by recording the assets and the related liability. These amounts are determined 

at the inception of lease, on the basis of the lower of the fair value and the present value of minimum lease payments. Financial charges are 
allocated to the accounting period in a manner so as to provide a constant rate of charge on the outstanding liability. Depreciation is charged 
to income applying the same basis as for owned assets. 

 
 Capital work-in-progress 
 
 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. All operating assets are routed through capital work-in-progress 

account. All expenditures, including payroll, connected to the specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried 
under capital work-in-progress. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets are available for use. 

 
4.2.1 Intangibles 
 
 Costs that are directly associated with identifiable software products controlled by the Company and have probable economic benefit beyond 

one year are recognized as intangible assets. 
 
 Amortization is charged from the month of addition to the month preceding the month of retirement / disposal, and the amortization period 

for software is five years. 
 
 Software under implementation 
 
 Software under implementation is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. Expenditures connected to the specific software under 

implementation incurred during development period are carried under software under implementation. These are transferred to specific assets 
as and when assets are available for use. 

 
 Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. These are amortized using the straight line 

method reflecting the pattern in which the economic benefits of the assets are consumed by the Company.

4.2.2 Impairment of non-financial assets

 The carrying amounts of non financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether there is any indication of impairment. If 
any such indication exists then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized, as an expense in the 
unconsolidated statement of profit or loss account, for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The 
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and value in use. Value in use is ascertained through discounting of the 
estimated future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to 
the assets. For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels at which they are generating separately identifiable 
cash flows (cash generating units).
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4.3 Borrowing costs 
 
 Borrowing costs are interest or other costs incurred by the Company in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost that is 

directly attributable to a qualifying asset is capitalized as part of cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to unconsolidated 
statement of profit or loss account  in the period in which they are incurred. 

 
4.4 Investment in subsidiary companies 
 
 Investment in subsidiary companies is stated at cost less accumulated impairment losses, if any. In arriving at the impairment in respect of any 

diminution in the value of these investments, consideration is given only if there is a permanent impairment in the value of these investments. 

4.5 IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments - Initial Recognition and subsequent measurement
 
 Initial recognition 
 
 All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given or received. These are 

subsequently measured at fair value, amortized cost or cost as the case may be. 
 
 Classification of financial assets 
 
 The Company classifies its financial instruments in the following categories:
 - at fair value through profit or loss (""FVTPL"")
 - at fair value through other comprehensive income (""FVTOCI""), or
 - at amortized cost 
 
 The Company determines the classifications of financial assets at initial recognition. The classification of instruments (other than equity 

instruments) is driven by the Company's business model for managing the financial assets and their contractual cash flow characteristics. 
 
 Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortized cost: 
 
 - the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and  

 - the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified date to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding. 

 
 Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCI: 
 
 - the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial 

assets; and  
 
 - the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified date to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 

principal amount outstanding. 
 
 By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL. 

 Classification of financial liabilities 
 
 The Company classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories: 
 
 - at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"), or 
 
 - at amortized cost 
 
 Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost, unless they are required to be measured at FVTPL (such as instrument held for trading or 

derivatives) or the Company has opted to measure them  at FVTPL. 
 
 Subsequent measurement    

 i) Financial assets at FVTOCI    

 Elected investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are 
measured at fair value, with gains or losses arising from changes in fair value recognized in other comprehensive income/loss. 
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 ii) Financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost 
 
 Financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost are initially recognized at fair value, and subsequently carried at amortized cost, and in the case 

of financial assets, less any impairment. 
 
 iii) Financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL 
 
 Financial assets and liabilities carried at FVTPL are initially recorded at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the unconsolidated 

statement of profit or loss account. Realised and unrealised gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets and liabilities 
held at FVTPL are included in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss account in the period in which they arise. 

 
 Where the management has opted to recognise a financial liability at FVTPL, any changes associated with the Company's own credit risk will 

be recognised in other comprehensive income/(loss). Currently, there are no financial liabilities designated at FVTPL. 
 
 Impairment of financial assets 
 
 The Company recognises loss allowance for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on financial assets measured at amortized cost and FVTOCI at an 

amount equal to life time ECLs except for the financial assets in which there is no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or 
financial assets which are determine to have low credit risk at the reporting date, in which case twelve months' ECL is recorded. The following 
were either determine to have low or there was no credit risk since initial recognition and at the reporting date: 

 
 - bank balances; 
 
 - employee receivable; and  
 
 - other receivables. 
 
 Loss allowance for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to life time ECLs. 
 
 Life time ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. Twelve months ECLs are 

portion of ECL that result from default events that are possible within twelve months after the reporting date. 
 
 ECLs are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured at the present value of all cash short falls (i.e. the 

difference between cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and cash flows that the company expects to receive). 
 
 The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Company has no reasonable expectation of recovering a financial asset 

in entirely or a portion thereof.  
 
 Derecognition 
 
 i) Financial assets 
 
 The Company derecognises financial assets only when the contractual rights to cash flows from the financial assets expire or when it transfer 

the financial assets and substantially all the associated risks and reward of ownership to another entity. On derecognition of financial assets 
measured at amortized cost, the difference between the assets carrying value and the sum of the consideration received and receivable 
recognised in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss account. In addition, on derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified 
as at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve reclassified to unconsolidated 
statement of profit or loss account. In contrast, on derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Company has elected on 
initial recognition to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not 
reclassified to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss account, but is transferred to statement of changes in equity.

 ii) Financial liabilities

 The Company derecognises financial liabilities only when its obligations under the financial liabilities are discharged, cancelled or expired. The 
difference between the carrying amount of the financial liabilities derecognised and the consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash 
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognised in unconsolidated statement of profit or loss account.    

 Financial assets - policy upto June 30, 2018

 Trade debts and other receivable were recognised initially at fair value plus directly attributable, if any and subsequently, at amortized cost less 
impairment, if any. Provision for impairment of trade and other receivable was established when there is an objective evidence that the Company 
will not be able to collect all amounts due according to terms of receivables. Trade receivable considered irrecoverable were written off. 
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 Off-setting of financial assets and liabilities 
 
 Financial assets and liabilities are off set and the net amount is reported in the unconsolidated statement of financial position if the Company 

has a legal right to set-off the transactions and also intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability 
simultaneously. 

 
4.6 Trade debts and other receivables 
 
 Trade debts and other receivables are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any. Refer note 4.5 for a description of the Company's impairment 

policies. 
 
4.7 Provisions, contingencies and commitments 
 
 A provision is recognized in the unconsolidated statement of financial position when the Company has a legal or constructive obligation as a 

result of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a 
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of obligation. 

 
 No liability is recognised if an outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is not probable. Such situations are disclosed as 

contingent liabilities unless the outflow of resources is remote. 
 
 Commitments for outstanding capital expenditure contracts are disclosed in these unconsolidated financial statements at committed amounts.  

4.8 Trade and other payables 
 
 Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in future for services. 
 
4.9 Foreign currency translations 
 
 Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the reporting date. 

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into Pakistani Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the transaction date. Exchange 
gains or losses are taken to statement of profit or loss account. 

 
 Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates 

of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date 
when the fair value was determined. 

 
4.10 Taxation 
 
4.10.1 Current  
 
 The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into account available tax credit and 

rebates, if any. Income for the purpose of computing current taxation is determined under the provisions of tax laws. 
 
4.10.2 Deferred Taxation 
 
 Deferred taxation is provided for, using the statement of financial position liability method, providing the temporary differences between the 

carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amount used for taxation purposes. The amount of deferred 
tax provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using tax rates 
enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profits will be 
available and credits can be utilized.  

 
 Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse, based on tax rates that have been 

enacted. The Company takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation authorities.  
 
 Deferred tax is charged or credited in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss account, except in the case of items credited or charged 

to other comprehensive income/equity in which case it is included in other comprehensive income/equity. 
 
4.11 Cash and cash equivalent 
 
 Cash and cash equivalent are carried in the unconsolidated statement of financial position at cost and amortized cost respectively. For the 

purpose of unconsolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents compromise cash and bank balances and only those short term 
investments which are highly liquid and maturing within 90 days from the date of acquisition, that readily convertible into known amounts of 
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value.
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4.12 Revenue recognition 
 
 Revenue is recognised when the services have been rendered by the Company and received by the customer and there is no unfulfilled 

obligation that could affect the customer's acceptence of the service. Revenue of different streams is recognised as follows: 
 
 Transaction fee for settlement of trades in eligible securities through Central Depository System (CDS) is recognized in full upon settlement 

in CDS on the basis of market value of securities. Transaction fee on government securities is charged and recognized on per trade basis. 
 
 Custody fee is recognized on daily basis for balance of securities present in CDS on closing market value of last trading session of every trading 

day of the month at Pakistan Stock Exchange. Custody fee on government securities is recognized daily on cost. 
 
 Annual fee and CDS connection fee are recognized on the basis of contractual obligation. 
 
 Other fees are recognized when the Company renders the related services. 
 
 Income from trustee operations is recognized on the basis of closing daily net asset value of the funds. 
 
 Gains and losses on sale of investments are accounted for in the year which they arise. 
 
 Return on fixed income securities and term deposits are recognized on a time proportion basis. 
 
4.13 Interest and dividend income 
 
 Interest income and expenses are reported on an accrual basis using the effective interest method. Dividends, other than those from 

investments in associates and joint ventures are recognised at the time the right to receive payment is established. 
 
4.14 Dividend and appropriation 
 
 Dividend distribution to the shareholders' of the Company is recognized as a liability in the unconsolidated statement of financial position in 

the period in which such dividends are approved.  
 
4.15 Related party transactions 
 
 All transactions with related parties are carried out by the Company at arm's length prices using the comparable uncontrolled valuation 

method. 
 
4.16 Earnings per share 
 
 The Company presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss 

attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the period. 
Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of ordinary 
shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. 

 
4.17 Segment reporting 
 
 Segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes by the management, which is responsible for 

allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. The basis of segmentation and reportable segments presented in this 
unconsolidated financial statements are the same which are presented to the Board of Directors. Assets and liabilities are not segment wise 
reported to Board of Directors. 

 
4.18 CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
 i) IFRS 9 - Financial Instrument 
 
 IFRS 9 replaces the provisions of IAS 39 that relate to the recognition, classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, 

derecognition of financial instrument, impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting. The adoption of IFRS 9 from July 1, 2018 resulted in 
changes in accounting policies and adjustments to the  amount recognised in the unconsolidated  financial statements. The new accounting 
policies are set out in the note 4.5 above. In accordance with the transitional provisions in IFRS 9, corresponding figures have not been restated.
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 Classifications and remeasurement 
 
 On 1 July 2018 (the date of initial application of IFRS 9), the Company's management has assessed business models apply to the financial assets 

held by the Company and has classified its financial instruments into the appropriate IFRS 9 categories. The main effects resulting from these 
reclassifications and adjustments are as follows:

 a) IFRS 9 replaces the 'incurred loss' model in IAS 39 with an 'Expected Credit Loss' (ECL) model. The Company has determined that the 
application of IFRS 9 impairment requirement at July 1, 2018 that results in no additional allowance for trade receivables. 

 
 b) The Company has adopted consequential amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements which require impairment of financial 

assets to be presented in a separate line item in the unconsolidated statement of profit or loss account. However, during the year ended June 
30, 2018 there was no provision for doubtful debts that could be reclassified to 'impairment loss on trade receivables' in the unconsolidated 
statement of profit or loss account. 

 
 The following table below explains the original measurement categories under IAS 39 and the new measurement categories under IFRS 9 for 

each class of the Company's financial assets and liabilities as at July 1, 2018. 

 There is no impact on the Company's statement of changes in equity as a result of the above changes.  
 
 ii) IFRS 15 - Revenue from contracts with customers 
 
 The Company has adopted IFRS 15 from July 1, 2018 which resulted in changes in accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts 

recognised in the unconsolidated financial statements. However, in accordance with the transition provisions in IFRS 15, there is no impact on 
the Company that require retrospective change and restatement of comparatives for the year ended June 30, 2018. 

 
 iii) IFRS 8 - Operating Segment 
 
 During the year the Company has change its policy of segment reporting. Previously the Company considers itself to be a single reportable 

segment. The new policy of segment reporting are disclosed in note 4.17. The retrospective impact of the segment information has been 
disclosed in note 33.

 Closing balance 
 June 30, 2018  - IAS 39 
 
 Trade debts-net a,b  -     -     (265,653,638)  265,653,638 
 Loans and advances   -     -     (12,908,374)  12,908,374 
 Other receivables   -     -     (13,753,448)  13,753,448 
 Cash and bank balances   -     -     (53,307,874)  53,307,874 
    -     -     (345,623,334)  345,623,334 
 
 Opening balance 
  July 1, 2018 - IFRS   -     -     (345,623,334)  345,623,334 

 Financial assets 
 Trade debts-net Loans and receivables Amortized cost  265,653,638   265,653,638 
 Loans and advances Loans and receivables Amortized cost  12,908,374   12,908,374 
 Other receivables Loans and receivables Amortized cost  13,753,448   13,753,448 
 Cash and bank balances Loans and receivables Amortized cost  53,307,874   53,307,874 
 
 
 Financial liabilities 
 Trade and other payable Other financial liabilities Other financial liabilities  518,147,026   518,147,026 

Amortised cost
Loans and
receivable

--------------------------Amount in Rupees ---------------------

FVOCIFVTPL

New carrying
amount under 

IFRS 9

--------------Rupees-----------

Original amount
under
IAS 39

New classification
under IFRS 9

Original classification
under IAS 39

Note
Financial assets
July 1, 2018
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5 ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL 
 

 

    10,000,000   10,000,000  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each  100,000,000   100,000,000 
      fully paid in cash  
 
     Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 
      issued as fully paid bonus shares 
    96,090,000   90,000,000  - Beginning of the year  960,900,000   900,000,000 
    43,910,000   6,090,000  - During the year  439,100,000   60,900,000 
    140,000,000   96,090,000  Total bonus shares  1,400,000,000   960,900,000 
    150,000,000   106,090,000    1,500,000,000   1,060,900,000 
 
5.1 Associated companies held 104,712,000 (June 30, 2018: 74,059,305) shares in the Company as at June 30, 2019. 
 
5.2 During the year the Company increased its authorised share capital in order to: 
 
 - comply with Central Depositories (Licensing and Operations) Regulations, 2016; and 
 
 - maintain a strong capital base to support the sustained development of its business. 

6 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - NET

 Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment at the beginning of the year    801,488,237   817,681,712 
 
 Transferred to accumulated profit: 
  - surplus relating to incremental depreciation transferred to unappropriated 
 profit during the  year - net of deferred tax   (11,449,932)  (11,449,932)
 
  - related deferred tax liability   (4,743,543)  (4,743,543)
    (16,193,527)  (16,193,527)
 Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment at the end of the year    785,294,762   801,488,237 
 
 Less: related deferred tax liability on: 
 
  -   surplus on revaluation of property and equipment at the beginning of the year    (90,127,324)  (98,142,276)
 
  -   remeasurement of deferred tax liability due to change in tax rate   -     3,271,409 
 
  -   incremental depreciation charged during the year transferred to unconsolidated 
 statement of profit or loss account   4,743,543   4,743,543 
 
 Deferred tax liability on surplus on revaluation of property and equipment at the 
 end of the year  8  (85,383,781)  (90,127,324)
 Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment - net   699,910,981   711,360,913 

 
6.1 Land and building had been revalued on June 30, 2017 which resulted in further revaluation surplus of Rs. 321,819,035. 
 

7 LONG TERM DEPOSITS 

 Due to:  
 -  Participants   40,612,000   40,813,139 
 -  Institutions   33,124,000   32,022,861 
 -  Pledgees   1,600,000   1,600,000 
 -  Issuers   52,400,000   48,937,500 
 -  Others 7.3  1,565,460   -   
    129,301,460   123,373,500 

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
Rupees

 June 30, 2019  June 30, 2018
Number of shares

Note
 June 30, 2019

Rupees
 June 30, 2018

Rupees

Note
 June 30, 2019

Rupees
 June 30, 2018

Rupees
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7.1 These represent security deposits received from different categories of Central Depository System (CDS) elements for their admission in the 
CDS. According to regulation 3.8.4 of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited Regulations, such deposits may be utilized by the 
Company for any purpose whatsoever and shall be refundable at the time of termination of admission to the CDS.  

 
7.2 CDS elements include long term deposits amounting to Rs. 2.7 million (June 30, 2018: Rs. 3 million) from related parties. 
 
7.3 This pertains to the security deposit placed with the Company against rented premises provided to Byco Petroleum Pakistan Limited. 

8 DEFERRED TAXATION - NET

 Deferred tax asset arising in respect of temporary
 differences on: 
 
     - Provision for doubtful debts   (336,150)  (336,150)
 
 Deferred tax liabilities arising in respect of temporary 
 differences on: 
 
 - Excess of accounting written down value under cost model  
 over tax written down value of property and equipment   14,181,930   21,618,862 
 
 - Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment (note 6)   85,383,781   90,127,324 
 
 - Surplus on revaluation of investments at fair value through
    other comprehensive income   237,666   (93,750)
 
    99,467,227   111,316,286 
 
9 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 
 
 Payable to suppliers   735,506   7,258,374 
 Accrued expenses   249,960,725   266,058,386 
 Employees’ retirement benefits and other obligations 9.1  141,083,450   129,090,480 
 Investor account services - current account   90,734,789   84,893,299 
 Workers' welfare fund payable   -     13,745,902 
 Sales tax payable   11,420,696   16,181,417 
 Others   3,900,767   919,168 
    497,835,933   518,147,026 
 
9.1 Employees’ retirement benefits and other obligations 
 
 Net defined benefit liability 31.2  101,227,535   92,505,535 
 Accumulated compensated absences 9.2  35,425,176   36,584,945 
 Payable to Provident Fund   3,000,000   -   
 Salaries related payable   1,430,739   -   
    141,083,450   129,090,480 
 
9.2 Accumulated compensated absences 
 
 Opening balance   36,584,945   30,398,979 
 Provision for the year 24.1  4,221,427   8,261,962 
 Payments / transfers made during the year   (5,381,196)  (2,075,996)
 Closing balance   35,425,176   36,584,945 
 
9.2.1 At year end, acturial valuation for compensated absence was carried which resulted in liablity of Rs. 35.2 million. 
 

Note
 June 30, 2019

Rupees
 June 30, 2018

Rupees
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10 UNEARNED FEE 

 Annual fee 
  - Issuers   3,089,698   3,715,541 
  - Investor Account Services (IAS)   11,272,634   7,023,554 
  - Centralised Information Sharing Solution for                        
 Insurance Industry (CISSII) Partcipants   7,460,017   6,260,016 
 Investment Portfolio Services (IPS) annual fee   25,500   22,438 
 Sub account maintenance fee   33,082,038   29,895,618 
 Others   260,911   -   
    55,190,798   46,917,167 
 
11 TAXATION - NET

 Provision for taxation - net   -     11,888,337 
 
 Taxation - net (Assets)   5,368,660   -   
 
11.1 The return of income for the Tax Year 2018 was amended and Order under section 122(5A) was passed. Addition on account of certain 

expenses were made and  demand of Rs. 17.3 million was raised. The company paid the tax demand and filed appeal before the Commissioner 
Inland Revenue (Appeals) [CIR(A)]. The CIR(A) vide its Order dated 17 June 2019 accepted the appeal of the Company. However, the CIR(A) 
confirmed the addition ade on 'initial allowance' claimed by the Company amounting to Rs. 3.90 million. The CIR(A) also remanded back the 
issue of claim of 'repair and maintenance expense' incurred by the Company. An appeal against the Order of CIR(A) lies before Appellate 
Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR). 

 
12 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 
 
12.1 Contingencies 
 
 During 2014-2015, the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) passed an order in relation to tax periods commencing from July 2011 up to June 2013 with 

regards to chargeability of Sindh Sales Tax (SST) amounting to Rs. 297 million including penalty. Subsequently, the penalty amounting to Rs. 15 
million was removed and the revised demand restricted to Rs. 282 million. SRB was of the opinion that services rendered by the Company were 
falling under the ambit of Non-Banking Finance Companies (NBFC). Not agreeing with the SRB’s contention, the Company pursued the matter 
in appeal and through the order dated February 28, 2018, the Hon’able Appellate Tribunal – SRB has decided the case in favor of the Company 
and has vacated the above referred tax demand. 

 
 Apart from the above, the SRB has also issued a notice for the periods from July 2013 through June 2015, requiring the Company to show-cause 

as to why SST of Rs. 344.6 million including penalty may not be recovered from the Company on alleged failure to charge SST on its services. 
The management on the basis of above-referred judgment of Hon’able Appellate Tribunal – SRB have filed the application in the Honorable 
Sindh High Court for vacation of the same and is confident that the matter will be resolved in Company’s favor and therefore no provision has 
been recognised in these unconsolidated financial statements. 

 

12.2 Commitments 

 Commitment for capital expenditure for acquisition of software, 
 hardware and office equipments   1,600,108   5,119,964 
 
 Investment in Naymat Collateral Management 12.2.1  30,000,000   -   
 
12.2.1 During the year, the board of directors approved the proposed investment. This commitment is subject to the statutory approval.

Note
 June 30, 2019

Rupees
 June 30, 2018

Rupees

Note
 June 30, 2019

Rupees
 June 30, 2018

Rupees
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 Net book value at the beginning of the year  549,999,000   445,322,662   24,543,667   38,430,388   34,062,022   78,496,975   1,170,854,714 
 
 Additions  -     106,527,147   8,925,562   20,443,146   12,838,197   83,883,846   232,617,898 
 
 Disposals  
       Cost  -     -     (10,303,660)  (8,269,108)  (10,797,884)  (46,698,588)  (76,069,240)
       Accumulated Depreciation  -     -     10,198,433   8,256,564   10,278,144   46,665,436   75,398,577 
   -     -     (105,227)  (12,544)  (519,740)  (33,152)  (670,663)
 
 Depreciation charge for the year  -     (30,369,812)  (8,572,730)  (16,463,035)  (13,028,207)  (43,070,635)  (111,504,419)
 Net book value at the end of the year  549,999,000   521,479,997   24,791,272   42,397,955   33,352,272   119,277,034   1,291,297,531 
 
 As at June 30, 2018 

 Cost / revalued amount  549,999,000   551,849,809   168,217,886   88,755,869   198,969,238   440,290,782   1,998,082,584 
 Accumulated depreciation  -     (30,369,812)  (143,426,614)  (46,357,914)  (165,616,966)  (321,013,748)  (706,785,054)
 Net book value at the end of the year  549,999,000   521,479,997   24,791,272   42,397,955   33,352,272   119,277,034   1,291,297,530 
 
 Depreciation rate - 5% 20% 20% 20% 25%

 Net book value at the beginning of the year  549,999,000   521,479,997   24,791,272   42,397,955   33,352,272   119,277,034   1,291,297,530 

 Additions                                            13.1.5  -     1,074,164   366,177   47,196,600   3,602,417   38,337,298   90,576,656 
 
 Disposals  
       Cost  -     (676,405)  (3,931,058)  (33,908,890)  (3,864,297)  (1,517,543)  (43,898,193)
        Accumulated Depreciation  -     188,170   3,928,887   28,914,076   3,672,338   1,298,589   38,002,060 
             -     (488,235)  (2,171)  (4,994,814)  (191,959)  (218,954)  (5,896,133)
 
 Depreciation charge for the year  -     (33,384,989)  (9,422,972)  (19,381,211)  (11,959,194)  (65,186,492)  (139,334,858)
 Net book value at the end of the year  549,999,000   488,680,937   15,732,306   65,218,530   24,803,536   92,208,886   1,236,643,195 
 
 As at June 30, 2019 
 
 Cost / revalued amount  549,999,000   552,247,568   164,653,005   102,043,579   198,707,358   477,110,537   2,044,761,047 
 Accumulated depreciation  -     (63,566,631)  (148,920,699)  (36,825,049)  (173,903,822)  (384,901,651)  (808,117,852)
 Net book value at the end of the year  549,999,000   488,680,937   15,732,306   65,218,530   24,803,536   92,208,886   1,236,643,195 
 
 Depreciation rate - 5% 20% 20% 20% 25%-33.33% 

Leasehold landNoteYear ended June 30, 2019 Building
Furniture,

fixtures and
electrical

equipment

Vehicles

OWNED

----------------------------------------------------------- Rupees -----------------------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------------------- Rupees -----------------------------------------------------------

Office
equipment

Computer
equipment

Total operating
assets

Leasehold landYear ended June 30, 2018 Building

Furniture,
fixtures and
electrical

equipment

Vehicles

OWNED

Office
equipment

Computer
equipment

Total operating
assets

13 FIXED ASSETS 
 
13.1 Property and equipment

 Operating assets 13.1.1  1,236,643,195   1,291,297,531 
 Capital work-in-progress  13.1.6  1,173,399   2,582,949 
    1,237,816,594   1,293,880,480 

13.1.1 Operating assets

Note
 June 30, 2019

Rupees
 June 30, 2018

Rupees
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13.1.2 Leasehold land and building  had been initially revalued on June 30, 2012. The Company as on June 30, 2017 again revalued its leasehold land and 
building. The revaluation exercise was carried out by independent valuer - MYK Associates (Pvt.) Limited, (Approved valuers of Pakistan Banks' 
Association and Leasing Association of Pakistan) I. I. Chundrigar Road, Karachi. The valuer has estimated the remaining life of the buildings to 
be 20 years.  Leasehold land was revalued on the basis of current market price whereas buildings was revalued on the basis of depreciated 
market value.  

 
 The different levels have been defined in IFRS 13 as follows: 
 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1); 
 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly 

(i.e., derived from prices) (level 2); and 
 
 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (i.e., unobservable inputs e.g. estimated future) (level 3).  

 During the period, the management revised its estimate for useful life of certain high grade IT equipments from 4 years to 3 years,  in order to 
better reflect the pattern in which the economic benefits of these equipments are drived by the company.  

 
13.1.3 Had there been no revaluation of leasehold land and building, the cost and written down values would have been as follows: 
 

 Leasehold land 59,458,250   59,458,250   59,458,250   59,458,250 
 Building  325,805,722   324,731,558   197,757,527   210,696,131 
 
13.1.4 On the basis of last revaluation report, the forced sale value of assets at revalued model is Rs. 796.2 million. 
 
13.1.5 This includes transfer of vehicles and office equipment at WDV from ITMinds Limited (subsidiary company) amounting to Rs. 1,552,500 (June 

30, 2018: Nil) and Rs. 95,000 (June 30, 2018: Nil) respectively.

13.1.6 Capital work-in-progress
 
 Balance at the beginning of the year   2,582,949   27,443,837 
 
 Additions 
 -  Furniture, fixtures and electrical equipment   305,723   1,514,361 
 -  Building   1,074,164   115,066,871 
 -  Computers and office equipment   42,000,169   69,323,082 
 -  Vehicles   45,787,050   21,852,696 
    89,167,106   207,757,010 
    91,750,055   235,200,847 
 Transferred to operating assets 13.1.1  (90,576,656)  (232,617,898)
 Balance at the end of the year   1,173,399   2,582,949 
 
13.2 Intangibles 
 
 Softwares 13.2.1  156,983,658   136,336,096 
 Softwares under implementation 13.2.2  714,634   1,177,433 
    157,698,292   137,513,529 
13.2.1 Softwares 
 
 Net book value at the beginning of the year   136,336,096   107,631,201 
 Additions   69,474,004   70,932,237 
 Amortization charge for the year 24  (48,826,442)  (42,227,342)
 Net book value at the end of the year   156,983,658   136,336,096 
 
 Net book value at the beginning of the year 
 Cost   516,718,898   447,244,894 
 Accumulated amortization   (359,735,240)  (310,908,798)
 Net book value at the end of the year   156,983,658   136,336,096 
 
 Amortization rate  20% 20% 

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
Rupees

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
Rupees

Cost Net book value under cost model

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
RupeesNote
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13.2.2 Softwares under implementation 
 
 Balance at the beginning of the year   1,177,433   15,808,447 
 Additions   69,011,205   56,301,223 
    70,188,638   72,109,670 
 Transferred to softwares 13.2.1  (69,474,004)  (70,932,237)
 Balance at the end of the year   714,634   1,177,433 

13.3 Details of disposal of fixed assets through bid / negotiation having net book value of Rs. 500,000 or above:

 Toyota Corolla GLI   1,969,000   492,250   1,476,750   1,994,000   517,250 EFU general Insurance Limited (Insurer)
 Honda City Aspire  1,794,000   1,166,100   627,900   1,545,000   917,100  Sold to Mr. Imran Tai (Employee) 
   3,763,000   1,658,350   2,104,650   3,539,000   1,434,350 

13.4 The disposal also include transfer of vehicles at written down value amounting to Rs. 1,782,750 to employees in pursuance of terms of employment. 

14 LONG TERM INVESTMENTS

 Investment in related parties 
 Investment in subsidiaries - at cost 
 - ITMinds Limited   50,000,000   50,000,000 
 - CDC Share Registrar Services Limited    50,000,000   50,000,000 
  14.1  100,000,000   100,000,000 
 
14.1 This represents investment in wholly owned subsidiaries for IT services and Business process outsourcing (BPO) office under the name of 

ITMinds Limited by subscribing 5,000,000 shares (June 30, 2018: 5,000,000) of Rs.10 each and for share registrar services under the name of 
CDC Share Registrar Services Limited by subscribing 5,000,000 shares (June 30, 2018: 5,000,000) of Rs.10 each.

15 LONG TERM LOANS - SECURED 

 Considered good - secured 
 - House loans 15.1  66,883,881   55,530,485 
 - Car loans 15.2  17,254,738   13,015,860 
    84,138,619   68,546,345 
 - Transferred to current maturity 18  (11,553,206)  (9,189,011)
    72,585,413   59,357,334 
 
 Loan outstanding for period:  
 -    More than one year but less than three years   21,051,917   17,183,348 
 -    More than three years   51,533,496   42,173,986 
    72,585,413   59,357,334 
 
 Movement of loan to executives  
 Balance at beginning of the year    44,012,029   34,670,374 
 Add: Disbursement during the year   11,000,000   22,462,800 
    55,012,029   57,133,174 
 less: Recovered during the year    (8,680,645)  (13,121,145)
 Balance at the end of the year  46,331,384  44,012,029 

15.1 Interest @ 3% per annum on monthly outstanding balance  is recovered on house loans and taken to unconsolidated statement of profit or 
loss account. Maximum repayment period for house loan is fifteen years. 

 
15.2 Interest at 3% per annum on monthly outstanding balance is recovered on car loans and taken to unconsolidated statement of profit or loss 

account. However, no interest is recovered from employees who have surrendered interest on their provident fund. Maximum repayment 
period for car loan is five years. 

 
15.3 The maximum aggregate amount of loans at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 85 million (June 30, 2018: Rs. 72.78 million). The loans 

are secured against the underlying assets. 

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
RupeesNote

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
Rupees

Particular of assets Cost Accumulated
depreciation

Written
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Sale
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16 LONG TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS 

 Deposits  
`  - Rented premises   925,000   1,060,001 
  - Utilities and others   8,967,814   4,937,414 
    9,892,814   5,997,415 
 Prepayments   1,374,356   1,017,913 
    11,267,170   7,015,328 
 
17 TRADE DEBTS - NET 
 
 Considered good: 
 
  - secured   183,178,585   202,981,239 
  - unsecured   75,493,783   62,672,399 
    258,672,368   265,653,638 
 Considered doubtful, unsecured 17.1  1,159,136   1,159,136 
    259,831,504   266,812,774 
 Provision for doubtful debts 17.2  (1,159,136)  (1,159,136)
    258,672,368   265,653,638 
 
17.1 The aging analysis of trade debts are as follows: 

 Within 45 days 198,596,906  -    198,596,906  216,656,778  -    216,656,778 
 46 to 90 15,367,967  -    15,367,967  8,664,979  -    8,664,979 
 Over 91 days 45,866,631  1,159,136  44,707,495  41,491,017  1,159,136  40,331,881 
 Total 259,831,504  1,159,136  258,672,368  266,812,774  1,159,136  265,653,638 

17.2 The Company reviews all the trade debts for indication of impairment. As during the year no further provision has been made consequently 
opening balance of provision for doubtful debt which comprises due from terminated participants and investor account holders amounting to 
Rs. 0.4 million (June 30, 2018: Rs. 0.4 million) and Rs. 0.7 million (June 30, 2018: 0.7 million) respectively and are valid till year end. 

 
17.3 Trade debts include receivable from associated persons and companies (related parties) amounting to Rs. 8.4 million (June 30, 2018: Rs. 7.8 

million).
 
17.3.1 The aging analysis of trade debts from related parties are as follows:

 Within 45 days 1,590,981  -    1,590,981  3,740,644  -    3,740,644 
 46 to 90 550,902  -    550,902  584,207  -    584,207 
 Over 91 days 6,222,975  -    6,222,975  3,453,207  -    3,453,207 
 Total 8,364,858  -    8,364,858  7,778,058  -    7,778,058 
 

17.4 The maximum aggregate amount of receivable from associated persons and companies (related parties) at the end of any month during the 
year was Rs. 16.2 million (June 30, 2018: Rs. 39.3 million).  

 June 30, 2019  June 30, 2018

NetImpairedGrossNetImpaired
---------------------------------------------------------- Rupees ----------------------------------------------------------
Gross

 June 30, 2019  June 30, 2018

NetImpairedGrossNetImpaired
---------------------------------------------------------- Rupees ----------------------------------------------------------
Gross

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
RupeesNote
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18 LOANS AND ADVANCES 

 Current maturity of long term loans 15  11,553,206   9,189,011 
 
 -  Advance to employees   1,497,899   3,130,703 
 -  Advance for expenses   899,271   588,660 
    2,397,170   3,719,363 
    13,950,376   12,908,374 
 
18.1 All loans and advances have been reviewed for impairment and none of the loans and advances were found to be impaired. 
 
 
19 PREPAYMENTS 

 Insurance   8,993,457   8,224,402 
 Software maintenance   17,765,751   12,746,659 
 Servers & other hardware maintenance   211,864   92,610 
 Others   1,484,843   1,947,168 
    28,455,915   23,010,839 
 
20 OTHER RECEIVABLES 
 
 From related parties  
 - ITMinds Limited - Subsidiary   4,385,321   4,682,951 
 - Share Registrar Services Limited - Subsidiary   775,876   135,000 
 - National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited - Associated Company   200,001   1,390,550 
 From other parties    9,474,199   7,544,947 
    14,835,397   13,753,448 
 
20.1 All the other receivables have been reviewed for impairment and none of the other receivables was found to be impaired. 
 
 
21 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

 Financial assets at fair value through OCI 
 
 -  Term Deposit Certificates  21.1  1,111,981,507   1,159,133,555 
 -  Treasury Bills 21.2  1,832,685,348   1,817,115,522 
 -  Mutual Fund 21.3  469,684,073   -   
    3,414,350,928   2,976,249,077 
 
21.1 This represents investment in Term Deposit Certificates. The rate of profit on these certificates is 12.75% per annum (June 30, 2018: 6.0% to 

6.45% per annum). 
 
21.2 This represents investment in Treasury Bills. The rate of profit on these certificates is 10.83% to 12.75% per annum (June 30, 2018: 6.22% to 

6.76% per annum).  
 
21.3 This represents investments in open ended units of JS Cash Fund.

22 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

 Bank balances 
 -  in saving accounts 22.1  45,238,630   47,030,104 
 -  in current accounts   22,366,467   11,538,487 
 Amount held on behalf of clients 22.3  (20,871,767)  (5,410,721)
 Net bank balance   46,733,330   53,157,870 
 
 Cash in hand   132,228   150,004 
    46,865,558   53,307,874 

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
RupeesNote

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
Rupees

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
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22.1 The rate of profit varies from 10.25% to 11.44% (June 30, 2018: 3.5% to 4.75%) per annum. 
 
22.2 Bank balances include Rs. 5.59 million (June 30, 2018: Rs. 5.99 million) held with related parties.  
 
22.3 This amount is held by the Company in the current account maintained with State Bank of Pakistan on behalf of clients under trustee and 

custodialship for settlement purpose.
 
 
23 OPERATING INCOME - NET

 Depository services - net 23.1  1,072,273,004   1,222,437,358 
 Trusteeship and custodial services - net 23.2  639,965,523   637,123,926 
 Miscellaneous income - net 23.3  3,019,541   4,816,173 
    1,715,258,068   1,864,377,457 
 SECP supervision fee 23.4  (10,752,925)  (12,255,452)
    1,704,505,143   1,852,122,005 
 
23.1 Depository services - net 
 
 Depository services   1,209,861,746   1,380,606,671 
 Less: Sales tax   (137,588,742)  (158,169,313)
  23.1.1  1,072,273,004   1,222,437,358 
 
23.1.1 Depository services - net 
 
 Transaction fee 23.1.2  122,172,708   145,918,824 
 Custody fee   288,457,801   361,043,792 
 Sub account maintenance fee   91,322,230   76,540,098 
 CDS connection fee   43,162,000   44,067,000 
 Security induction fee   251,938,890   346,232,328 
 Annual fee   240,556,686   212,360,522 
 Cancellation fee/Revocation fee   5,954,191   15,476,427 
 Withdrawal fee   1,486,042   8,444,753 
 Vasco service charges   2,227,200   2,265,600 
 eDividend   24,995,256   10,088,014 
    1,072,273,004   1,222,437,358 
 
23.1.2 Transaction fee - net   
 
 Transaction fee   148,057,992   173,932,065 
 Less: SECP levy 23.1.3  (25,885,284)  (28,013,241)
    122,172,708   145,918,824 
 
23.1.3 Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) imposed a levy of 0.000405 (June 30, 2018: 0.000405) paisa per share as transaction 

fee which is borne by the Company. 
 
 

23.2 Trusteeship and custodial services - net

 Trusteeship and custodial businesses   760,360,155   759,027,786 
 Less: SECP levy 23.2.1  (30,034,208)  (30,758,391)
 Less: Sales tax   (90,360,424)  (91,145,469)
    639,965,523   637,123,926 
 
23.2.1 SECP imposed an annual fee @ 0.005% (June 30, 2018: 0.005%) of average annual assets of open end scheme or closed end scheme under its 

trusteeship. 

23.3 Miscellaneous income - net

 Miscellaneous income   3,462,776   5,523,898 
 Less: Sales tax   (443,235)  (707,725)
    3,019,541   4,816,173 
 
23.4 SECP imposed a levy @ 1% (June 30, 2018: 1%)  of total operating revenue excluding trusteeship & custodial fee and certain depository service fee.

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
RupeesNote

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
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 June 30, 2019
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24 OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

 Salaries and other benefits  24.1 & 24.2  624,321,182   555,259,812 
 Travelling and conveyance   6,561,121   6,307,860 
 Vehicle running and maintenance   18,346,520   14,804,135 
 Training and development    4,221,078   7,378,170 
 Communication   10,863,070   12,299,494 
 Printing and stationery   6,283,613   4,940,120 
 Rent, rates and taxes   12,649,627   12,800,465 
 Insurance   25,660,807   23,961,439 
 Repairs and maintenance   78,273,815   71,407,632 
 Legal and professional charges   20,398,116   21,200,709 
 Fee and subscription   13,450,486   8,655,443 
 Advertisement and publicity   19,269,964   27,399,810 
 Office supplies   4,909,489   4,406,000 
 Meeting expenses   14,689,330   12,689,404 
 Wide-area-network line rent   11,625,097   8,831,127 
 Auditors' remuneration 24.4  5,251,418   4,647,873 
 Depreciation    130,276,404   104,319,109 
 Amortization   48,826,442   42,227,342 
 Fuel and electricity   31,553,358   32,990,272 
 Finance outsourcing 24.6  15,416,032   14,102,864 
 Security services   8,879,224   8,199,584 
 Cafeteria   6,754,861   6,307,803 
 Miscellaneous   4,889,683   4,447,880 
    1,123,370,737   1,009,584,347 

24.1 Salaries and other benefits include: 
 
 - Compensated absences  9.2  4,221,427   8,261,962 
 
 - Defined benefit gratuity fund 31.3  37,000,000   28,954,000 
 
 - Defined contribution gratuity fund   5,687,184   5,045,346 
 
 - Contribution to provident fund   25,289,836   22,986,523 
 
24.2 Remuneration of Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Executives: 

 Managerial remuneration 23,385,366 157,995,444  21,758,755   118,246,648 
 Bonus 9,871,878 50,942,232  16,237,500   41,964,571 
 Gratuity 1,305,492 16,426,191  1,948,500   9,278,305 
 Provident fund  675,888 8,550,356  1,217,813   6,641,831 
 Defined contribution gratuity fund  -    732,552  -     1,348,625 
   35,238,624  234,646,775  41,162,568   177,479,980 
 
 Number of Person  2   36  1   25 

24.2.1 During the year, previous chief executive officer of the Company has completed his tenure of office.  
 
24.2.2 The CEO and executives are provided with the Company maintained cars. In addition, the CEO and executives are also entitled for other 

benefits in accordance with the terms of employment. 
 
24.2.3 The aggregate amount charged in the financial statements in respect of directors' fee paid during the year was Rs.13.04 million (June 30, 2018: 

Rs. 10.36 million). 
 
24.3 The Chairman of the board has been provided with Company maintained car along with fuel and chauffeur.

Executives
-------------------------------------Rupees -------------------------------------

 June 30, 2019

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
RupeesNote

CEO Executives

 June 30, 2018

CEO
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24.4 Auditors' remuneration 

 Audit fees   1,843,269   1,722,073 
 Half year review   525,800   525,800 
 Others   2,882,349   2,400,000 
    5,251,418   4,647,873 

24.5 Employees provident fund

 - Size of the fund - net assets (Rupees)   70,931,798   59,516,526 
 - Number of members   419   398 
 - Cost of investments made (Rupees)   58,515,371   44,017,810 
 - Percentage of investments made to size of the fund  82%  74% 
 - Fair value of investments (Rupees)   58,916,161   54,448,503 
 
24.5.1 The audited financial statements of the fund for the year ended June 30, 2019 has not been finalized. Investments out of provident fund has been 

made in accordance with the provision of the section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017. 
 
24.6 This represents expense incurred against the finance outsourcing service obtained from ITMinds Limited (subsidiary company).  
 
 

25 OTHER INCOME 

 Income from financial assets: 
 
  - Return on bank deposits   12,429,612   4,609,312 
  - Interest on loans to employees   1,983,489   1,558,526 
  - Return on investment - fair value through other comprehensive income   273,353,804   160,517,071 
    287,766,905   166,684,909 
 Income from non-financial assets: 
 
  - Gain on disposal of property and equipment - net   5,713,829   1,865,585 
  - Penalties and fines   3,292,992   1,368,800 
  - Others 25.1  7,545,008   5,949,464 
    16,551,829   9,183,849 
    304,318,734   175,868,758 
 
25.1 This includes income earned from ITMinds Limited (subsidiary company) amounting to Rs. 5.85 million (June 30, 2018: Rs 5.32 million). 
 
 

26 OTHER EXPENSES 

 Corporate social responsibility (CSR) expense 26.1  22,513,447   25,639,074 
 Written off receivable from eClear Services Limited   -     9,115,221 
 Worker's Welfare Fund   (13,745,902)  -   
    8,767,545   34,754,295 
 
26.1 CSR expense has not been made (June 30, 2018: Nil) to an institution in which a director has common directorship. Rs. 1 million (June 30, 2018: 

Nil)  has been paid to institutions in which Director  had any interest. 
 

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
Rupees

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
RupeesNote

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
RupeesNote
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26.2 During the period, Company has made the following donations equal to or exceeding Rs. 1,000,000, the details are as under:

 Name of Donee 

 SIUT   1,500,000   1,500,000 
 Fatima Kidney Care   1,000,000   1,400,000 
 Kharadar General Hospital   2,000,000   2,000,000 
 Memon Medical Institute   1,000,000   1,000,000 
 The Indus Hospital   2,000,000   2,000,000 
 Patients' Welfare Association    1,000,000   1,500,000 
 Patients' Aid Foundation    1,500,000   1,500,000 
 The Patients' Behbud Society- AKUH   2,500,000   2,500,000 
 Ibrahim Eye Trust   1,000,000   1,000,000 
 The Citizen Foundation (TCF)   2,300,000   2,300,000 
 The Garage School   1,000,000   1,000,000 
 The Deaf Reach School (FESF)   1,500,000   1,500,000 
 Memon Industrial & Technical Institute (WMO)   1,500,000   1,500,000 
 The Hunar Foundation   1,000,000   1,000,000 
 Pakistan Sweet Homes   1,000,000   1,500,000 
 
27 FINANCIAL CHARGES 
 
 Bank charges   163,043   178,938 
 
28 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 
 
 Current   282,587,014   321,917,405 
 Prior   -     7,740 
 Deferred   (11,849,061)  4,679,841 
    270,737,953   326,604,986 
 
28.1 The income tax assessments of the Company have been finalised up to and including tax year 2017 except as disclosed in note 11.1. 
 
 
28.2 Reconciliation of effective tax rate

 Profit before income tax   876,522,552   983,473,183 
 
 Enacted tax rate  29%  30% 
 
 Tax charge at enacted rate    254,191,540   300,506,522 
 Super tax   19,025,913   23,488,064 
 Others   (2,479,500)  2,610,400 
    270,737,953   326,604,986 
29 EARNINGS PER SHARE

29.1 Earnings per share (EPS) - Basic 
 

 Profit after income tax - continued operations   605,784,599   656,868,197 

 Profit after income tax - discontinued operations   10,538,076   12,116,346 
 

                             Number of shares
    (Restated) 
  

 Weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares    150,000,000   150,000,000 
 

 Earnings per share from continued operation - Basic  4.04 4.38
 

 Earnings per share from discontinued operation - Basic  0.07 0.08
 
  Note Rupees      Rupees     
    (Restated) 
  

 Earnings per share (EPS) - Basic 29.1.1 4.11 4.46

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
Rupees

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
Rupees
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29.1.1 These annual unconsolidated financial statements have been restated to account for the effect of bonus shares issued on EPS in order to fairly 
present the result of year ended June 30, 2018.  

 
29.2 Earnings per share (EPS) - Diluted 
 
 Diluted EPS has not been presented as the Company does not have any convertible dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue as at June 30, 

2019 and 2018 which would have any effect on the basic EPS if the option to convert is exercisable.  
 
 
30 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

 Short term investments 21  3,414,350,928   2,976,249,077 
 Cash and bank balances 22  46,865,558   53,307,874 
    3,461,216,486   3,029,556,951 
 
31 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
 
 The gratuity fund is payable on the basis of last drawn salary for each year of eligible service or part thereof in accordance with the rules of the 

gratuity fund. The obligation under the fund is determined through an actuarial valuation using projected unit credit method. Principal actuarial 
assumptions used in actuarial valuation carried out as at June 30, 2019 are as follows:  

 
 

 Discount rate per annum (compound rate)  14.25%       9.00%      
 Salary increase rate  12.25%       7.75%      
 

31.1 Statement of financial position item

 The amounts recognized in statement of financial position are as follows: 
 
 Present value of defined benefit obligation 31.4  408,056,142   391,761,142 
 Fair value of plan assets 31.5  (306,828,607)  (299,255,607)
 Movement in net defined benefit obligation 31.2  101,227,535   92,505,535 
 
31.2 Movement in net defined benefit obligation 
 
 Balance at the beginning of the year    92,505,535   51,791,535 
 Expense for the year  31.3  37,000,000   28,954,000 
 Payment to fund during the year    (37,000,000)  (32,336,000)
 Remeasurement losses recognised in other comprehensive income    8,722,000   44,096,000 
 Balance at the end of the year 9.1  101,227,535   92,505,535 
 
31.3 Amounts recognized in the statement profit or loss account and statement of other comprehensive income (OCI) 
 
 The following amounts have been charged in the statement of profit or loss account and statement of other comprehensive income in respect 

of these benefits: 
 
 

 Current service cost   28,540,000   24,067,000 
 Interest cost   35,785,000   27,778,000 
 Expected return on plan assets   (27,325,000)  (22,891,000)
 Net interest 24.1  37,000,000   28,954,000 
 
 Remeasurement loss on obligation   9,880,000   40,139,000 
 Remeasurement (gain) / loss on plan assets   (1,158,000)  3,957,000 
 Remeasurement losses recognised in other comprehensive income   8,722,000   44,096,000 
 Balance at the end of the year   45,722,000   73,050,000 

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
RupeesNote

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
RupeesNote

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
RupeesNote

 June 30, 2019  June 30, 2018
-------------Rate per annum----------
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31.4 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation 
 
 Balance at the beginning of the year    391,761,142   306,649,142 
 Current service cost    28,540,000   24,067,000 
 Interest cost    35,785,000   27,778,000 
 Benefit paid   (59,810,000)  (6,872,000)
 Transfer from subsidiary - ITMinds Limited    1,900,000   -   
 Actuarial losss on obligation   9,880,000   40,139,000 
 Balance at the end of the year   408,056,142   391,761,142 
 
31.5 Movement in fair value of plan assets

 Balance at the beginning of the year    299,255,607   254,857,607 
 Expected return on plan assets   27,325,000   22,891,000 
 Contributions   37,000,000   32,336,000 
 Benefits paid   (59,810,000)  (6,872,000)
 Transfer from subsidiary - ITMinds Limited    1,900,000   -   
 Actuarial gain/ (loss) on plan assets   1,158,000   (3,957,000)
 Balance at the end of the year    306,828,607   299,255,607 
 
 Analysis of Present value of defined benefit obligation (PBO) 
 
 Split by Vested / Non-Vested 
 (i) Vested benefits   407,904,142  391,761,142
 (ii) Non-vested benefits   152,000   -   
    408,056,142  391,761,142
 
 Split by Benefits earned to date 
 (i) Present value of guaranteed benefits   148,193,142  202,327,000
 (ii) Present value of benefits attributable to future salary increase   259,863,000  189,434,142
    408,056,142  391,761,142
 

 Maturity profile of defined benefit obligation 

 Weighted average duration of the present value of defined
 benefit obligation (time in years)  9.21  9.24 

 Distribution of timing of benefit payments Time in years 

 Within first year from the end of financial year   23,420,000   16,583,000 
 Within second years from the end of financial year   28,082,000   73,162,000 
 Within third years from the end of financial year   45,577,000   23,874,000 
 Within fourth years from the end of financial year   31,791,000   36,254,000 
 Within five years from the end of financial year   44,642,000   24,672,000 
 Within six to ten years from the end of financial year   479,490,000   178,194,000 

31.6 Major categories / composition of plan assets are as follows: 
 
 Treasury Bills   38,079,000   76,626,000 
 Special Saving Certificates    -     142,910,000 
 Defense Saving Certificate   89,586,000   76,411,000 
 Bank balance (After adjusting current liabilities)   14,619,607   3,309,000 
 Pakistan Investments Bonds   164,544,000   -   
 Total fair value of plan assets   306,828,607   299,256,000 

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
Rupees

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
Rupees

 June 30, 2019  June 30, 2018
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 Sensitivity analysis on significant actuarial assumptions on present 
    value of defined benefit obligation:
 
 Discount Rate +1%   372,904,000   358,072,000 
 Discount Rate -1%   448,407,000   430,838,000 
 Expected rate of salary increase +1%   446,803,000   432,930,000 
 Expected rate of salary increase -1%   373,689,000   355,751,000 
 
 These figures are based on the latest actuarial valuation as at June 30, 2019. The valuation uses the Projected Unit Credit method. 
 
31.7 The expected gratuity expense for the year ending June 30, 2020 works out to be Rs. 44 million. 
 
32 TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES 
 
 Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party 

in making financial or operational decisions and includes major shareholders, associated companies with or without common directors, 
retirement benefit funds, directors, key management personnel and their close family members. 

 
 Aggregate transactions and balances with related parties and associated undertakings which are not disclosed in respective notes are as follows:

 Rent expense: 
 -  Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited - Associated company   4,954,628   6,083,178 
 -  LSE Financial Services Limited - Associated Company   -     788,568 
    4,954,628   6,871,746 
 Rent of premises paid to:  
 -  Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited - Associated company   4,954,628   6,083,178 
 -  LSE Financial Services Limited - Associated Company   -     788,568 
     4,954,628   6,871,746 
 
 Mark-up earned - Associated companies   321,136   291,896 
 
 The shareholders and directors of the Company are acting as clients of CDS and share registrar services in their normal course of business. 

Total revenue from the transactions relating to shareholders and directors are as follows:  
 

 Shareholders   54,251,495   92,776,350 
 
 Directors   798,902   1,171,550 
 
 Billings to the companies which are associated by virtue  
 of common directorship   5,797,203   15,332,423 
 
 Contributions to retirement plans   67,977,021   60,028,031 
 
 Transactions with Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance (PICG) - 
 Annual subscription, Director's Training Program   145,000   590,000 
 
 Transactions with Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) - 
 Auditorium and parking charges  267,283   237,557 
 
 Payment to LSE Financial Services Limited - Directors travelling, 
 electricity and maintenance charges  3,583,405   717,492 
 
 Transactions with ISE REIT Management Limited - Utilities  3,118,210   2,459,545 
 
 Transactions with NCCPL - Electricity & generator charges   6,816,662   9,687,699 
 
 Deposits with NCCPL - Associated Company   2,500,000   -  

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
Rupees

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
Rupees

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
Rupees
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 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
Rupees

OthersTrustee and
Custodial Services

-------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------

For the year ended June 30, 2019

Depository
Services

Total
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 Transaction / Balance with ITMinds Limited - Subsidiary 
 
 Opening balance   4,682,951   2,898,819 
 Transactions - net   29,902,370   31,784,132 
 Payment received   (30,200,000)  (30,000,000)
 Closing balance  4,385,321 4,682,951
 
 Security deposit held by the Company for subsidiary's CDS eligibility  12,500 12,500
 
 Transactions / Balance with CDC Share Registrar Services Limited  - Subsidiary 
 
 Opening balance   135,000   130,240 
 Transactions - net   1,250,028   528,203 
 Payment received   (609,152)  (523,443)
 Closing balance   775,876   135,000 
 
 Security deposit held by the Company for subsidiary's CDS eligibility   12,500   12,500 
 
32.1 The Company continues to have a policy whereby all transactions with related parties are entered into at arm's length prices using the 

comparable uncontrolled valuation method. 
 
32.2 The Company has not entered into any transaction with senior executives other than those provided under the Company's policies and terms 

of employment.  
 
33 SEGMENT INFORMATION 
 
 The basis of segmentation and reportable segments presented in this unconsolidated financial statements are the same which are presented to 

the Board of Directors. Assets and liabilities are not segment wise reported to the Board of Directors. 
 
 

 Revenue - Gross  1,241,891,296   784,291,118   301,637,244   2,327,819,658 
 
 SECP fees and levies 36,638,209 31,101,900  -     67,740,109 
 
 Sales Tax  138,031,977   90,360,424   -     228,392,401 
 
 Depreciation and amortization  172,202,137   9,999,823   -     182,201,960 
 
 Other operating and administrative expenses  530,870,245   433,324,845   8,767,545   972,962,635 
 
 Profit after tax for the period - 
   discontinued operations  -     -     10,538,076   10,538,076 
 
 Net profit / (loss) after tax  251,671,438   151,704,276   212,946,961   616,322,675 
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OthersTrustee and
Custodial Services

-------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------

For the year ended June 30, 2018

Depository
Services

Total

 Revenue - Gross  1,414,140,612   788,772,689   175,871,956   2,378,785,257 
 
 SECP fees and levies 40,268,693 31,749,029  -     72,017,722 
 
 Sales Tax 158,877,038 91,145,469  -     250,022,507 

 Depreciation and amortization  141,998,267   6,866,013   -     148,864,280 
 
 Other operating and administrative expenses  537,959,829   322,887,998   34,805,472   895,653,299 
 
 Profit after tax for the period - 
    discontinued operations  -     -     12,116,346   12,116,346 
 
 Net profit after tax  357,354,582   205,294,384   106,335,577   668,984,543 

34 DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS 
 
 The Company has intended to discontinue the Share registrar services and the business will be transferred to CDC Share Registrar Services 

Limited from July 01, 2019. Due to effect of such discontinued operations, amounts for the year ended June 30, 2018 have been represented in 
these unconsolidated financial statements. 

 
 
 
34.1 Analysis of profit / (loss) after tax

 Revenues  123,106,800   114,670,188 
 Less: Sales tax  (16,337,617)  (15,606,378)
 Less: Supervision fee  (1,067,692)  (990,638)
   105,701,491   98,073,172 
 
 Less: operation and administrative expenses  (90,453,726)  (79,932,392)
 Profit before taxation  15,247,765   18,140,780 
 
 Less: Taxation  (4,709,689)  (6,024,434)
 
 Profit after taxation  10,538,076   12,116,346 
 
34.2 Analysis of cash flows 
 
 Operating cash flows  (19,732,723)  16,650,445 

35 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES  
 
35.1 Financial risk management 
 
 The Board of Directors of the Company has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Company's risk management 

framework.  
 
 The Company has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: 
 
  - Market risk 
  - Credit risk and concentration of credit risk  
 -  Capital risk  
  - Liquidity risk  

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
Rupees
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35.1.1 Market risk 
 
 Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates or the market price due 

to a change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities and 
liquidity in the market. The market risk includes currency risk and interest rate risk. 

 
 (a) Currency risk 
 
 Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial asset or a liability will fluctuate due to a change in foreign exchange rates. The Company is 

not significantly exposed to the currency risk as the major transactions of the Company are carried out in the local currency. 
 
 (b) Interest rate risk 
 
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest 

rates. The Company is not significantly exposed to interest rate risk as it does not have any interest bearing liabilities. However, the Company has 
fixed interest based investments and loans to employees. These investments are classified as short term and long term considering relative sensitivity 
of the interest rates and management's intention. Loans to employees are allowed on reduced rates which is not affected by volatility of market 
interest rate. Other assets and liabilities of the Company does not expose the Company to interest rate risk substantially. 

 
 The Company has investments in the following securities having fixed rate of return: 

 Treasury Bills ( TBills) 21  1,832,685,348   1,817,115,522 
 Term Deposit Certificates (TDCs) 21  1,111,981,507   1,159,133,555 
    2,944,666,855   2,976,249,077 

 Investments in TBills are Government backed securities with guaranteed return. In addition, investment in TDCs and treasury bills are for a period of 
3 months. Therefore, any changes in the interest rate do not affect the cash flows of the Company. 

 
 (c) Price risk 
 
 Price risk is the risk that the value of a security or portfolio of securities will decline in the future. It is the risk of losing money due to a fall in the 

market price of a security that the entity owns. It results from changes in the value of marked-to-market financial instruments. Currently entity has 
no security designated as investment at fair value through profit or loss therfore there is no implications of price risks. 

35.2 The Company's exposure to interest rate risk and the effective rates on its financial assets and liabilities are summarized as follows:

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
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 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
Rupees

Note

 Financial assets  
 
 Investments 14 & 21   10.83 - 12.75  3,414,350,928   -   -     100,000,000   3,514,350,928 
 Loan and advances 15 & 18 0.00 - 3.00  11,553,206   72,585,413   -     1,497,899   85,636,518 
 Deposits 16   -     -     -     9,892,814   9,892,814 
 Trade debts 17   -     -     -     258,672,368   258,672,368 
 Other receivables 20   -     -     -     14,835,397   14,835,397 
 Cash and bank balances 22 10.25 - 11.75  45,238,630   -     -     1,626,928   46,865,558 
 
     3,471,142,764   72,585,413   -     386,525,406   3,930,253,583 
 
 Financial liabilities  
 
 Deposits  7   -     -     -     129,301,460   129,301,460 
 Trade and other payables 9   -     -     -     345,331,787   345,331,787 
 
     -     -     -     474,633,247   474,633,247 

 Total 
Non

Markup
bearing

Over five 
years 

Over one
year  to

five years

Mark-up Bearing

Less than 
one year 

Effective
yield / interest

rates (%)

-------------------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------------------Note

June 30, 2019
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 Deposits 7  -     -     -     129,301,460   129,301,460 
 Trade and other payables 9  345,331,787   -     -     -     345,331,787 

35.3 Fair values of financial instruments 
 
 Fair value is the amount at which an asset could be exchanged or liability settled between knowledgeable willing parties in an arm's length 

transaction. The Company prepares its unconsolidated financial statements under the historical cost convention except for measurement of 
investments at the FVTOCI, investments at amortised cost and  recognition of staff retirement benefits on the actuarial valuation basis. The 
estimated fair values of all financial instruments are not significantly different from their carrying values on June 30, 2019. 

 
35.4 Credit risk and concentration of credit risk 
 
 Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause to other party to incur a financial 

loss.  The Company is exposed to credit risk at very low level. 
 
 Bank Rating Highest  Lowest 
 
 Short Term  A1+ A1+
 Long Term AAA AA
 
 The credit quality investments in mutual fund can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings having rating of AA+(f). The aging analysis 

of trade debts is provided in note 17.1. 
 
35.5 Liquidity risk 
 
 Liquidity risk reflects the Company's inability of raising funds to meet commitments. Management closely monitors the Company's liquidity and 

cash flow position. This includes maintenance of statement of financial position liquidity ratios, debtors and creditors concentration both in 
terms of overall funding mix and avoidance of undue reliance on large individual customers.

 
 As at June 30, 2019 the Company's liabilities have contractual/expected maturities as summarised below:

 Total later than
5 years

Non CurrentCurrent

1 to 5 
years

within 6-12
months

within 6
months

--------------------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------------------Note
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Mark-up Bearing

 Financial assets  
 
 Investments 14 & 21   6.0-6.76  2,976,249,077   -   -     100,000,000   3,076,249,077 
 Loan and advances 15 & 18 0.00 - 3.00  9,189,011   59,357,334   -     3,130,703   71,677,048 
 Deposits 16   -     -     -     5,997,415   5,997,415 
 Trade debts 17   -     -     -     265,653,638   265,653,638 
 Other receivables 20   -     -     -     13,753,448   13,753,448 
 Cash and bank balances 22 3.5-4.75  47,030,104   -     -     6,127,766   53,157,870 
 
     3,032,468,192   59,357,334   -     394,662,970   3,486,488,496 
 
 Financial liabilities  
 
 Deposit  7   -     -     -     123,373,500   123,373,500 
 Trade and other payables 9   -     -     -     359,129,227   359,129,227 
 
     -     -     -     482,502,727   482,502,727 

 Total 
Non

Markup
bearing

Over five 
years 

Over one
year  to

five years

Less than 
one year 

Effective
yield / interest

rates (%)

-------------------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------------------Note

June 30, 2018
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Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2019

 Total Fair value 
through other
comprehensive

income

June 30, 2019

Fair value
through profit

or loss

Amortised
cost

------------------------- Rupees -------------------------Note

 Deposits 7 -       -     -     123,373,500   123,373,500 
 Trade and other payables 9  359,129,227   -     -     -      359,129,227 

36 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES

 Financial assets  
 Non current assets  
 Long term investments 14  100,000,000   -     -     100,000,000 
 Long term loans 15  72,585,413   -     -     72,585,413 
 Long term deposits 16  9,892,814   -     -     9,892,814 
     182,478,227   -     -     182,478,227 
 Current assets  
 Trade debts - net 17  258,672,368   -     -     258,672,368 
 Loans and advances  18  13,051,105   -     -     13,051,105 
 Other receivables 20  14,835,397   -     -     14,835,397 
 Short term investments 21  -     -     3,414,350,928   3,414,350,928 
 Cash and bank balances 22  46,865,558   -     -     46,865,558 
     333,424,428   -     3,414,350,928   3,747,775,356 
     515,902,655   -     3,414,350,928   3,930,253,583 

 Total later than
5 years

Non CurrentCurrent

1 to 5 
years

within 6-12
months

within 6
months

--------------------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------------------Note

 Total Fair value 
through other
comprehensive

income

June 30, 2018

Fair value
through profit

or loss

Amortised
cost

------------------------- Rupees -------------------------Note Financial assets  
 Non current Assets  
 Long term investments 14  100,000,000   -     -     100,000,000 
 long term loans 15  59,357,334   -     -     59,357,334 
 Long term deposits 16  5,997,415   -     -     5,997,415 
     165,354,749   -     -     165,354,749 
 Current Assets  
 Trade debts - net 17  265,653,638   -     -     265,653,638 
 Loan and advances  18  12,319,714   -     -     12,319,714 
 Other receivables 20  13,753,448   -     -     13,753,448 
 Short term investments 21  -     -     2,976,249,077   2,976,249,077 
 Cash and bank balances 22  53,157,870   -     -     53,157,870 
     344,884,670   -     2,976,249,077   3,321,133,747 
     510,239,419   -     2,976,249,077   3,486,488,496 

 As at June 30, 2018 the Company's liabilities have contractual/expected maturities as summarised below:

 Total Amortized
Cost

June 30, 2019

---------------Rupees--------------- Financial liabilities 
 Non current liabilities  
 Long term deposits  7    129,301,460   129,301,460 
 
 Current liabilities  
 Trade and other payables 9    345,331,787   345,331,787 
 
       474,633,247   474,633,247 
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37 FAIR VALUE OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 
 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or the most 

advantageous) market between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions regardless of whether that price 
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.  

 
37.1 Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy 
 
 The Company uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments: 
 
 Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 

 Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or 
indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 

 
 Level 3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs). 
 
37.2 Financial assets and liabilities 
 
 The following table shows the levels within the hierarchy of the financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis at June 

30, 2019 and June 30, 2018.

 Total Level 3

June 30, 2019

Level 2Level 1
Carrying 

value

--------------------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------------------
 Financial assets measured at fair value
 
  - Term Deposit Certificates  1,111,981,507   -     1,111,981,507   -     1,111,981,507 
  - Treasury Bills  1,832,685,348   -     1,832,685,348   -     1,832,685,348 
  - Mutual Funds  469,684,073   -     469,684,073   -     469,684,073 
 
 Financial assets not measured at fair value 
 
 Loan and advances  85,636,518   -     -     -     85,636,518 
 Deposits  9,892,814   -     -     -     9,892,814 
 Trade debts  258,672,368   -     -     -     258,672,368 
 Other receivables  14,835,397   -     -     -     14,835,397 
 Cash and bank balances  46,865,558   -     -     -     46,865,558 
    3,830,253,583   -     3,414,350,928   -     3,830,253,583 
 
 Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 
 
 Deposits  129,301,460   -     -     -     129,301,460 
 Trade and other payables  345,331,787   -     -     -     345,331,787 
    474,633,247   -     -     -     474,633,247 

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2019

 Total Amortized
Cost

June 30, 2018

---------------Rupees--------------- Financial liabilities 
 Non current liabilities  
 Long term deposits  7    123,373,500   123,373,500 
 
 Current liabilities  
 Trade and other payables 9    359,129,227   359,129,227 
 
       482,502,727   482,502,727 

Note
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37.3 Information about valuation technique and inputs used 

 Item Valuation technique and inputs used 

 Term Deposit Certificates  A deposit at a bank or other financial institution that has a fixed return (usually via an interest rate) and a 
set maturity. That is, the depositor does not have access to the funds until maturity; in exchange, he/she is 
usually entitled to a higher interest rate. One of the most common examples of a term deposit is a 
certificate of deposit. It is also called a time deposit. 

 Market Treasury Bills Fair values of Treasury Bills are derived using the PKRV rates (Reuters page). 

 Mutual Fund Mutual funds are carried at fair value by using the net asset value available at MUFAP website. 

37.4 Non-financial assets and liabilities 

 The following table shows the Levels within the hierarchy of the non-financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a non-recurring 
basis at June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018.

 Total Level 3

June 30, 2019

Level 2Level 1
Carrying 

value

--------------------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------------------

 Leasehold land  549,999,000   -     -     549,999,000   549,999,000 
 Building  488,680,937   -     -     488,680,937   488,680,937 
    1,038,679,937   -     -     1,038,679,937   1,038,679,937 

 Total Level 3

June 30, 2018

Level 2Level 1
Carrying 

value

--------------------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------------------

 Leasehold land  549,999,000   -     -     549,999,000   549,999,000 
 Building  521,479,997   -     -     521,479,997   521,479,997 
    1,071,478,997   -     -     1,071,478,997   1,071,478,997 

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2019

 Total Level 3

June 30, 2018

Level 2Level 1
Carrying 

value

--------------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------------- Financial assets measured at fair value 
 
 -  Term Deposit Certificates   1,159,133,555   -     1,159,133,555   -     1,159,133,555 
 -  Treasury Bills  1,817,115,522   -     1,817,115,522   -     1,817,115,522 
 - Mutual Funds  -     -     -     -     -   
 
 Financial assets not measured at fair value 
 
 Loan and advances  71,677,048   -     -     -     71,677,048 
 Deposits  5,997,415   -     -     -     5,997,415 
 Trade debts  265,653,638   -     -     -     265,653,638 
 Other receivables  13,753,448   -     -     -     13,753,448 
 Cash and bank balances  53,157,870   -     -     -     53,157,870 
    3,386,488,496   -     2,976,249,077   -     3,386,488,496 

 Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 
 
 Deposits  123,373,500   -     -     -     123,373,500 
 Trade and other payables  359,129,227   -     -     -     359,129,227 
    482,502,727   -     -     -       482,502,727 
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 June 30, 2019  June 30, 2018

Chairman

-sd- -sd-
Chief Executive Officer

Notes to the Unconsolidated Financial Statements
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2019

38 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 
 
 It is the responsibiltiy of the Board of Directors to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence 

and to sustain future development of the business, safeguard the Company's ability to continue as going concern in order to provide returns 
for shareholders and benefit for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Board of 
Directors monitor the return on capital, which the Company defines as profit after income tax divided by total shareholders' equity. The Board 
of Directors also monitors the level of dividend to ordinary shareholders. 

 
 The Company finances its operations through equity and management of working capital. The equity for the purpose of capital risk management 

comprises share capital, reserve fund, surplus on revaluation of investment at fair value through other comprehensive income, surplus on 
revaluation of property and equipment and unappropriated profit. 

 
39 SUBSEQUENT EVENT 
 
 The directors in their meeting held on August 29, 2019 have proposed bonus shares @ 33.3333% i.e. 50 million shares (June 30, 2018: 41.3894% 

i.e. 43.91 million shares) and cash dividend of Rs. 1.225 per share (June 30, 2018: Rs. 1.50 per share) of Rs.10 each i.e. 30% of payout and 12.25% 
of the paid-up capital in respect of year ended June 30, 2019. The unconsolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2019 do not 
include the effect of these appropriations which will be accounted for in the period in which it is approved by shareholders. 

 

40 EMPLOYEES 

 Number of employees at the end of the year  419  410 
 
 Average number of employees during the year  415  404 
 
41 DATE OF AUTHORISATION 
 
 These unconsolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in their 209th meeting held on August 29, 2019.
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   Rupees in million

    June 30, 2019 June 30, 2018

 Profit for the year before tax  901 1,003

 Taxation  277 333

 Profit after tax  624 670

 Earnings per share (Rs.)  4.16 4.47

The Directors of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (CDCPL) are pleased to present their report together with audited consolidated 
financial statements of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited and its Subsidiary Companies for the year ended June 30, 2019.

The consolidated results comprise of financial statements of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its 
wholly-owned subsidiaries ITMinds Limited and CDC Share Registrar Services Limited. The Holding Company has annexed its consolidated financial 
statements along with its separate financial statements, in accordance with the requirement of International Accounting Standard 27 (Consolidated and 
Separate Financial Statements). The standalone Directors’ Report, giving a commentary on the performance of Central Depository Company for the 
year ended June 30, 2019 has been presented separately. 

The Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan directed the Company to carve out the function of Share Registrar from itself and to offer such 
service through a separate subsidiary to conform to the provisions of section 65(2) of the Securities Act, 2015. CDC decided that it would be more 
efficient and prudent to allow an existing subsidiary to undertake the business of share registrar (along-with other regulated securities activities) rather 
than to form a new company altogether. The existing subsidiary CDC Trustee Company Limited was formed in September 2012 to undertake trustee 
and custodial business of CDC. Accordingly, the subsidiary applied for registration to act as trustee of mutual funds under Non-Banking Finance 
Companies & Notified Entities Regulations, 2008, however, the License was not provided and the subsidiary was remained non-operational since the 
year 2012.

Accordingly, the principle line of business of CDC Trustee Company Limited was changed to provide share registrar services (as well as other regulated 
securities activities) along with change in name to CDC Share Registrar Services Limited to better reflect the change in business dynamics and objects 
of the Company. The Company Registration Office – Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan has granted Certificate of Incorporation on 
change of name with effect from October 11, 2018. Transfer of share registrar business was finalized by June 30, 2019. It was a great challenge achieved 
timely without losing a single client. Apart from it, all internal infrastructural changes were also made by putting all efforts and dedication in record time 
of four months.

The Company has a policy for reviewing Directors’ remuneration at regular intervals. Details of aggregate amount of remuneration separately of 
executive and non-executive directors is presented in the annual report. 

Internal control structure of the group is the same as that of Holding Company which is also covered in standalone Directors’ Report. Appropriations 
of profit as well as risk and uncertainties relating to the Holding Company have been disclosed in the standalone Directors’ Report whereas no major 
risk and uncertainty has been identified relating to CDC Share Registrar Services Limited and ITMinds Limited. 
 
Details relating to Directors of Holding Company have been mentioned in the standalone Directors’ Report. The name of the Directors in office at any 
time during the year of Subsidiary Companies are as follows:

Directors’ Report on Audited Consolidated
Financial Statements

 Directors of ITMinds Limited Directors of CDC Share Registrar Services Limited

 Dr. Aamir Matin Mr. Muhammad Ashraf Bawany
 Mr. Badiuddin Akber Mr. Badiuddin Akber
 Mr. Zafar Iqbal Sobani Mr. Muhammad Sibghatullah Khalid
 Syed Veqar-ul-Islam Mr. Abdul Samad
 Mr. Muhammad Ashraf Bawany Mr. Atiqur Rehman
 Mr. Iqleem-uz-Zaman Khan Mr. Shariq Jafrani
 Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan (R) Mr. Aftab Ahmed Diwan (R)
 Mr. Muhammad Junaid Shekha (R) Mr. Farid Malik (R)
 Mr. Zahid Hussain Vasnani(R)  

R = Resigned / Retired

Both the Subsidiary Companies are wholly owned subsidiaries of CDCPL and pattern of shareholding relating to Holding Company has been disclosed 
in the standalone Directors’ Report.

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

_________________ ___________________
MOIN M. FUDDA BADIUDDIN AKBER
Chairman Chief Executive Officer

Karachi, dated: Thursday, August 29, 2019

-sd- -sd-

136



 1,003 901

 333 277

 670 624

 6.32 4.16

June 30, 2019June 30, 2018
Rupees in million
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
TO THE MEMBER OF THE CENTRAL DEPOSITORY
COMPANY OF PAKISTAN LIMITED

Opinion

We have audited the annexed consolidated financial statements  of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited  and its subsidiaries (the Group), 
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at June 30, 2019, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss account and 
consolidated statement of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows for 
the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other explanatory 
information.

In our opinion, consolidated financial statements give true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at June 30, 2019, and its 
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with the accounting and reporting standards 
as applicable in Pakistan.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs) as applicable in Pakistan. Our responsibilities under those 
standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are 
independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants 
as adopted by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of Pakistan (the Code) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with 
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. 

Information other than the Consolidated Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

Management is responsible for other information. The other information comprises the information included in the annual report, but does not include 
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion 
thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility as to read the other information and, in doing so, consider 
whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or 
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other 
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard. 

Responsibilities of Management and Board of Directors for the Consolidated Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with the accounting and 
reporting standards as applicable in Pakistan and Companies Act, 2017 and for such internal control as management determines is necessary to enable 
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, 
as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the 
Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

Board of directors are responsible for overseeing the group’s financial reporting process.

Chartered Accountants
Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd

Offices in Islamabad, Lahore

GRANT THORNTON ANJUM RAHMAN
1st & 3rd Floor, 
Modern Motors House
Beaumont Road,
Karachi 75530

T +92 021 3567 2952-56
F +92 021 3568 8834
www.gtpak.com
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, 
whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not 
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. 
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to 
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. 

As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs as applicable in Pakistan, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout 
the audit. We also: 

 •  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and 
perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may 
involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. 

 • Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the 
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

 • Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by 
management.

 • Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, 
whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a 
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related 
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based 
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease 
to continue as a going concern.

 • Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the 
consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

 • Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities within the Group to 
express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the 
Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. 

We communicate with the board of directors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, 
including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Board of Directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to 
communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related 
safeguards.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Muhammad Khalid Aziz. 

Grant Thornton Anjum Rahman
Chartered Accountants

Karachi
Dated: August 29, 2019

Chartered Accountants
Member of Grant Thornton International Ltd

Offices in Islamabad, Lahore
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

Share capital and reserves 
 
Authorised share capital 
250,000,000 (2018: 150,000,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each   2,500,000,000   1,500,000,000 
   
Issued, subscribed and paid-up share capital 
150,000,000 (2018: 106,090,000) ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 5  1,500,000,000   1,060,900,000 
 
Reserves 
Reserve fund   100,000,000   100,000,000 
Unappropriated profit   2,262,580,935   2,235,046,101 
Surplus / (deficit) on revaluation of investments at fair value  
through other comprehensive income - net   381,719   (216,254)
Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment - net 6  699,910,981   711,360,913 
    3,062,873,635   3,046,190,760 
 Total shareholders' equity    4,562,873,635   4,107,090,760 
 
Non-current liabilities 
Long term deposits 7  129,276,460   123,348,500 
Deferred taxation - net 8  86,610,949   103,727,074 
 Total non-current liabilities   215,887,409   227,075,574 
 
Current liabilities 
Trade and other payables 9  511,676,029   532,658,196 
Unearned fee 10  59,717,234   51,897,337 
Taxation - net 11  -     3,828,548 
 Total current liabilities   571,393,263   588,384,081 
Total liabilities   787,280,672   815,459,655 
 
Contingencies and commitments 12  -     -   
Total equity and liabilities   5,350,154,307   4,922,550,415 
 
ASSETS 
Non-current assets 
Fixed assets 
Property and equipment  13.1  1,238,286,860   1,297,565,027 
Intangibles 13.2  157,698,292   137,513,529 
    1,395,985,152   1,435,078,556 
Long term loans - secured 14  74,404,921   60,596,006 
Long term deposits and prepayments 15  11,267,170   7,015,328 
 Total non-current assets   1,481,657,243   1,502,689,890 
Current assets 
Trade debts - net 16  265,087,056   272,553,929 
Loans and advances 17  15,005,283   13,476,577 
Prepayments 18  28,649,602   23,379,174 
Other receivables 19  10,847,515   10,102,402 
Taxation - net 11  13,666,020   -   
Short term investments  20  3,481,542,804   3,040,481,436 
Cash and bank balances 21  53,698,784   59,867,007 
Total current assets   3,868,497,064   3,419,860,525 
 
Total assets     5,350,154,307   4,922,550,415 
 
The annexed notes from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
As at June 30, 2019

Note
 June 30, 2019

Rupees
 June 30, 2018

Rupees

Chairman

-sd- -sd-
Chief Executive Officer
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Chairman

-sd- -sd-
Chief Executive Officer

Operating income - net 22  1,851,826,891   1,989,696,361 
 
Operating and administrative expenses 23  (1,246,838,323)  (1,134,727,159)
 
 Operating profit   604,988,568   854,969,202 
 
Other income 24  304,514,675   173,635,983 
 
Other expenses 25  (8,767,545)  (25,639,074)
 
Financial charges 26  (177,784)  (272,996)
    295,569,346   147,723,913 
 
 Profit before tax   900,557,914   1,002,693,115 
 
Income tax expense  27  (276,574,012)  (332,630,417)
 
  Profit for the year   623,983,902   670,062,698 

     (Restated)    
 
Earnings per share - basic and diluted  28 4.16  4.47 
 
The annexed notes from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

Note
 June 30, 2019

Rupees
 June 30, 2018

Rupees

Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss Account
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2019
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Profit for the year  623,983,902   670,062,698 
 
Other comprehensive loss 
 
Items that may be reclassified to consolidated statement of profit 
 or loss account subsequently 
 
Unrealised gain / (loss) on investments classified at fair value through 
 other comprehensive income  928,342   (323,264)
 
Impact of deferred tax  (330,369)  96,979 
   597,973   (226,285)
Items that will never be reclassified to consolidated statement of 
 profit or loss account 
Loss on remeasurement of retirement benefit obligation  (9,664,000)  (46,153,000)
Impact of current tax  -     14,551,680 
   (9,664,000)  (31,601,320)
 
Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment   -     -   
Impact of deferred tax  -     3,271,409 
   -     3,271,409 
 
Total other comprehensive loss  (9,066,027)  (28,556,196)
 
Total comprehensive income for the year  614,917,875   641,506,502 
 
The annexed notes from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
Rupees

Chairman

-sd- -sd-
Chief Executive Officer

Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2019
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Chairman

-sd- -sd-
Chief Executive Officer

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES 
Profit before income tax   900,557,914   1,002,693,115 
 
Adjustments for items not involving movement of funds 
Depreciation on property and equipment 13.1.1  140,168,814   112,802,979 
Amortization on intangibles 13.2.1  48,826,442   42,227,342 
Gain on disposal of property and equipment 24  (6,561,287)  (1,765,501)
Return on bank deposits 24  (12,819,275)  (4,955,825)
eClear Software Written off 13.2.2  -     5,325,000 
Dividend income   (7,483,580)  -   
Financial charges 26  177,784   272,996 
Reversal of workers' welfare fund 25  13,745,902   -   
Provision for compensated absences 9.2  4,204,952   8,676,330 
Provision for retirement benefit plans 30.3  39,168,000   30,712,000 
    219,427,752   193,295,321 
 Operating profit before working capital changes   1,119,985,666   1,195,988,436 
 
(Increase) / decrease in current assets 
 
Trade debts - net   7,466,873   74,176,450 
Loans and advances   (1,528,706)  592,434 
Prepayments   (5,270,428)  (4,961,799)
Other receivables   (745,113)  (3,420,669)
    (77,374)  66,386,416 
Increase / (decrease) in current liabilities 
 
Trade and other payables   (42,052,405)  (1,994,876)
Short term deposits   -     (460,500)
Unearned fees   7,819,897   4,335,515 
    (34,232,508)  1,880,139 
 
Increase in loans (assets)   (13,808,915)  (16,607,030)
Increase / (Decrease) in deposits and prepayments (assets)   (4,251,842)  8,277,610 
Increase in long term deposits (liabilities)   5,927,960   4,798,000 
    (12,132,797)  (3,531,420)
Cash generated from operations   1,073,542,987   1,260,723,571 
 
Contribution paid to retirement benefit plans 30.2  (39,168,000)  (34,439,000)
Compensated absences paid 9.2  (6,544,616)  (2,084,729)
Financial charges paid  26  (177,784)  (272,996)
Income tax paid   (311,515,074)  (345,417,357)
    (357,405,474)  (382,214,082)
 Net cash from operating activities   716,137,513   878,509,490 
 
CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES 
Capital expenditure incurred   (156,802,277)  (264,058,233)
Proceeds from disposal of property and equipment   13,461,712   2,536,248 
Mark-up received    12,819,275   10,287,395 
Investments - net   928,342   (323,264)
Dividend received   7,483,580   -   
 Net cash used in investing activities   (122,109,368)  (251,557,854)
 
CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES 
 
Dividend paid   (159,135,000)  (183,000,000)
 Net cash used in financing activities   (159,135,000)  (183,000,000)
 Net increase in cash and cash equivalents   434,893,145   443,951,636 
 
Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning   3,100,348,443   2,656,396,807 
Cash and cash equivalents at the end 29  3,535,241,588   3,100,348,443 
 
The annexed notes from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements. 

Note
 June 30, 2019

Rupees
 June 30, 2018

Rupees
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Chairman

-sd- -sd-
Chief Executive Officer

Balance as at July 1, 2017    1,000,000,000   100,000,000   1,829,034,790   10,031   719,539,436   3,648,584,257 
 
Comprehensive income for the year 
 
   -  Profit after income tax    -     -     670,062,698   -     -     670,062,698 
   -  Other comprehensive loss   -     -     (31,601,320)  (226,285)  3,271,409   (28,556,196)
Total comprehensive income for the year   -     -     638,461,378   (226,285)  3,271,409   641,506,502 

Transactions with owners, recognised 
directly in equity 
Final dividend @ 18.3% 
(i.e. Rs. 1.83 per share)"   -     -     (183,000,000)  -     -     (183,000,000)
 
Bonus shares @ 6.09% (i.e. 6.09 million shares)   60,900,000  -     (60,900,000)  -     -     -   
Total transaction with owners   60,900,000   -     (243,900,000)  -     -     (183,000,000)
 
Transferred from surplus on revaluation of 
fixed assets on account of incremental 
depreciation - net off deferred tax 6  -     -     11,449,932   -     (11,449,932) -     

Balance as at  June 30, 2018   1,060,900,000   100,000,000   2,235,046,101   (216,254)  711,360,913   4,107,090,760 
 
Balance as at  July 1, 2018   1,060,900,000   100,000,000   2,235,046,101   (216,254)  711,360,913   4,107,090,760 
 
Comprehensive income for the year 
 
   -  Profit after income tax    -     -     623,983,902   -     -     623,983,902 
  -  Other comprehensive loss   -     -     (9,664,000)  597,973   -     (9,066,027)
Total comprehensive income for the year   -     -     614,319,902   597,973   -     614,917,875 
 
Transactions with owners, recognised 
directly in equity 

Final dividend @ 15% (i.e. Rs. 1.50 per share)   -     -     (159,135,000)  -     -     (159,135,000)
 
Bonus shares @ 41.3894% (i.e. 43.91 million shares)   439,100,000   -     (439,100,000)  -     -     -   
Total transactions with owners   439,100,000   -     (598,235,000)  -     -     (159,135,000)
 
Transferred from surplus on revaluation of 
fixed assets on account of incremental 
depreciation - net off deferred tax 6  -     -     11,449,932   -     (11,449,932) -     

Balance as at  June 30, 2019   1,500,000,000   100,000,000   2,262,580,935   381,719   699,910,981   4,562,873,635  
 
* The Reserve fund is a revenue reserve which has been created in accordance with the requirements of the Articles of Association of the Holding Company. 
 
The annexed notes from 1 to 39 form an integral part of these consolidated financial statements 

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2019

 Total 
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1 THE GROUP AND ITS OPERATIONS 
 
 The 'Group' consists of : 
 
1.1 Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (the Holding Company), and its subsidiaries namely ITMinds Limited (ITML) and CDC Share 

Registrar Services Limited (CSRL). 
 
 Holding Company 
 
 Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited 
 
 The Holding Company was incorporated, as a public company with its liability limited by shares, on January 21, 1993 and received certificate of 

commencement of business on August 10, 1994.  The principal business activity of the Holding Company is to act as a depository for securities 
and to open securities account. The Holding Company also acts as a registrar to the issuer of securities.  

 
 The Holding Company under trust deeds acts as a trustee for various open-end funds and closed-end schemes under the Non Banking Finance 

Companies and Notified Entities Regulations, 2008 and also provides custodial-ship to closed-end funds formed under the said regulations. 
 
 The Holding Company also provides custody and settlement services for Government securities to retail investor and Centralized Information 

Sharing Solution for Insurance Industry (CISSII).  
 
 The registered office of the Holding Company is situated at CDC House, 99-B, Block B, S.M.C.H.S. Karachi, Pakistan. The Holding Company has 

other branch offices in Lahore and Islamabad. 
 
 Subsidiary Companies 
 
 ITMinds Limited 
 
 ITMinds Limited (ITML) was incorporated as public limited company on December 8, 2011 and received certificate of commencement of 

business on January 30, 2012. The registered office of ITML is situated at CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S. Karachi, Pakistan. The principal 
activities of ITML is to provide Information Technology and Business Process Outsourcing (BPO) services. The Holding Company's controlling 
interest is 100% (2018: 100%). 

 
 ITML has been consolidated in these consolidated financial statements on the basis of audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 

2019. 
 
 CDC Share Registrar Services Limited  
 
 CDC Share Registrar Services Limited  (CSRL) (formerly CDC Trustee Company Limited) was incorporated as public limited company on 

September 07, 2012 and received certificate of commencement of business on December 17, 2012. The registered office of CSRL is situated at 
CDC House, 99-B, Block-B, S.M.C.H.S Karachi, Pakistan. The principal activity of CSRL is to proivde share registrar services. The Holding 
Company's controlling interest is 100% (2018: 100%). 

 
 CSRL has been consolidated in these consolidated financial statements on the basis of audited financial statements for the year ended June 30, 

2019.  
 
 During the year, the Holding Company has decided to transfer share registrar service to CDC Share Registrar Services Limited.

2 BASIS OF PRESENTATION    

2.1 Statement of compliance    

 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the approved accounting standards as 
applicable in Pakistan. Approved accounting standards comprise of such International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) issued by 
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), as are notified under the Companies  Act, 2017, provisions of and, directives issued under the 
Companies Act, 2017. Wherever the requirements of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 differ with the requirements of IFRS, 
the requirements of and directives issued under the Companies Act, 2017 shall prevail.t
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2.2 Basis of consolidation 
 
 The consolidated financial statements comprise financial statements of the Holding Company and its subsidiaries together "the Group". The 

assets, liabilities, income and expenses of the subsidiaries have been consolidated on a line by line basis and the carrying value of the investment 
held by the Holding Company has been eliminated against corresponding holding in subsidiaries' shareholders' equity in the consolidated 
financial statements. All intra-group transactions, balances, income and expenses have been eliminated. 

 
 The consolidated financial statements of the Group are prepared for the same reporting year as the unconsolidated financial statements of the 

Holding Company and the subsidiaries, using the same accounting policies which have being consistently applied. 
 
2.3 Standards, Amendments and Interpretations to Approved Accounting Standards  
 
2.3.1 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant to the Group and adopted in the current year 
 
 The Group has adopted the following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations of IFRSs which became effective 

during the current year.  
 
 Standard or Interpretation Effective Date 
  (Annual periods  beginning 
  on or after) 
 
 IFRS 15 'Revenue from Contracts with Customers' July 01, 2018 
 
 IFRS 9 'Financial Instruments' July 01, 2018 
 
 Adoption of the above standard have no significant effect on the amounts for the year ended June 30, 2019. 
 
2.3.2 Standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are effective but not relevant 
 
 The other new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations that are mandatory for the financial year beginning on July 

01, 2018 are considered not to be relevant or to have any significant effect on the Group's financial reporting and operations and are therefore 
not presented here.  

 
2.3.3 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are relevant but not yet effective and not early adopted 

by the Group 
 
 The following new standards, amendments to published standards and interpretations would be effective from the dates mentioned below 

against the respective standard or interpretation. 
 
 Standard or Interpretation Effective Date 
  (Annual periods beginning 
  on or after)
 
 IFRS 16 'Leases' January 01, 2019 
 
 IFRIC 23 'Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments' January 01, 2019 
 
 IAS 28 'Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures' (Amendments to IAS 28) January 01, 2019 
 
 Annual improvements to IFRSs 2015 - 2017 Cycle January 01, 2019 
 
 IAS 19 'Plan Amendment, Curtail or Settlement' (Amendments to IAS 19) January 01, 2019 
 
 IFRS 3 'Definition of a business' Amendment to IFRS 3 January 01, 2020 
 
 IAS 1/IAS 8 'Definition of Material' (Amendments to IAS 1 and IAS 8) January 01, 2020 
 
 Various Amendments to References to the Conceptual Framework in IFRS Standards January 01, 2020 
 
 The Group is in the process of assessing the impact of these Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards on the 

financial statements of the Group.
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2.3.4 Standards, amendments and interpretations to the published standards that are not yet notified by the Securities and Exchange Commission of 
Pakistan (SECP) 

 
 Following new standards have been issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB) which are yet to be notified by the SECP for 

the purpose of applicability in Pakistan.  
 
  IASB effective date 
  Standard or Interpretation (Annual periods beginning 
  on or after) 
 
 IFRS 17 'Insurance Contracts' January 01, 2022 
 
 IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral accounts January 01, 2016 
 
 IFRS 1 - First time adoption of International Financial Reporting July 01, 2009 
 
2.4 Basis of measurement 
 
2.4.1 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention except for recognition of staff retirement 

benefits at present value based on actuarial valuation, leasehold land and building at revalued amount and measurement of certain investments 
at fair value and amortised cost. 

 
2.4.2 These consolidated financial statements have been prepared following accrual basis of accounting except for consolidated statement of cash 

flows. 
 
2.4.3 Items included in the consolidated financial statements are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment in which the 

Holding Company operates.   
 
2.4.4 The preparation of  consolidated financial statements in conformity with approved accounting standards requires management to make 

judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabilities, income and expenses. 
The estimates and associated assumptions are based on historical experience and various other factors that are believed to be reasonable under 
the circumstances, the result of which form the basis of making the judgments about carrying values of assets and liabilities that are not readily 
apparent from other sources. Actual results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an 
ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimates are revised if the revision affects only that 
period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the revision affects both current and future periods. The areas involving a higher 
degree of judgment or complexity or area where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are as follows:

 
  Note

 a) Staff retirement benefits 4.2
 b) Useful life of operating property and equipment and intangible assets 4.3
 c) Impairment of doubtful trade debts 4.6
 d) Provision for taxation and deferred taxation 4.10
 e) Revaluation of land and building 4.3 & 13
 f) Investments 4.5
 
 Estimates and judgments are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expectation of future 

events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Management believes that changes in outcome of estimates will not have 
material effect on the consolidated financial statements. 

 
2.5 General 
 
 The figures have been rounded off to the nearest Rupee.
 
3 Presentation and functional currency 
 
 The consolidated financial statements have been presented in Pakistani Rupees, which is the Group's functional and presentation currency. 
 
4 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
 The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies and 

methods of computation have been consistently applied to all the periods presented, unless otherwise stated.
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4.1 Business combinations  
 
 The Group applies the acquisition method in accounting for business combinations. The consideration transferred by the Group to obtain 

control of a subsidiary is calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of assets transferred, liabilities incurred and the equity interests 
issued by the Group, which includes the fair value of any asset or liability arising from a contingent consideration arrangement, if any. Acquisition 
costs are expensed as incurred.  

 
 The Group recognises identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed in a business combination regardless of whether they have been 

previously recognised in the acquiree’s financial statements prior to the acquisition. Assets acquired and liabilities assumed are generally 
measured at their acquisition-date fair values.  

 
4.2 Staff retirement benefits 
 
4.2.1 Defined benefit plan 
 
 The Group operates a defined benefit plan i.e. funded gratuity fund for all its confirmed employees who have completed minimum qualifying 

period of service as per the laid down rules and joined before January 01, 2014. Contributions are made monthly to this fund on the basis of 
actuarial recommendations. The amount arising as a result of remeasurements are recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position 
immediately, with a charge or credit to consolidated statement of comprehensive income in the periods in which they occur. The significant 
actuarial assumptions are stated in note 30. 

 
4.2.2 Defined contribution plan 
 
 The Group also operates two defined contribution plans i.e. provident fund and a defined contribution gratuity fund. 
 
 Provident fund 
 
 The Group operates an approved contributory provident fund for all employees. Equal monthly contributions at the rate of 10% of basic salary 

are made to the fund both by the Group and the employees. 
 
 Defined Contribution (DC) Gratuity fund 
 
 The Group has established a defined contribution plan - DC Gratuity Fund for permanent employees who joined on or after January 01, 2014. 

Contributions are made by the Group to the plan at the rate of 8.33% per annum of the basic salary. 

4.2.3 Other benefits 
 
 Compensated absences 
 
 The Group has the policy to provide for encashable compensated absences of its employees in accordance with respective entitlement on 

cessation of services. Related expected cost thereof has been recognized in the consolidated financial statements on the basis of best actuarial 
assumption. 

 
4.3 Property and equipment 
 
 Owned 
 
 These are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses, if any: except for land and building which are stated 

at revalued amounts less any subsequent accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment losses, if any. Individual items 
costing Rs. 25,000 or less are not capitalized and treated as a period cost. Borrowing cost is dealt with as stated in note 4.4 of these 
consolidated financial statements. 

 
 Depreciation is calculated on a straight line method at the rates given in note 13 and is charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss 

account. Depreciation on additions during the year is charged from the month of addition, while no depreciation is charged in the month of 
retirement/disposal.   

 
 The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each financial year end. 
 
 Normal repairs and maintenance costs are charged to consolidated statement of profit or loss account in the period of their occurrence, while 

major renovations and improvements are capitalized. Gain or loss on disposal is taken to consolidated statement of profit or loss account.
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 Revaluation of assets 
 
 Revaluation is carried out with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying amount of assets does not differ materially from the fair value. 

Any surplus on revaluation of fixed assets is credited to the surplus on revaluation of property and equipment. Incremental depreciation arising 
on such revaluation will be charged from subsequent month of revaluation.  

 
 Leased 
 
 The Group accounts for assets acquired under finance leases by recording the assets and the related liability. These amounts are determined at 

the inception of lease, on the basis of the lower of the fair value and the present value of minimum lease payments. Financial charges are 
allocated to the accounting period in a manner so as to provide a constant rate of charge on the outstanding liability. Depreciation is charged 
to consolidated statement of profit or loss account applying the same basis as for owned assets. 

 
 Capital work-in-progress 
 
 Capital work-in-progress is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. All operating assets are routed through capital work-in-progress 

account. All expenditures, including payroll, connected to the specific assets incurred during installation and construction period are carried 
under capital work-in-progress. These are transferred to specific assets as and when assets are available for use. 

 
4.3.1 Intangibles 
 
 Costs that are directly associated with identifiable software products controlled by the Group and have probable economic benefit beyond one 

year are recognized as intangible assets. 
 
 Software 
 
 Intangible assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization and impairment losses, if any. These are amortized using the straight line 

method reflecting the pattern in which the economic benefits of the assets are consumed by the Group. 
 
 Amortization is charged from the month of addition to the month preceding the month of retirement / disposal. The amortization period for 

software is five years. 
 
 Software under implementation 
 
 Software under implementation is stated at cost less any identified impairment loss. Expenditures connected to the specific software under 

implementation incurred during development period are carried under software under implementation. These are transferred to specific assets 
as and when assets are available for use. 

 
4.3.2 Impairment of non-financial assets 
 
 The carrying amounts of non financial assets are assessed at each reporting date to ascertain whether there is any indication of impairment. If 

any such indication exists then the asset's recoverable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized, as an expense in the consolidated 
statement of profit or loss account, for the amount by which the asset's carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable 
amount is the higher of an asset's fair value less cost to sell and value in use. Value in use is ascertained through discounting of the estimated 
future cash flows using a discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and the risk specific to the assets. 
For the purpose of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest levels at which these are generating separately identifiable cash flows 
(cash generating units).  

 
4.4 Borrowing costs 
 
 Borrowing costs are interest or other costs incurred by the Group in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost that is directly 

attributable to a qualifying asset is capitalized as part of cost of that asset. All other borrowing costs are charged to consolidated statement of 
profit or loss account in the period in which they are incurred. 

 
4.5 IFRS 9 - Financial Instruments - Initial Recognition and subsequent measurement
 
 Initial recognition 
 
 All financial assets and liabilities are initially measured at cost which is the fair value of the consideration given or received. These are 

subsequently measured at fair value, amortized cost or cost as the case may be.
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 Classification of financial assets 
 
 The Group classifies its financial instruments in the following categories:
 - at fair value through profit or loss (""FVTPL"")
 - at fair value through other comprehensive income (""FVTOCI""), or
 - at amortized cost. 
 
 The Group determines the classifications of financial assets at initial recognition. The classification of instruments (other than equity 

instruments) is driven by the Group's business model for managing the financial assets and their contractual cash flow characteristics. 
 
 Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at amortized cost: 
 
 - the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and  

 - the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified date to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 
principal amount outstanding. 

 
 Financial assets that meet the following conditions are subsequently measured at FVTOCI: 
 
 - the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective achieved by both collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial 

assets; and  
 
 - the contractual terms of the financial assets give rise on specified date to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the 

principal amount outstanding. 
 
 By default, all other financial assets are subsequently measured at FVTPL. 
 
 Classification of financial liabilities 
 
 The Group classifies its financial liabilities in the following categories: 
 
 - at fair value through profit or loss ("FVTPL"), or 
 
 - at amortized cost 
 
 Financial liabilities are measured at amortized cost, unless they are required to be measured at FVTPL (such as instrument held for trading or 

derivatives) or the Group has opted to measure them  at FVTPL. 
 
 Subsequent measurement 
 
 i) Financial assets at FVTOCI 
 
 Elected investments in equity instruments at FVTOCI are initially recognized at fair value plus transaction costs. Subsequently, they are 

measured at fair value, with gains or losses arising from changes in fair value recognized in other comprehensive income/loss. 
 
 ii) Financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost 
 
 Financial assets and liabilities at amortized cost are initially recognized at fair value, and subsequently carried at amortized cost, and in the case 

of financial assets, less any impairment. 
 
 iii) Financial assets and liabilities at FVTPL 
 
 Financial assets and liabilities carried at FVTPL are initially recorded at fair value and transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated 

statement of profit or loss account. Realized and unrealized gains and losses arising from changes in the fair value of financial assets and liabilities 
held at FVTPL are included in the consolidated statement of profit or loss account in the period in which they arise. 

 
 Where the management has opted to recognize a financial liability at FVTPL, any changes associated with the Group's own credit risk will be 

recognized in other comprehensive income/(loss). Currently, there are no financial liabilities designated at FVTPL. 
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 Impairment of financial assets 
 
 The Group recognizes loss allowance for Expected Credit Loss (ECL) on financial assets measured at amortized cost and FVTOCI at an amount 

equal to life time ECLs except for the financial assets in which there is no significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition or financial 
assets which are determine to have low credit risk at the reporting date, in which case twelve months' ECL is recorded. The following were 
either determine to have low or there was no credit risk since initial recognition and at the reporting date: 

 
 - bank balances; 
 
 - employee receivable; and  
 
 - other receivables. 
 
 -Loss allowance for trade receivables are always measured at an amount equal to life time ECLs. 
 
 Life time ECLs are the ECLs that result from all possible default events over the expected life of a financial instrument. Twelve months ECLs are 

portion of ECL that result from default events that are possible within twelve months after the reporting date. 
 
 ECLs are a probability weighted estimate of credit losses. Credit losses are measured at the present value of all cash short falls (i.e. the 

difference between cash flows due to the entity in accordance with the contract and cash flows that the company expects to receive). 
 
 The gross carrying amount of a financial asset is written off when the Group has no reasonable expectation of recovering a financial asset in 

entirety or a portion thereof.  
 
 Derecognition 
 
 i) Financial assets 
 
 The Group derecognizes financial assets only when the contractual rights to cash flows from the financial assets expire or when it transfer the 

financial assets and substantially all the associated risks and reward of ownership to another entity. On derecognition of financial assets 
measured at amortized cost, the difference between the assets carrying value and the sum of the consideration received and receivable 
recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss account. In addition, on derecognition of an investment in a debt instrument classified as 
at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve reclassified to consolidated statement of 
profit or loss account. In contrast, on derecognition of an investment in equity instrument which the Group has elected on initial recognition 
to measure at FVTOCI, the cumulative gain or loss previously accumulated in the investments revaluation reserve is not reclassified to 
consolidated statement of profit or loss account, but is transferred to consolidated statement of changes in equity. 

 
 ii) Financial liabilities 
 
 The Group derecognizes financial liabilities only when its obligations under the financial liabilities are discharged, cancelled or expired. The 

difference between the carrying amount of the financial liabilities derecognized and the consideration paid and payable, including any non-cash 
assets transferred or liabilities assumed, is recognized in consolidated statement of profit or loss account. 

 
 Financial assets - policy upto June 30, 2018 
 
 Trade debts and other receivable were recognized initially at fair value and subsequently, at amortized cost less impairment, if any. Provision for 

impairment of trade and other receivable was established when there is an objective evidence that the will not be able to collect all amounts 
due according to terms of receivables. Trade receivable considered irrecoverable were written off.  

 
 Off-setting of financial assets and liabilities 
 
 Financial assets and liabilities are off set and the net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of financial position if the Company has 

a legal right to set-off the transactions and also intends either to settle on a net basis or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

4.6 Trade debts and other receivables 
 
 Trade debts and other receivables are stated at cost less impairment losses, if any. Refer note 4.5 for a description of the Group's impairment 

policies.

4.7 Provisions, contingencies and commitments
   
 A provision is recognized in the consolidated statement of financial position when the Group has a legal or constructive obligation as a result 

of a past event, it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation and a reliable 
estimate can be made of the amount of obligation.

 No liability is recognized if an outflow of economic resources as a result of present obligations is not probable. Such situations are disclosed as 
contingent liabilities unless the outflow of resources is remote.

 Commitments for outstanding capital expenditure contracts are disclosed in these consolidated financial statements at committed amounts. 
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4.8 Trade and other payables 
 
 Liabilities for trade and other payables are carried at cost which is the fair value of the consideration to be paid in future for services. 
 
4.9 Foreign currency translations 
 
 Monetary assets and liabilities in foreign currencies are translated into Pakistani Rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the reporting date. 

Transactions in foreign currencies are converted into Pakistani rupees at the rates of exchange prevailing at the transaction date. Exchange gains 
or losses are taken to consolidated statement of profit or loss account. 

 
 Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates as at the dates 

of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date 
when the fair value was determined. 

 
4.10 Taxation 
 
4.10.1 Current 
 
 The charge for current taxation is based on taxable income at the current rates of taxation after taking into account available tax credit and 

rebates, if any. Income for the purpose of computing current taxation is determined under the provisions of tax laws. 
 
4.10.2 Deferred 
 
 Deferred tax is provided for, using the consolidated statement of financial position liability method, providing the temporary differences 

between the carrying amount of assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amount used for taxation purposes. The amount 
of deferred taxation provided is based on the expected manner of realization or settlement of the carrying amount of assets and liabilities using 
tax rates enacted at the reporting date. Deferred tax asset is recognized only to the extent that it is probable that the future taxable profits 
will be available and credits can be utilized.  

 
 Deferred tax is calculated at the rates that are expected to apply to the period when the differences reverse, based on tax rates that have been 

enacted. The Group takes into account the current income tax law and decisions taken by the taxation authorities.  
 
 Deferred tax is charged or credited in the consolidated statement of profit or loss account, except in the case of items credited or charged to 

consolidated statement of comprehensive income/consolidated statement of changes in equity in which case it is included in consolidated 
statement of comprehensive income/consolidated statement of changes in equity. 

 
4.11 Cash and cash equivalent 
 
 Cash and cash equivalent are carried in the consolidated statement of financial position at cost and amortized cost respectively. For the purpose 

of consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents compromise cash and bank balances and only those short term investments 
which are highly liquid and maturing within three months from the date of acquisition, that readily convertible into known amounts of cash and 
which are subject to an insignificant risk of change in value. 

 
4.12 Revenue recognition 
 
 Revenue is recognized when the services have been rendered by the Group and received by the customer and there is no unfulfilled obligation 

that could affect the customer's acceptance of the service. Revenue of different streams is recognized as follows: 
 
 Transaction fee for settlement of trades in eligible securities through Central Depository System (CDS) is recognized in full upon settlement 

in CDS on the basis of market value of securities. Transaction fee on government securities is charged and recognized on per trade basis. 
 
 Custody fee is recognized on daily basis for balance of securities present in CDS on closing market value of last trading session of every trading 

day of the month at the Pakistan Stock Exchange. Custody fee on government securities is recognized daily on cost. 
 
 Annual fee and CDS connection fee are recognized on the basis of contractual obligation. 
 
 Other fees are recognized when the Group renders the related services. 
 
 Income from trustee operations is recognized on the basis of average daily net asset value of the funds. 
 
 Income from IT services are recognized as revenue with reference to the stage of completion of the transaction, unless they are incidental to 

the sale of software licenses, in which case they are recognized upon transfer of licensing rights.  
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 Revenue from Business Process Outsourcing (BPO) services are recognized as the related services performed, in accordance with specific 
terms of the contract with customers. 

 
 Gains and losses on sale of investments are accounted for in the year which they arise. 
 
 Return on fixed income securities and term deposits are recognized on a time proportion basis. 

4.13 Interest and dividends income 
 
 Interest income and expenses are reported on an accrual basis using the effective interest method. Dividends, other than those from 

investments in associates and joint ventures are recognized at the time the right to receive payment is established. 
 
4.14 Dividend and appropriation 
 
 Dividend distribution to the Group shareholders' of the Holding Company is recognized as a liability in the consolidated financial statements 

in the period in which such dividends are approved.  
 
4.15 Related party transactions 
 
 All transactions with related parties are carried out by the Group at arm's length prices using the comparable uncontrolled valuation method. 

4.16 Earnings per share 
 
 The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share (EPS) for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated by dividing the profit or loss 

attributable to ordinary shareholders of the Holding Company by the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding during the 
period. Diluted EPS is determined by adjusting the profit or loss attributable to ordinary shareholders and the weighted average number of 
ordinary shares outstanding for the effects of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. 

 
4.17 Segment reporting 
 
 Segment information is presented on the same basis as that used for internal reporting purposes by the management, which is responsible for 

allocating resources and assessing performance of the operating segments. The basis of segmentation and reportable segments presented in 
these consolidated financial statements are the same which are presented to the Board of Directors of the Holding Company. Assets and 
liabilities are not segment wise reported to the Board of Directors. 

 
4.18 CHANGE IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
 
 i) IFRS 9 - Financial Instrument 
 
 IFRS 9 replaces the provisions of IAS 39 that relate to the recognition, classification and measurement of financial assets and financial liabilities, 

derecognition of financial instrument, impairment of financial assets and hedge accounting. The adoption of IFRS 9 from July 1, 2018 resulted in 
changes in accounting policies and adjustments to the  amount recognized in the consolidated  financial statements. The new accounting policies 
are set out in the note 4.5 above. In accordance with the transitional provisions in IFRS 9, corresponding figures have not been restated. 

 
 Classifications and remeasurement 
 
 On 1 July 2018 (the date of initial application of IFRS 9), the Group's management has assessed business models apply to the financial assets 

held by the Group and has classified its financial instruments into the appropriate IFRS 9 categories. The main effects resulting from these 
reclassifications and adjustments are as follows:

 Closing balance 
 June 30, 2018  - IAS 39 
 
 Trade debts-net a,b  -     -     (272,553,929)  272,553,929 
 Loans and advances   -     -     (13,476,577)  13,476,577 
 Other receivables   -     -     (10,102,402)  10,102,402 
 Cash and bank balances   -     -     (59,867,007)  59,867,007 
    -     -     (355,999,915)  355,999,915 
 
 Opening balance 
  July 1, 2018 - IFRS   -     -      (355,999,915)  355,999,915 

Amortised cost
Loans and
receivable

--------------------------Amount in Rupees ---------------------

FVOCIFVTPLNote
Financial assets
July 1, 2018
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5  ISSUED, SUBSCRIBED AND PAID-UP SHARE CAPITAL 
 

 

    10,000,000   10,000,000  Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each  100,000,000   100,000,000 
      fully paid in cash  
 
     Ordinary shares of Rs. 10 each 
      issued as fully paid bonus shares 
    96,090,000   90,000,000  - Beginning of the year  960,900,000   900,000,000 
    43,910,000   6,090,000  - During the year  439,100,000   60,900,000 
    140,000,000   96,090,000  Total bonus shares  1,400,000,000   960,900,000 
    150,000,000   106,090,000    1,500,000,000   1,060,900,000 
 
5.1  Associated companies held 104,712,000 (2018: 74,059,305) shares in the Holding Company as at year end. 
 
5.2  During the year the Holding Company increased its authorized share capital in order to: 
 
  - comply with Central Depositories (Licensing and Operations) Regulations, 2016; and 
  
  - maintain a strong capital base to support the sustained development of its business. 

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
Rupees

 June 30, 2019  June 30, 2018
Number of shares

 There is no impact on the Group's statement of changes in equity as a result of the above changes.  
 
 ii) IFRS 15 - Revenue from contracts with customers 
 
 The Group has adopted IFRS 15 from July 1, 2018 which resulted in changes in accounting policies and adjustments to the amounts recognized 

in the consolidated financial statements. However, in accordance with the transition provisions in IFRS 15, there is no impact on the Group that 
require retrospective change and restatement of comparatives for the year ended June 30, 2018. 

 
 iii) IFRS 8 - Operating Segment 
 
 During the year the Holding Company has change its policy of segment reporting. Previously the Holding Company considers itself to be a 

single reportable segment. The new policy of segment reporting are disclosed in note 4.17. The retrospective impact of the segment information 
has been disclosed in note 33.

 Financial assets 
 Trade debts-net Loans and receivables Amortized cost  272,553,929   272,553,929 
 Loans and advances Loans and receivables Amortized cost  13,476,577   13,476,577 
 Other receivables Loans and receivables Amortized cost  10,102,402   10,102,402 
 Cash and bank balances Loans and receivables Amortized cost  59,867,007   59,867,007 
 
 
 Financial liabilities 
 Trade and other payable Other financial liabilities Other financial liabilities  532,658,196   532,658,196 

New carrying
amount under 

IFRS 9

--------------Rupees-----------

Original amount
under
IAS 39

New classification
under IFRS 9

Original classification
under IAS 39

 a) IFRS 9 replaces the 'incurred loss' model in IAS 39 with an 'Expected Credit Loss' (ECL) model. The Group has determined that the 
application of IFRS 9 impairment requirement at July 1, 2018 that results in no additional allowance for trade receivables. 

 
 b) The Group has adopted consequential amendments to IAS 1 Presentation of Financial Statements which require impairment of financial 

assets to be presented in a separate line item in the consolidated statement of profit or loss account. However, during the year ended June 30, 
2018 there was no provision for doubtful debts that could be reclassified to 'impairment loss on trade receivables' in the consolidated 
statement of profit or loss account. 

 
 The following table below explains the original measurement categories under IAS 39 and the new measurement categories under IFRS 9 for 

each class of the Group's financial assets and liabilities as at July 1, 2018. 
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7.1 These represent security deposits received from different categories of Central Depository System (CDS) elements for their admission in the 
CDS. According to regulation 3.8.4 of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited Regulations, such deposits may be utilized by the 
Holding Company for any purpose whatsoever and shall be refundable at the time of termination of admission to the CDS. 

 
7.2 It includes long term deposits amounting to Rs. 2.7 million (2018: Rs. 3 million) from related parties. 
 
7.3 This pertains to the security deposit placed with the Holding Company against rented premises provided to Byco Petroleum Pakistan Limited.

Notes to the Consolidated  Financial Statements
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2019

6 SURPLUS ON REVALUATION OF PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT - NET 

 Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment at the beginning of the year    801,488,237   817,681,712 
 Revaluation surplus on property and equipment 6.1  -     -   
 
 Transferred to accumulated profit: 
  - surplus relating to incremental depreciation transferred to 
    unappropriated profit during the  year - net of deferred tax   (11,449,932)  (11,449,932)
 
  - related deferred tax liability   (4,743,543)  (4,743,543)
    (16,193,527)  (16,193,527)
 Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment at the end of the year    785,294,762   801,488,237 
 
 Less: related deferred tax liability on: 
 
  -   surplus on revaluation of property and equipment at the beginning of the year    (90,127,324)  (98,142,276)
  -   remeasurement of deferred tax liability due to change in tax rate   -     3,271,409 
  -   incremental depreciation charged during the year transferred to 
      consolidated statement of profit and loss account   4,743,543   4,743,543 
 
 Deferred tax liability on surplus on revaluation of 
 property and equipment at the end of the year  8  (85,383,781)  (90,127,324)
 
 Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment - net   699,910,981   711,360,913 
 

6.1 Land and building has been revalued on June 30, 2017, which resulted in further revaluation surplus of Rs. 321,819,035. 
 

7 LONG TERM DEPOSITS 

 Due to:  
 -  Participants   40,612,000   40,813,139 
 -  Institutions   33,124,000   32,022,861 
 -  Pledgees   1,600,000   1,600,000 
 -  Issuers   52,375,000   48,912,500 
 -  Others 7.3  1,565,460   -   
    129,276,460   123,348,500 

Note
 June 30, 2019

Rupees
 June 30, 2018

Rupees

Note
 June 30, 2019

Rupees
 June 30, 2018

Rupees
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8 DEFERRED TAXATION - NET

 Deferred tax asset arising in respect of temporary differences on: 
 
 - Provision for doubtful debts   (336,150)  (336,150)
 
 - Deferred tax arising in respect of minimum tax   (12,856,278)  (7,670,457)
 
 - Surplus on revaluation of investments at fair value through other comprehensive income   237,666   (93,750)
 
 Deferred tax liabilities arising in respect of temporary differences on: 
 
 - Excess of accounting written down value under cost model  
      over tax written down value of property and equipment   14,181,930   21,700,107 
 
 - Surplus on revaluation of property and equipment  6  85,383,781   90,127,324  

    86,610,949   103,727,074 
9 TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES 
 
 Payable to suppliers   2,886,027   7,650,597 
 Accrued expenses   257,889,699   276,428,943 
 Employees’ retirement benefits and other obligations 9.1  144,106,308   132,351,233 
 Investor account services - current account   90,734,789   84,893,299 
 Workers' welfare fund payable   -     13,745,902 
 Sales tax payable   12,106,007   16,622,083 
 Others   3,953,199   966,138 
    511,676,029   532,658,196 
9.1 Employees’ retirement benefits and other obligations 
 
 Net defined benefit obligation 30.2  102,710,550   93,046,550 
 Accumulated compensated absences 9.2  36,965,019   39,304,683 
 Payable to Provident Fund   3,000,000   -   
 Salaries related payable   1,430,739   -   
    144,106,308   132,351,233 
9.2 Accumulated compensated absences 
 
 Opening balance   39,304,683   32,713,082 
 Provision for the year 23.1  4,204,952   8,676,330 
 Payments during the year   (6,544,616)  (2,084,729)
 Closing balance   36,965,019   39,304,683 

10 UNEARNED FEE 

 Annual fee 
  - Issuers   3,089,698   3,715,541 
  - Investor Account Services (IAS)   11,272,634   7,023,554 
  - Centralized Information Sharing Solution for Insurance Industry (CISSII) Participants   7,460,017   6,260,016 
 Investment Portfolio Services (IPS) annual fee   25,500   22,438 
 Sub account maintenance fee   33,082,038   29,895,618 
 Business Process Outsourcing (BPO) Services    4,526,436   4,980,170 
 Others   260,911   -   
    59,717,234   51,897,337 
 
11 TAXATION - NET 
 
 Provision for taxation - net   -     3,828,548 
 
 Taxation - net (Assets)   13,666,020   -   

Note
 June 30, 2019

Rupees
 June 30, 2018

Rupees

Notes to the Consolidated  Financial Statements
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2019

157

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited | Annual Report 2019



Note
 June 30, 2019

Rupees
 June 30, 2018

Rupees

11.1 The return of income of the Holding Company for the Tax Year 2018 was amended and Order under section 122(5A) was passed. Addition on 
account of certain expenses were made and  demand of Rs. 17.3 million was raised. The Holding Company paid the tax demand and filed appeal 
before the Commissioner Inland Revenue (Appeals) [CIR(A)]. The CIR(A) vide its Order dated June 17, 2019 accepted the appeal of the Holding 
Company. However, the CIR(A) confirmed the addition ade on 'initial allowance' claimed by the Holding Company amounting to Rs. 3.90 million. 
The CIR(A) also remanded back the issue of claim of 'repair and maintenance expense' incurred by the Holding Company. An appeal against the 
Order of CIR(A) lies before Appellate Tribunal Inland Revenue (ATIR). 

 
12 CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS 
 
12.1 Contingencies 
 
12.1.1 During 2014-2015, the Sindh Revenue Board (SRB) passed an order in relation to tax periods commencing from July 2011 up to June 2013 with 

regards to chargeability of Sindh Sales Tax (SST) amounting to Rs. 297 million including penalty. Subsequently, the penalty amounting to Rs. 15 
million was removed and the revised demand restricted to Rs. 282 million. SRB was of the opinion that services rendered by the Holding 
Company were falling under the ambit of Non-Banking Finance Companies (NBFC). Not agreeing with the SRB’s contention, the Holding 
Company pursued the matter in appeal and through the order dated February 28, 2018, the Hon’able Appellate Tribunal – SRB has decided the 
case in favor of the Holding Company and has vacated the above referred tax demand.

 
 Apart from the above, the SRB has also issued a notice for the periods from July 2013 through June 2015, requiring the Holding Company to 

show-cause as to why SST of Rs 344.6 million including penalty may not be recovered from the Holding Company on alleged failure to charge 
SST on its services. The management on the basis of above-referred judgment of Hon’able Appellate Tribunal – SRB have filed the application in 
the Honorable Sindh High Court for vacation of the same and is confident that the matter will be resolved in Holding Company’s favor and 
therefore no provision has been recognized in these consolidated financial statements.

 

12.2 Commitments

 Commitment for capital expenditure for acquisition of 
 software, hardware and office equipments   1,600,108   5,119,964 
 
 Investment in Naymat Collateral Management 12.2.1  30,000,000   -   
 
12.2.1 During the year, the board of directors of the Holding Company approved the proposed investment. This commitment is subject to the 

statutory approval. 
 

13 FIXED ASSETS
 
13.1 Property and equipment
 
 Operating assets 13.1.1  1,237,113,461   1,294,982,078 
 Capital work-in-progress  13.1.5  1,173,399   2,582,949 
    1,238,286,860   1,297,565,027 

Note
 June 30, 2019

Rupees
 June 30, 2018

Rupees

Notes to the Consolidated  Financial Statements
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2019

158



13.1.1 Operating assets

Notes to the Consolidated  Financial Statements
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2019

 Net book value at the beginning of the year  549,999,000   445,322,662   24,543,667   43,195,607   34,076,098   78,800,872   1,175,937,906 
 Additions  -     106,527,147   8,925,562   20,443,146   12,838,197   83,883,846   232,617,898 
 Revaluation  -     -     -     -     -     -     - 
 
 Disposals  
      Cost  -     -     (10,303,660)  (8,269,108)  (10,797,884)  (46,853,558)  (76,224,210)
      Depreciation  -     -     10,198,433   8,256,564   10,278,144   46,720,322   75,453,463 
   -     -     (105,227)  (12,544)  (519,740)  (133,236)  (770,747)
 Transferred  
 Cost  -     -      -      -     - 
 Depreciation  -     -      -      -     - 
 
 Depreciation charge for the year  -     (30,369,812)  (8,572,730)  (17,618,731)  (13,043,207)  (43,198,499)  (112,802,979)
 Net book value at the end of the year  549,999,000   521,479,997   24,791,272   46,007,478   33,351,348   119,352,983   1,294,982,078 
 
 As at June 30, 2018 
 
 Cost / revalued amount  549,999,000   551,849,809   168,219,333   94,983,014   199,003,471   441,404,817   2,005,459,444 
 Accumulated depreciation  -     (30,369,812)  (143,428,061)  (48,975,536)  (165,652,123)  (322,051,834)  (710,477,366)
 Net book value at the end of the year  549,999,000   521,479,997   24,791,272   46,007,478   33,351,348   119,352,983   1,294,982,078 
 
 Depreciation rate - 5% 20% 20% 20% 25% 

 Net book value at the beginning of the year  549,999,000   521,479,997   24,791,272   46,007,478   33,351,348   119,352,983   1,294,982,078 
 Additions  -     1,074,164   366,177   45,644,100   3,657,417   38,458,764   89,200,622 
 Revaluation  -     -     -     -     -     -     - 
 
 Disposals  
      Cost  -     (676,405)  (3,931,058)  (35,771,390)  (3,939,297)  (1,736,543)  (46,054,693)
      Depreciation  -     188,170   3,928,887   29,814,284   3,716,088   1,506,839   39,154,268 
   -     (488,235)  (2,171)  (5,957,106)  (223,209)  (229,704)  (6,900,425)
 
 Depreciation charge for the year  -     (33,384,989)  (9,422,972)  (20,172,944)  (11,968,357)  (65,219,552)  (140,168,814)
 Net book value at the end of the year  549,999,000   488,680,937   15,732,306   65,521,528   24,817,199   92,362,491   1,237,113,461 
 
 As at June 30, 2019 
 
 Cost / revalued amount  549,999,000   552,247,568   164,654,452   104,855,724   198,721,591   478,127,038   2,048,605,373 
 Accumulated depreciation  -     (63,566,631)  (148,922,146)  (39,334,196)  (173,904,392)  (385,764,547)  (811,491,912)
 Net book value at the end of the year  549,999,000   488,680,937   15,732,306   65,521,528   24,817,199   92,362,491   1,237,113,461 
 
 Depreciation rate - 5% 20% 20% 20% 25%-33.33%

Leasehold landNoteYear ended June 30, 2019 Building
Furniture,

fixtures and
electrical

equipment

Vehicles

OWNED

----------------------------------------------------------- Rupees -----------------------------------------------------------

----------------------------------------------------------- Rupees -----------------------------------------------------------

Office
equipment

Computer
equipment

Total operating
assets

Leasehold landYear ended June 30, 2018 Building

Furniture,
fixtures and
electrical

equipment

Vehicles

OWNED

Office
equipment

Computer
equipment

Total operating
assets
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13.1.2 Land - lease hold and building  had previously been revalued on June 30, 2012. 
 The Holding Company as on June 30, 2017 again revalued its land - lease hold and building. The revaluation exercise was carried out by 

independent valuer - MYK Associates (Pvt.) Limited, (Approved valuers of Pakistan Banks' Association and Leasing Association of Pakistan) I. I. 
Chundrigar Road, Karachi. The valuer has estimated the remaining life of the buildings to be 20 years. Leasehold land was revalued on the basis 
of current market price whereas buildings was revalued on the basis of depreciated market value.  

 
 The difference levels have been defined in IFRS 13 as follows: 
 
 - Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities (level 1); 
 - Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly 

(i.e., derived from prices) (level 2); and
 - Inputs for the assets or liabilities that are not based on observable market data (i.e., unobservable inputs e.g. estimated future) (level 3)

 The appraisal surplus arisen on last revaluation exercise aggregating Rs. 261.939 million has been incorporated in the books of the Company in 
accordance with the provisions of Companies Act 2017. .  

 
  
 
13.1.3 Had there been no revaluation of leasehold land and building, the cost and written down values would have been as follows: 

 Leasehold land  59,458,250   59,458,250   59,458,250   59,458,250 
 Building  325,805,722   324,731,558   197,757,527   210,696,131 
 
13.1.4 On the basis of last revaluation report, the forced sale value of assets at revalued model is Rs. 796.2 million. 
 

13.1.5 Capital work in progress 

 Balance at the beginning of the year   2,582,949   27,443,837 
 
 Additions  
 -  Furniture, fixtures and electrical equipment   305,723   1,514,361 
 -  Building   1,074,164   115,066,871 
 -  Computers and office equipment   42,000,169   69,323,082 
 -  Vehicles   45,787,050   21,852,696 
    89,167,106   207,757,010 
    91,750,055   235,200,847 
 Transferred to operating assets 13.1.1  (90,576,656)  (232,617,898)
 Balance at the end of the year   1,173,399   2,582,949 
 
13.2 Intangibles 
 
 Software 13.2.1  156,983,658   136,336,096 
 Software under implementation 13.2.2  714,634   1,177,433 
    157,698,292   137,513,529 
 
13.2.1 Software 
 
 Net book value at the beginning of the year   136,336,096   107,631,201 
 Additions 13.2.2  69,474,004   70,932,237 
 Deletions   -     -   
 Amortization charge for the year 23  (48,826,442)  (42,227,342)
 Net book value at the end of the year   156,983,658   136,336,096 
 
 Cost   516,718,898   447,244,894 
 Accumulated amortization   (359,735,240)  (310,908,798)
 Net book value at the end of the year   156,983,658   136,336,096 
 
 Amortization rate  20%  20% 

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
Rupees

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
Rupees

Cost Net book value under cost model

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
RupeesNote
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13.2.2 Software under implementation 
 
 Balance at the beginning of the year   1,177,433   21,133,447 
 Additions   69,011,205   56,301,223 
    70,188,638  77,434,670 
 Transferred to software 13.2.1  (69,474,004)  (70,932,237)
 eClear Software Written off   -     (5,325,000)
 Balance at the end of the year   714,634   1,177,433 

13.3 Details of disposal of fixed assets through bid / negotiation having net book value of Rs. 500,000 or above: 
 
 

 Toyota Corolla GLI   1,969,000   492,250   1,476,750   1,994,000   517,250 EFU general Insurance Limited (Insurer)
 Honda City Aspire  1,794,000   1,166,100   627,900   1,545,000   917,100  Sold to Mr. Imran Tai (Employee) 
   3,763,000   1,658,350   2,104,650   3,539,000   1,434,350 

13.4 The disposal also include transfer of vehicles at written down value amounting to Rs. 1,782,750 to employees of the Holding Company in 
pursuance of terms of employement. 

 

14 LONG TERM LOANS - SECURED
 
 Considered good - secured 
 - Housing loans 14.1  66,883,881   55,530,485 
 - Car loans 14.2  19,860,610   14,790,235 
    86,744,491   70,320,720 
 - Transferred to current maturity 17  (12,339,570)  (9,724,714)
    74,404,921   60,596,006 
 Loan outstanding for period: 
 More than one year but less than three years   22,331,625   18,048,400 
 More than three years   52,073,296   42,547,606 
    74,404,921   60,596,006 
 
 Movement of loan to executives  
 
 Balance at beginning of the year    44,012,029   34,670,374 
 Add: disbursement/ addition during the year   11,000,000   22,462,800 
    55,012,029   57,133,174 
 Less: recovered during the year    (8,680,645)  (13,121,145)
 Balance at the end of the year   46,331,384   44,012,029 
 
14.1 Interest @ 3% (2018: 3% to 5%)  per annum on monthly outstanding balance  is recovered on house loans and taken to consolidated statement 

of profit or loss account. Maximum repayment period for house loan is fifteen years. 
 
14.2 Interest at 3% (2018: 3%) per annum on monthly outstanding balance is recovered on car loans and taken to consolidated statement profit or 

loss account. However, no interest is recovered from employees who have surrendered interest on their provident fund. Maximum repayment 
period for car loan is five years. 

 
14.3 The maximum aggregate amount of loans at the end of any month during the year was Rs. 87.06 million (2018: Rs. 72.78 million). The loans are 

secured against the underlying assets.  
 

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
RupeesNote

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
Rupees

Particular of assets Cost Accumulated
depreciation

Written
Down Value

Rupees

Sale
proceeds

Gain / (Loss)
on disposal

Particulars of buyer

Note
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15 LONG TERM DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS
 
 Deposits  
  - Rented premises   925,000   1,060,001 
  - Utilities and others   8,967,814   4,937,414 
    9,892,814   5,997,415 
 Prepayments   1,374,356   1,017,913 
    11,267,170   7,015,328 
 
16 TRADE DEBTS - NET

 Considered good: 
 
  - secured   183,178,585   209,881,530 
  - unsecured   81,908,471   62,672,399 
    265,087,056   272,553,929 
 Considered doubtful, unsecured 16.1  1,159,136   1,159,136 
    266,246,192   273,713,065 
 Provision for impairment 16.2  (1,159,136)  (1,159,136)
    265,087,056   272,553,929 
 
16.1 The aging analysis of trade debts are as follows:
 

 Within 45 days 204,188,432  -    204,188,432  221,171,571  -    221,171,571 
 46 to 90 15,424,467  -    15,424,467  9,005,562  -    9,005,562 
 Over 91 days 46,633,293  1,159,136  45,474,157  42,989,932  1,159,136  41,830,796 
 Total 266,246,192  1,159,136  265,087,056  273,713,065  1,159,136  272,553,929 

16.2 The Group reviews all the trade debts for indication of impairment. As during the year no further provision has been made consequently 
opening balance of provision for doubtful debt which comprises due from terminated participants and investor account holders amounting to 
Rs. 0.4 million (2018: Rs. 0.4 million) and Rs. 0.7 million (2018: 0.7 million) respectively and are valid till year end. 

 
16.3 Trade debts include receivable from associated persons and companies (related parties) amounting to Rs. 8.4 million (2018: Rs. 7.8 million). 

16.3.1 The aging analysis of trade debts from related parties are as follows:

 

 Within 45 days 1,590,981  -    1,590,981  3,740,644  -    3,740,644 
 46 to 90 550,902  -    550,902  584,207  -    584,207 
 Over 91 days 6,222,975  -    6,222,975  3,453,207  -    3,453,207 
 Total 8,364,858  -    8,364,858  7,778,058  -    7,778,058 
 

16.4 The maximum aggregate amount of receivable from associated persons and companies (related parties) at the end of any month during the 
year was Rs. 16.2 million (2018: Rs. 39.3 million).

 June 30, 2019  June 30, 2018

NetImpairedGrossNetImpaired
---------------------------------------------------------- Rupees ----------------------------------------------------------
Gross

 June 30, 2019  June 30, 2018

NetImpairedGrossNetImpaired
---------------------------------------------------------- Rupees ----------------------------------------------------------
Gross

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
RupeesNote
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17 LOANS AND ADVANCES  

 Current maturity of long term loans 14  12,339,570   9,724,714 
  
 -  Advance to employee   1,766,442   3,163,203 
 -  Advance for expenses   899,271   588,660 
    2,665,713   3,751,863 
    15,005,283   13,476,577 
 
17.1 All loans and advances have been reviewed for impairment and none of the loans and advances was found to be impaired. 
 

18 PREPAYMENTS

 Insurance   9,187,145   8,224,402 
 Software maintenance   17,765,751   12,746,659 
 Servers and other hardware maintenance   211,864   92,610 
 Others   1,484,842   2,315,503 
    28,649,602   23,379,174 
19 OTHER RECEIVABLES 
 
 From related parties 
 - National Clearing Company of Pakistan Limited - Associated Company   200,001   1,390,550 
 
 From other than related parties 
 Sales tax refundable - Federal Board of Revenue   1,089,669   1,075,412 
 Others   9,557,845   7,636,440 
    10,847,515   10,102,402 
 
19.1 All the other receivables have been reviewed for impairment and none of the other receivable was found to be impaired. 
 

20 SHORT TERM INVESTMENTS

 Financial assets at fair value through Profit or loss 
 -  Mutual Funds 20.1 & 29  67,191,876   64,232,359 
 
 Financial assets at fair value through other comprehensive income 
 -  Term Deposit Certificates  20.2 & 29  1,111,981,507   1,159,133,555 
 -  Treasury Bills 20.3 & 29  1,832,685,348   1,817,115,522 
 -  Mutual Funds 20.4 & 29  469,684,073   -   
    3,481,542,804   3,040,481,436 
 
20.1 This represents investment in open ended mutual fund of Pakistan Cash fund of MCB Arif Habib Savings and Investements Limited. 
 
20.2 This represents investment in fixed term deposit certificates. The rate of profit on these certificates is 12.75% per annum (2018: 6.00% to 6.45% 

per annum). 
 
20.3 This represents investment in Treasury Bills. The rate of profit on these certificates is 10.83% to 12.75% per annum (2018: 6.22% to 6.76% per 

annum).  
 
20.4 This represents investment in open ended mutual fund of JS Cash Fund. 

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
RupeesNote

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
Rupees

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
RupeesNote
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 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
RupeesNote

Notes to the Consolidated  Financial Statements
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2019

21 CASH AND BANK BALANCES

 Bank balances 
 -  in saving accounts 21.2 & 21.3  52,056,856   53,579,237 
 -  in current accounts   22,371,467   11,538,487 
 Amount held on behalf of clients 21.3  (20,871,767)  (5,410,721)
 Net bank balance   53,556,556   59,707,003 
 
 Cash in hand   142,228   160,004 
    53,698,784   59,867,007 
 
21.1 The rate of profit varies from 10.12% to 11.44% (2018: 3.5% to 6.00%) per annum. 
 
21.2 Bank balances include Rs. 5.59 million (2018: Rs. 5.99 million) held with related parties. 
 
21.3 This amount is held by the Holding Company in the current account maintained with State Bank of Pakistan on behalf of clients under trustee 

and custodianship for settlement purpose. 
 
 
 

22 OPERATING INCOME - NET

 Depository services - net 22.1  1,072,273,004   1,222,380,858 
 Trusteeship and custodial services - net 22.2  639,965,523   637,123,926 
 Share registrar services - net 22.3  106,769,183   99,063,810 
 Business process outsourcing services / IT services-net   41,620,257   39,557,683 
 Miscellaneous income - net 22.4  3,019,541   4,816,173 
    1,863,647,508   2,002,942,451 
 SECP supervision fee 22.5  (11,820,617)  (13,246,090)
    1,851,826,891   1,989,696,361 
 
22.1 Depository services - net 
 
 Depository services   1,230,442,317   1,380,550,171 
 Less: Sales tax   (158,169,313)  (158,169,313)
  22.1.1  1,072,273,004   1,222,380,858 
 
22.1.1 Depository services - net 
 
 Transaction fee - net 22.1.2  122,172,708   145,918,824 
 Custody fee   288,457,801   361,043,792 
 Sub account maintenance fee   91,322,230   76,540,098 
 CDS connection fee   43,162,000   44,067,000 
 Securities induction fee   251,938,890   346,232,328 
 Annual fee   240,556,686   212,304,022 
 Cancellation fee   5,954,191   15,476,427 
 Withdrawal fee   1,486,042   8,444,753 
 Vasco service charges   2,227,200   2,265,600 
 eDividend   24,995,256   10,088,014 
    1,072,273,004   1,222,380,858 
 
22.1.2 Transaction fee - net   
 
 Transaction fee   148,057,992   173,932,065 
 Less: SECP levy 22.1.3  (25,885,284)  (28,013,241)
    122,172,708   145,918,824 
 
22.1.3 Securities and Exchange Commission of Pakistan (SECP) imposed a levy of 0.000405 (2018: 0.000405) paisa per share as transaction fee which 

is borne by the Holding Company.

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
RupeesNote

164



Notes to the Consolidated  Financial Statements
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2019

22.2 Trusteeship and custodial services - net

 Trusteeship and custodial businesses   760,360,155   759,027,786 
 Less: SECP levy 22.2.1  (30,034,208)  (30,758,391)
 Less: Sales tax   (90,360,424)  (91,145,469)
    639,965,523   637,123,926 
 
22.2.1 SECP imposed an annual fee @ 0.005% (2018: 0.005%) of average annual assets of open end scheme or closed end scheme under its trusteeship.
 

22.3 Share registrar services - net 

 Share registrar services   123,106,800   114,670,188 
 Less: sales tax   (16,337,617)  (15,606,378)
    106,769,183   99,063,810 
 
22.4 Miscellaneous income - net 

 Miscellaneous income   3,462,776   5,523,898 
 Less: Sales tax   (443,235)  (707,725)
    3,019,541   4,816,173 
 
22.5 SECP imposed a levy @ 1% (2018: 1%)  of total operating revenue excluding trusteeship & custodial fee and certain depository service fee. 
 
 

23 OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 
 
 Salaries and other benefits  23.1 & 23.2  726,276,078   649,372,181 
 Travelling and conveyance   8,201,740   7,945,157 
 Vehicle running and maintenance   20,361,455   17,017,429 
 Training and development    4,412,617   7,800,254 
 Communication   11,528,338   12,820,954 
 Printing and stationery   8,508,623   9,335,185 
 Rent, rates and taxes   14,837,161   14,346,050 
 Insurance   28,499,863   26,530,421 
 Repairs and maintenance   81,483,060   76,045,206 
 Legal and professional charges   21,884,340   24,715,793 
 Fee and subscription   14,183,459   10,802,364 
 Advertisement and publicity   20,830,638   28,381,465 
 Office supplies   5,459,048   4,951,100 
 Meeting expenses 23.3  15,962,124   13,643,963 
 Wide-area-network line rent   11,787,934   8,949,859 
 Auditors' remuneration 23.4  5,622,470   5,018,789 
 Depreciation  13.1.1  140,168,814   112,802,979 
 Amortization 13.2.1  48,826,442   42,227,342 
 Fuel and electricity   33,083,175   34,518,738 
 Security services   9,291,033   8,624,080 
 Cafeteria   9,231,523   7,780,500 
 Asset write off   -     5,325,000 
 Miscellaneous   6,398,388   5,772,350 
    1,246,838,323   1,134,727,159 

23.1 Salaries and other benefits include: 
 
 - Compensated absences  9.2  4,204,952   8,676,330 
 
 - Gratuity  30.3  39,168,000   30,712,000 
 
 - Defined contribution gratuity fund   6,080,544   5,633,974 

 - Contribution to provident fund   26,884,396   24,855,745 

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
RupeesNote

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
RupeesNote

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
RupeesNote
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23.2 Amount charged in consolidated financial statements in respect of Chief Executive Officer (CEO) and Executives are

 Managerial remuneration 30,162,365  160,188,060   28,838,937   127,537,892 
 Bonus 9,871,878  51,752,662   19,030,500   45,129,123 
 Gratuity 2,116,018  16,766,256   2,568,547   10,041,473 
 Provident fund  1,066,870  8,676,860   1,605,341   7,235,236 
 Defined contribution gratuity fund  -     732,552   -     1,348,625 
   43,217,131   238,116,390   52,043,326   191,292,349 
 
 Number of Person  5    37   2   32 

23.2.1 The CEO and executives are provided with the Group maintained cars. In addition, the CEO and executives are also entitled for other benefits 
in accordance with the terms of employment. 

 
23.3 The aggregate amount charged in the consolidated financial statements in respect of directors' fee paid during the year was Rs. 13.515 million 

(2018: Rs. 10.79 million). 
 
23.3.1 The Chairman of the Board of the Holding Company has been provided with the Holding Company maintained car along with fuel and 

chauffeur. 

23.4 Auditors' remuneration

 Audit fees   2,175,051   2,061,069 
 Half year review   545,800   525,800 
 Others   2,901,619   2,431,920 
    5,622,470   5,018,789 
 
23.5 Employees Provident Fund 
 
 - Size of the fund - Net assets (Rupees)   72,731,452   61,065,543 
 - Number of members   458   436 
 - Cost of investments made (Rupees)   60,000,000   45,163,447 
 - Percentage of investments made to size of the fund  82%  74% 
 - Fair value of investments (Rupees)   60,410,959   55,865,616 
 
23.5.1 These figures pertain to the year ended June 30, 2019. The audited account of the fund has not been finalized for the current year. Investments 

out of Provident Fund has been made in accordance with the provisions of section 218 of the Companies Act, 2017. 
 

24 OTHER INCOME

 Income from financial assets: 
 
  - Return on bank deposits   12,819,275   4,955,825 
  - Interest on loans to employees   2,000,153   1,581,794 
  - Dividend income   7,483,580   -   
  - Unrealized (loss)/gain on investment - fair value through profit or loss    (2,796,526)  2,855,262 
  - Return on investment - fair value through other comprehensive income   273,353,804   160,517,071 
  - Others   105,603   (36,134)
    292,965,889   169,873,818 
 Income from non-financial assets: 
 
  - Gain on disposal of property and equipment   6,561,287   1,765,501 
  - Penalties and fines   3,292,992   1,368,800 
  - Others   1,694,507   627,864 
    11,548,786   3,762,166 
    304,514,675   173,635,983 

Executives

-------------------------------------Rupees -------------------------------------

 June 30, 2019
CEO Executives

 June 30, 2018

CEO
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25 OTHER EXPENSES 
 
 Corporate social responsibility (CSR) expense 25.1  22,513,447   25,639,074 
 Worker's Welfare Fund   (13,745,902)  -   
    8,767,545   25,639,074 
 
25.1 CSR expense has not been made (2018: Nil) to an institution in which a director has common directorship. Rs. 1 million (June 30, 2018: Nil)  

has been paid to institutions in which director  had any interest. 
 
25.2 During the period, the Holding Company has made the following donations equal to or exceeding Rs. 1,000,000, the details are as under: 
 

 Name of Donee

 SIUT  1,500,000   1,500,000 
 Fatima Kidney Care  1,000,000   1,400,000 
 Kharadar General Hospital  2,000,000   2,000,000 
 Memon Medical Institute  1,000,000   1,000,000 
 The Indus Hospital  2,000,000   2,000,000 
 Patients' Welfare Association (DMC)  1,000,000   1,500,000 
 Patients' Aid Foundation (JPMC) (Cyber Knife)  1,500,000   1,500,000 
 The Patients' Behbud Society- (AKUH)  2,500,000   2,500,000 
 Ibrahim Eye Trust  1,000,000   1,000,000 
 The Citizen Foundation (TCF)  2,300,000   2,300,000 
 The Garage School  1,000,000   1,000,000 
 The Deaf Reach School (FESF)  1,500,000   1,500,000 
 Memon Industrial & Technical Institute (WMO)  1,500,000   1,500,000 
 The Hunar Foundation  1,000,000   1,000,000 
 Pakistan Sweet Homes  1,000,000   1,500,000 
 
26 FINANCIAL CHARGES 
 
 Bank charges  177,784   272,996 
 
27 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 
 
 Current  293,690,139   333,395,305 
 Prior  -     7,740 
 Deferred  (17,116,127)  (772,628)
   276,574,012   332,630,417 
 
27.1 The income tax assessments of the Holding Company have been finalised up to and including tax year 2017 except as disclosed in note 11.1. 

 The income tax assessments of the ITMinds Limited (under self assessment scheme) have been finalised up to and including tax year 2018. 

 The income tax assessments of the CDC Share Registrar Services Limited (under self assessment scheme) have been finalised up to and 
including tax year 2018. 

 

27.2 Reconciliation of effective tax rate 

 Profit before income tax  900,557,914   1,002,693,114 
 
 Enacted tax rate 29%        30%             
 
 Tax charge at enacted rate   261,161,795   300,807,934 
 Super tax  19,025,913   28,954,766 
 Others  (3,613,696)  2,867,717 
   276,574,012   332,630,417 

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
RupeesNote
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 June 30, 2019
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28 EARNINGS PER SHARE 
 
28.1 Earnings per share (EPS) - Basic 
 
 Profit after income tax   623,983,902   670,062,698 
 

 Weighted average number of outstanding ordinary shares    150,000,000   150,000,000 
 

 Earnings per share (EPS) - Basic 28.1.1 4.16  4.47 
 
28.1.1 These consolidated financial statements have been restated to account for the effect of bonus shares issued on EPS in order to fairly present 

the result of year ended June 30, 2018.  
 
28.2 Earnings per share (EPS) - Diluted    

  
 Diluted EPS has not been presented as the Company does not have any convertible dilutive potential ordinary shares in issue as at June 30, 

2019 and 2018 which would have any effect on the basic EPS if the option to convert is exercisable.  

29 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

 Cash and bank balances 21  53,698,784   59,867,007 
 Short term investments 20  3,481,542,804   3,040,481,436 
    3,535,241,588   3,100,348,443 
 
30 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS 
 
 The gratuity fund is payable on the basis of last drawn salary for each year of eligible service or part thereof in accordance with the rules of the 

gratuity fund. 
 
 The obligation under the fund is determined through an actuarial valuation using projected unit credit method. Principal actuarial assumptions 

used in actuarial valuation carried out as at June 30, 2019 and June 30, 2018 are as follows:  
 
 
 

 Discount rate per annum (compound rate)  14.25%   9.00%  
 Salary increase rate  12.25%   7.75%  
 

30.1 Statement of financial position item 

 The amounts recognized in consolidated balance sheet are as follows: 
 
 Present value of defined benefit obligation 30.4  416,590,815   415,186,815 
 Fair value of plan assets 30.5  (313,880,265)  (322,140,265)
 Movement in net defined benefit obligation 30.2  102,710,550   93,046,550 
 
30.2 Movement in net defined benefit obligation 
 
 Balance at the beginning of the year    93,046,550   50,620,550 
 Expense for the year  30.3  39,168,000   30,712,000 
 Payment to fund during the year    (39,168,000)  (34,439,000)
 Remeasurement losses recognised in other comprehensive income  
    9,664,000   46,153,000 
 Balance at the end of the year 9.1  102,710,550   93,046,550 

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
Rupees

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
Rupees

 June 30, 2019  June 30, 2018

Number of shares

Rate per annum

(Restated)

Rupees
(Restated)Rupees

Note

Note

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
RupeesNote
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30.3 Amounts recognized in the consolidated statement of profit or loss account and consolidated statement of comprehensive income 
 
 The following amounts have been charged in the profit and loss account and statement of other comprehensive income in respect of these 

benefits: 
 

 Current service cost   30,651,000   25,927,000 
 Net interest cost   37,935,000   29,553,000 
 Expected return on plan assets   (29,418,000)  (24,768,000)
 Expense for the year  23.1  39,168,000   30,712,000 
  
 Remeasurement loss on obligation   9,605,000   41,762,000 
 Remeasurement loss on plan assets   59,000   4,391,000 
 Remeasurement losses recognised in statement of comprehensive income   9,664,000   46,153,000 
 
30.4 Movement in the present value of defined benefit obligation 
 
 Balance at the beginning of the year    415,186,815   325,416,815 
 Current service cost    30,651,000   25,927,000 
 Interest cost    37,935,000   29,553,000 
 Benefit paid   (76,787,000)  (7,472,000)
 Actuarial loss on obligation   9,605,000   41,762,000 
 Balance at the end of the year   416,590,815   415,186,815 
 
30.5 Movement in fair value of plan assets 
 
 Balance at the beginning of the year    322,140,265   274,796,265 
 Expected return on plan assets   29,418,000   24,768,000 
 Contributions   39,168,000   34,439,000 
 Benefits paid   (76,787,000)  (7,472,000)
 Actuarial gain / (loss) on plan assets   (59,000)  (4,391,000)
 Balance at the end of the year    313,880,265   322,140,265 
 
 Analysis of Present value of defined benefit obligation (PBO) 
 
 Split by Vested/Non-Vested 
 (i) Vested benefits  416,439,000  415,187,000 
 (ii) Non-vested benefits   152,000   -   
 Total   416,591,000   415,187,000 
 
 Split by Benefits earned to date 
 (i)  Present value of guaranteed benefits   151,121,000  212,705,000 
 (ii) Present value of benefits attributable to future salary increase   265,470,000  202,482,000 
 Total   416,591,000   415,187,000 
 
 Maturity profile of Present value of defined benefit obligation 
 
 Weighted average duration of the present value of defined benefit obligation (years)  9.25  9.35 
 
 Distribution of timing of benefit payments 
 Time in years 
 Within first year from the end of financial year   23,982,000   17,752,000 
 Within second years from the end of financial year   28,707,000   74,420,000 
 Within third years from the end of financial year   46,271,000   25,237,000 
 Within fourth years from the end of financial year   32,588,000   37,723,000 
 Within five years from the end of financial year   47,388,000   26,271,000 
 Within six to ten years from the end of financial year   485,408,000   188,314,000 

 June 30, 2019
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 June 30, 2018
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 June 30, 2019
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 June 30, 2018
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30.6 Major categories/composition of plan assets are as follows: 
 
 Treasury bills   38,954,000   82,486,000 
 Special saving certificates    -     153,839,000 
 Defense saving certificate   91,645,000   82,254,000 
 Pakistan investments bonds   168,326,000   -   
 Bank balance (after ajusting current liabilities)   14,956,000   3,562,000 
 Total fair value of plan assets   313,881,000   322,141,000 
 
 Sensitivity Analysis on significant actuarial assumptions on present value of defined benefit obligation 
 
 Discount Rate +1%   380,554,000   379,080,000 
 Discount Rate -1%   458,003,000   457,094,000 
 Expected rate of salary increase +1%   456,367,000   459,315,000 
 Expected rate of salary increase -1%   381,351,000   376,614,000 
 
 These figures are based on the latest actuarial valuation as at June 30, 2019. The valuation uses the Projected Unit Credit method. The Group 

recognises expense in accordance with IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”. 
 
 The expected gratuity expense of the Group for the year ending June 30, 2020 works out to be Rs. 45.393 million.
 
31 TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES 
 
 Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party 

in making financial or operational decisions and includes major shareholders, associated companies with or without common directors, 
retirement benefit funds, directors, key management personnel and their close family members. 

 
 Aggregate transactions and balances with related parties and associated undertakings which are not disclosed in respective notes are as follows:
 

 Rent expense: 
 -  Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited - an Associated Company   4,954,628   6,083,178 
 -  LSE Financial Services Limited - an Associated Company   -     788,568 
    4,954,628   6,871,746 
 Rent of premises paid to:  
 -  Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited - an Associated Company   4,954,628   6,083,178 
 -  LSE Financial Services Limited - an Associated Company   -     788,568 
     4,954,628   6,871,746 
 
 
 Mark-up earned - Associated companies   321,136   291,896 
 
 The shareholders and directors of the Group are acting as CDS elements in their normal course of business. Total revenue from transactions 

in CDS relating to shareholders and directors are as follows:  
 

 Shareholders   54,251,495   92,776,350 
 
 Directors   798,902   1,171,550 
 
 Billings to the companies which are associated by virtue  
 of common directorship   5,797,203   15,332,423 
 
 Contributions to retirement plans   67,977,021   60,028,031 
 
 Transaction with Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance 
    (PICG) - Annual subscription & Director's Training Program   145,000   590,000 
 
 Transactions with Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) - 
    Auditorium and parking charges"   267,283   237,557 

30.6 Major categories/composition of plan assets are as follows: 
 
 Treasury bills   38,954,000   82,486,000 
 Special saving certificates    -     153,839,000 
 Defense saving certificate   91,645,000   82,254,000 
 Pakistan investments bonds   168,326,000   -   
 Bank balance (after ajusting current liabilities)   14,956,000   3,562,000 
 Total fair value of plan assets   313,881,000   322,141,000 
 
 Sensitivity Analysis on significant actuarial assumptions on present value of defined benefit obligation 
 
 Discount Rate +1%   380,554,000   379,080,000 
 Discount Rate -1%   458,003,000   457,094,000 
 Expected rate of salary increase +1%   456,367,000   459,315,000 
 Expected rate of salary increase -1%   381,351,000   376,614,000 
 
 These figures are based on the latest actuarial valuation as at June 30, 2019. The valuation uses the Projected Unit Credit method. The Group 

recognises expense in accordance with IAS 19 “Employee Benefits”. 
 
 The expected gratuity expense of the Group for the year ending June 30, 2020 works out to be Rs. 45.393 million.
 
31 TRANSACTIONS AND BALANCES WITH RELATED PARTIES 
 
 Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party 

in making financial or operational decisions and includes major shareholders, associated companies with or without common directors, 
retirement benefit funds, directors, key management personnel and their close family members. 

 
 Aggregate transactions and balances with related parties and associated undertakings which are not disclosed in respective notes are as follows:
 

 Rent expense: 
 -  Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited - an Associated Company   4,954,628   6,083,178 
 -  LSE Financial Services Limited - an Associated Company   -     788,568 
    4,954,628   6,871,746 
 Rent of premises paid to:  
 -  Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited - an Associated Company   4,954,628   6,083,178 
 -  LSE Financial Services Limited - an Associated Company   -     788,568 
     4,954,628   6,871,746 
 
 
 Mark-up earned - Associated companies   321,136   291,896 
 
 The shareholders and directors of the Group are acting as CDS elements in their normal course of business. Total revenue from transactions 

in CDS relating to shareholders and directors are as follows:  
 

 Shareholders   54,251,495   92,776,350 
 
 Directors   798,902   1,171,550 
 
 Billings to the companies which are associated by virtue  
 of common directorship   5,797,203   15,332,423 
 
 Contributions to retirement plans   67,977,021   60,028,031 
 
 Transaction with Pakistan Institute of Corporate Governance 
    (PICG) - Annual subscription & Director's Training Program   145,000   590,000 
 
 Transactions with Pakistan Stock Exchange (PSX) - 
    Auditorium and parking charges"   267,283   237,557 
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 Payment to LSE Financial Services Limited - Directors travelling,
    electricity and maintenance charges   3,583,405   717,492 

 Transactions with ISE REIT Management Limited - Utilities   3,118,210   2,459,545 
  
 Transactions with NCCPL - Electricity & generator charges   6,816,662   9,687,699 
 
 Deposits with NCCPL - Associated Company   2,500,000   -   

31.1 The Group continues to have a policy whereby all transactions with related parties are entered into at arm length prices using the comparable 
uncontrolled valuation method. 

 
31.2 The Group has not entered into any transaction with senior executives other than those provided under the Group's policies and terms of 

employment.  
 
32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES  
 
32.1 Financial risk management 
 
 The Board of Directors of the Group has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framework.  

 The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: 
 
  - Market risk 
  - Credit risk and concentration of credit risk  
  - Liquidity risk  
 
32.1.1 Market risk 
 
 Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates or the market price due 

to a change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities and  
liquidity in the market. The market risk includes currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk. 

 
 (a) Currency risk 
 
 Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial asset or a liability will fluctuate due to a change in foreign exchange rates.  
 
 The Group is not significantly exposed to the currency risk as the major transactions of the Group are carried out in the local currency.  
 
 (b) Interest rate risk 
 
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest 

rates. The Group is not significantly exposed to interest rate risk as it does not have any interest bearing liabilities. However, the Group has fixed 
interest based investments and loans to employees. These investments are classified as short term and long term considering relative sensitivity of 
the interest rates and management's intention. Loans to employees are allowed on reduced rates which is not affected by volatility of market interest 
rate. Other assets and liabilities of the Group does not expose the Group to interest rate risk substantially. 

 
 The Group has investments in the following securities having fixed rate of return: 

 
 Treasury Bills ( T-bills) 20  1,832,685,348   1,817,115,522 
 Term Deposit Certificates (TDCs) 20  1,111,981,507   1,159,133,555 
    2,944,666,855   2,976,249,077 
 
 Investments in T-bills is Government backed securities with guaranteed return. In addition, investment in TDCs and T-bills are for a period of 3 months. 

Therefore, any changes in the interest rate do not affect the cash flows of the Group. 
 
 (b) Price risk 
 
 Price risk is the risk that the value of a security or portfolio of securities will decline in the future. It is the risk of losing money due to a fall in the 

market price of a security that the entity owns. It results from changes in the value of marked-to-market financial instruments. Currently the Group 
has investments in mutual fund of Pakistan Cash fund of MCB Arif Habib Savings and Investements Limited designated as investment at fair value 
through profit or loss.

 Payment to LSE Financial Services Limited - Directors travelling,
    electricity and maintenance charges   3,583,405   717,492 

 Transactions with ISE REIT Management Limited - Utilities   3,118,210   2,459,545 
  
 Transactions with NCCPL - Electricity & generator charges   6,816,662   9,687,699 
 
 Deposits with NCCPL - Associated Company   2,500,000   -   

31.1 The Group continues to have a policy whereby all transactions with related parties are entered into at arm length prices using the comparable 
uncontrolled valuation method. 

 
31.2 The Group has not entered into any transaction with senior executives other than those provided under the Group's policies and terms of 

employment.  
 
32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RELATED DISCLOSURES  
 
32.1 Financial risk management 
 
 The Board of Directors of the Group has overall responsibility for the establishment and oversight of the Group's risk management framework.  

 The Group has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments: 
 
  - Market risk 
  - Credit risk and concentration of credit risk  
  - Liquidity risk  
 
32.1.1 Market risk 
 
 Market risk is the risk that the value of the financial instrument may fluctuate as a result of changes in market interest rates or the market price due 

to a change in credit rating of the issuer or the instrument, change in market sentiments, speculative activities, supply and demand of securities and  
liquidity in the market. The market risk includes currency risk, interest rate risk and price risk. 

 
 (a) Currency risk 
 
 Foreign currency risk is the risk that the value of financial asset or a liability will fluctuate due to a change in foreign exchange rates.  
 
 The Group is not significantly exposed to the currency risk as the major transactions of the Group are carried out in the local currency.  
 
 (b) Interest rate risk 
 
 Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value of the future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in market interest 

rates. The Group is not significantly exposed to interest rate risk as it does not have any interest bearing liabilities. However, the Group has fixed 
interest based investments and loans to employees. These investments are classified as short term and long term considering relative sensitivity of 
the interest rates and management's intention. Loans to employees are allowed on reduced rates which is not affected by volatility of market interest 
rate. Other assets and liabilities of the Group does not expose the Group to interest rate risk substantially. 

 
 The Group has investments in the following securities having fixed rate of return: 

 
 Treasury Bills ( T-bills) 20  1,832,685,348   1,817,115,522 
 Term Deposit Certificates (TDCs) 20  1,111,981,507   1,159,133,555 
    2,944,666,855   2,976,249,077 
 
 Investments in T-bills is Government backed securities with guaranteed return. In addition, investment in TDCs and T-bills are for a period of 3 months. 

Therefore, any changes in the interest rate do not affect the cash flows of the Group. 
 
 (b) Price risk 
 
 Price risk is the risk that the value of a security or portfolio of securities will decline in the future. It is the risk of losing money due to a fall in the 

market price of a security that the entity owns. It results from changes in the value of marked-to-market financial instruments. Currently the Group 
has investments in mutual fund of Pakistan Cash fund of MCB Arif Habib Savings and Investements Limited designated as investment at fair value 
through profit or loss.

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
Rupees

 June 30, 2019
Rupees

 June 30, 2018
RupeesNote
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32.2 The Group's exposure to interest rate risk and the effective rates on its financial assets and liabilities are summarized as follows:

 Financial assets  
 
 Investments 20 10.83 - 12.75  3,481,542,804   -   -     -     3,481,542,804 
 Loan and advances 14 & 17 0.00 - 3.00  12,339,570   74,404,921   -     1,766,442   88,510,933 
 Deposits 15   -     -     -     9,892,814   9,892,814 
 Trade debts 16   -     -     -     265,087,056   265,087,056 
 Other receivables 19   -     -     -     9,757,846   9,757,846 
 Cash and bank balances 21 10.25 - 11.44  52,056,856   -     -     1,641,928   53,698,784 
 
     3,545,939,230   74,404,921   -     288,146,086   3,908,490,237 
 
 Financial liabilities  
 
 Deposits  7   -     -     -     129,276,460   129,276,460 
 Trade and other payables 9   -     -     -     355,463,714   355,463,714 
 
     -     -     -     484,740,174   484,740,174 

 Total 
Non

Markup
bearing

Over five 
years 

Over one
year  to

five years

Mark-up Bearing

Less than 
one year 

Effective
yield / interest

rates (%)

-------------------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------------------Note

For the year ended June 30, 2019

For the year ended June 30, 2018

Mark-up Bearing

 Financial assets  
 
 Investments 20 6.00 - 6.76  3,040,481,436   -   -     -     3,040,481,436 
 Loan and advances 14 & 17 0.00 - 3.00  9,724,714   60,596,006   -     3,163,203   73,483,923 
 Deposits 15   -     -     -     5,997,415   5,997,415 
 Trade debts 16   -     -     -     272,553,929   272,553,929 
 Other receivables 19   -     -     -     9,026,990   9,026,990 
 Cash and bank balances 21 3.50 - 6.00  53,579,237   -     -     6,287,770   59,867,007 
 
     3,103,785,387   60,596,006   -     297,029,307   3,461,410,700 
 
 Financial liabilities  

 Deposit  7   -     -     -     123,348,500   123,348,500 
 Trade and other payables 9   -     -     -     369,938,978   369,938,978 
 
     -     -     -     493,287,478   493,287,478 

32.3 Fair values of financial instruments 
 
 Fair value is the amount at which an asset could be exchanged or liability settled between knowledgeable willing parties in  an arm's length 

transaction. The Group prepares its consolidated financial statements under the historical cost convention except for measurement of 
investment classified as fair value through profit or loss, investment classified as fair value through other comprehensive income, investment 
classified at amortized cost and recognition of staff retirement benefits on the actuarial valuation basis. The estimated fair values of all financial 
instruments are not significantly different from their carrying values on June 30, 2019. 

 
32.4 Credit risk and concentration of credit risk 
 
 Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will fail to discharge an obligation and cause to other party to incur a financial 

loss.  The Group is exposed to credit risk at very low level. 
 
 Bank Rating Highest  Lowest  
 
 Short Term  A1+ A1+ 
 Long Term AAA AA 
 
 The credit quality investments in mutual fund can be assessed by reference to external credit ratings having rating of AA+(f). 

 Total 
Non

Markup
bearing

Over five 
years 

Over one
year  to

five years

Less than 
one year 

Effective
yield / interest

rates (%)

-------------------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------------------Note
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 Deposits 7  -     -     -     129,276,460   129,276,460 
 Trade and other payables 9  355,463,714   -     -     -     355,463,714 
    355,463,714   -     -    129,276,460   484,740,174 

 As at June 30, 2018 the Group’s liabilities have contractual/expected maturities as summarised below:t

 Total later than
5 years

Non CurrentCurrent

1 to 5 
years

within 6-12
months

within 6
months

--------------------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------------------Note

Notes to the Consolidated  Financial Statements
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2019

32.5 Liquidity risk 
 
 Liquidity risk reflects the Group's inability of raising funds to meet commitments. Management closely monitors the Group's liquidity and cash 

flow position. This includes maintenance of consolidated statement of financial position liquidity ratios, debtors and creditors concentration 
both in terms of overall funding mix and avoidance of undue reliance on large individual customers. 

 
 As at June 30, 2019 the Group's liabilities have contractual/expected maturities as summarised below:

 Deposits 7 -       -     -     123,348,500   123,348,500 
 Trade and other payables 9  369,938,978   -     -     -       369,938,978 
    369,938,978   -     -     123,348,500    493,287,478

33 OPERATING SEGMENT    

 For management purposes the Group is organized into following major business segments.

 CDC To act as a depository for securities, open securities account and acts as a registrar to the issuer of securitities.   
        

 ITML To provide information technology and business process outsourcing (BPO) services.     
      

 CSRL To provide share registrar and transfer agent services. 

33.1

 Total later than
5 years

Non CurrentCurrent

1 to 5 
years

within 6-12
months

within 6
months

--------------------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------------------Note

 Revenue - Gross  1,241,891,296   784,291,118   123,106,800  301,637,244   68,628,204  -    2,519,554,662 
 
 SECP fees and levies 36,638,209 31,101,900 1,067,692  -    -    -    68,807,801 
 
 Sales Tax  138,031,977   90,360,424  16,337,617  -    8,568,984  -    253,299,002 
 
 Other income  -     -     -    -    1,356,158  4,690,284  6,046,442 

 Depreciation and amortization  172,202,137   9,999,823  5,959,340  -    833,957  -    188,995,257 
 
 Other operating and 
    administrative expenses  530,870,245   433,324,845   84,494,386  8,767,546  55,145,331  1,338,779  1,113,941,131 
 
 Net profit / (loss) after tax  251,671,438   151,704,276  10,538,076  202,408,885  5,436,090  2,225,137  623,983,902 

Others

CDC

Share
Registrar
Services

ITMinds

CDC Share
Registrar
Services
Limited

Trustee and
Custodial
Services

-------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------

For the year ended June 30, 2019

Depository
Services

Description
Total
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 Total Fair value 
through other
comprehensive

income

June 30, 2019

Fair value
through profit

or loss

Amortised
cost

------------------------- Rupees -------------------------Note Financial assets
 
 Non current assets  
 Long term loans 14  74,404,921   -     -     74,404,921 
 Long term deposits 15  9,892,814   -     -     9,892,814 
     84,297,735   -     -     84,297,749 
 Current assets  

 Trade debts - net 16  265,087,056   -     -     265,087,056 
 Loans and advances  17  14,106,012   -     -     14,106,012 
 Other receivables 19  9,757,846   -     -     9,757,846 
 Short term investments 20  -     67,191,876   3,414,350,928   3,481,542,804 
 Cash and bank balances 21  53,698,784   -     -     53,698,784 
     342,649,698   67,191,876   3,414,350,928   3,824,192,502 
     426,947,433   67,191,876   3,414,350,928   3,908,490,251 

34 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORIES 

 Total 
Fair value

through profit
or loss

Amortized
Cost

June 30, 2019

---------------Rupees--------------- Financial liabilities 
 Non current liabilities  
 Long term deposits  7   129,276,460   -     129,276,460 
 
 Current liabilities  
 Trade and other payables 9   355,463,714   -     355,463,714 
 
      484,740,174   -     484,740,174 

 Revenue - Gross  1,414,140,612   788,772,689   114,670,188  175,871,956   62,112,876  -    2,555,568,321 
 
 SECP fees and levies 40,268,693  31,749,029  990,638  -    -    -    73,008,360 
 
 Sales Tax  158,877,038   91,145,469  15,606,378  -    7,323,197  -    272,952,082 
 
 Other income  -     -     -    -    322,127  2,866,783  3,188,910 

 Depreciation and amortization  141,998,267   6,866,013  4,816,304  -    1,259,817  -    154,940,401 
 
 Other operating and 
    administrative expenses  537,959,829  322,887,998   75,116,088  34,805,472  55,125,895  594,920  1,026,490,203 
 
 Net profit / (loss) after tax  357,354,582  205,294,384  12,116,346  94,219,231  (1,273,906) 2,352,060  670,062,698 

Others

CDC

Share
Registrar
Services

ITMinds

CDC Share
Registrar
Services
Limited

Trustee and
Custodial
Services

-------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------

For the year ended June 30, 2018

Depository
Services

Description
Total
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 Total Fair value 
through other
comprehensive

income

June 30, 2018

Fair value
through profit

or loss

Amortised
cost

------------------------- Rupees -------------------------Note Financial assets 
 Non current Assets  
 Long term loans 14  60,596,006   -     -     60,596,006 
 Long term deposits 15  5,997,415   -     -     5,997,415 
     66,593,421   -    -    66,593,421
 Current Assets  
 Trade debts - net 16  272,553,929   -     -     272,553,929 
 Loan and advances  17  12,887,917   -     -     12,887,917 
 Other receivables 19  9,026,990   -     -     9,026,990 
 Short term investments 20  -     64,232,359   2,976,249,077   3,040,481,436 
 Cash and bank balances 21  59,867,007   -     -     59,867,007 
     354,335,843   64,232,359   2,976,249,077   3,394,817,279 
     420,929,264   64,232,359   2,976,249,077   3,461,410,700 

35 FAIR VALUES OF FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 
 
 Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or the most 

advantageous) market between market participants at the measurement date under current market conditions regardless of whether that price 
is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique.  

 
35.1 Determination of fair value and fair value hierarchy 
 
 The Group uses the following hierarchy for determining and disclosing the fair value of financial instruments: 
 
 Level 1 Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities. 
 
 Level 2 Inputs other than quoted prices included in Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, either directly (i.e. as prices) or 

indirectly (i.e. derived from prices). 
 
 Level 3 Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (i.e. unobservable inputs). 
 
35.2 Financial assets and liabilities 
 
 The following table shows the levels within the hierarchy of the financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis at June 

30, 2019 and June 30, 2018.

Notes to the Consolidated  Financial Statements
Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
For the year ended June 30, 2019

 Total 
Fair value

through profit
or loss

Amortized
Cost

June 30, 2018

---------------Rupees--------------- Financial liabilities 
 Non current liabilities  
 Long term deposits  7   123,348,500   -     123,348,500 
 
 Current liabilities  
 Trade and other payables 9   369,938,978   -     369,938,978 
 
      493,287,478   -     493,287,478 
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 Total Level 3

June 30, 2018

Level 2Level 1
Carrying 

value

--------------------------------------------Rupees-------------------------------------------- Financial assets measured at fair value 
 
 Fair value through OCI 
 -  Term Deposit Certificates   1,159,133,555   -     1,159,133,555   -     1,159,133,555 
 -  Treasury Bills  1,817,115,522   -     1,817,115,522   -     1,817,115,522 
 
 Fair value through Profit or loss 
 
 -Open end mutual funds  64,232,359   -     64,232,359   -     64,232,359 
 
 Financial assets not measured at fair value 
 
 Loan and advances  73,483,923   -     -     -     73,483,923 
 Deposits  5,997,415   -     -     -     5,997,415 
 Trade debts  272,553,929   -     -     -     272,553,929 
 Other receivables  9,026,990   -     -     -     9,026,990 
 Cash and bank balances  59,867,007   -     -     -     59,867,007 
 
    3,461,410,700   -     3,040,481,436   -     3,461,410,700 
 
 Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 
 
 Deposits   123,348,500   -     -     -     123,348,500 
 Trade and other payables  369,938,978   -     -     -     369,938,978 
 
    493,287,478   -     -     -     493,287,478 

 Financial assets measured at fair value 
 
 Fair value through OCI 
  - Term Deposit Certificates   1,111,981,507   -     1,111,981,507   -     1,111,981,507 
  - Treasury Bills  1,832,685,348   -     1,832,685,348   -     1,832,685,348 
  - Open end mutual funds  469,684,073   -     469,684,073   -     469,684,073 
 
 Fair value through Profit or loss 
 
  - Open end mutual funds  67,191,876   -     67,191,876   -     67,191,876 
 
 Financial assets not measured at fair value 
 
 Loan and advances  88,510,933   -     -     -     88,510,933 
 Deposits  9,892,814   -     -     -     9,892,814 
 Trade debts  265,087,056   -     -     -     265,087,056 
 Other receivables  9,757,846   -     -     -     9,757,846 
 Cash and bank balances  53,698,784   -     -     -     53,698,784 
 
    3,908,490,237   -     3,481,542,804   -     3,908,490,237 
 
 Financial liabilities not measured at fair value 
 
 Deposits   129,276,460   -     -     -     129,276,460 
 Trade and other payables  355,463,714   -     -     -     355,463,714 
 
    484,740,174   -     -     -     484,740,174 

 Total Level 3

June 30, 2019

Level 2Level 1
Carrying 

value

--------------------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------------------
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36 CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES 
 
 It is the responsibility of the Board of Directors to maintain a strong capital base so as to maintain investor, creditors and market confidence 

and to sustain future development of the business, safeguard the Group's ability to continue as going concern in order to provide returns for 
shareholders and benefit for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. The Board of 
Directors monitor the return on capital, which the Group defines as profit after income tax divided by total shareholders' equity. The Board of 
Directors also monitors the level of dividend to ordinary shareholders. 

 
 The Group finances its operations through equity and management of working capital. The equity for the purpose of capital risk management 

comprises share capital, reserve fund, surplus on revaluation of investments at fair value through other comprehensive income, surplus on 
revaluation of property and equipment and unappropriated profit. 

 
37 SUBSEQUENT EVENT 
 
 The directors in their meeting held on August 29, 2019 have proposed bonus shares @ 33.3333% i.e. 50 million shares (2018: 41.3894% i.e. 

43.91 million shares) and cash dividend of Rs.1.225 per share (2018: Rs. 1.50 per share) of Rs.10 each i.e.12.25% of the paid-up capital in respect 
of year ended June 30, 2019. The consolidated financial statements for the year ended June 30, 2019 do not include the effect of these 
appropriations which will be accounted for in the period in which it is approved by shareholders.

 Total Level 3

June 30, 2018

Level 2Level 1
Carrying 

value

--------------------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------------------

 Leasehold land  549,999,000   -     -     549,999,000   549,999,000 
 Building  521,479,997   -     -     521,479,997   521,479,997 
    1,071,478,997   -     -     1,071,478,997   1,071,478,997 

35.3 Information about valuation technique and inputs used 

 Item Valuation technique and inputs used 

 Term Deposit Certificates  A deposit at a bank or other financial institution that has a fixed return (usually via an interest rate) and a 
set maturity. That is, the depositor does not have access to the funds until maturity; in exchange, he/she is 
usually entitled to a higher interest rate. One of the most common examples of a term deposit is a 
certificate of deposit.  

 Units Open-end Mutual Funds  Fair value is based on redemption prices as at the close of the business day. 

 Market Treasury Bills Fair values of Treasury Bills are derived using the PKRV rates (Reuters page) 

35.4 Non-financial assets and liabilities 

 The following table shows the Levels within the hierarchy of the non-financial assets measured at fair value on a non-recurring basis at June 30, 
2019 and June 30, 2018. 

 

 Total Level 3

June 30, 2019

Level 2Level 1
Carrying 

value

--------------------------------------------Rupees--------------------------------------------

 Leasehold land  549,999,000   -     -     549,999,000   549,999,000 
 Building  488,680,937   -     -     488,680,937   488,680,937 
    1,038,679,937   -     -     1,038,679,937   1,038,679,937 
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Chairman

-sd- -sd-
Chief Executive Officer

 June 30, 2019  June 30, 2018

38 EMPLOYEES

 Number of employees at the end of the year 458  452 
 
 Average number of employees during the year 454  443 
 
39 DATE OF AUTHORISATION 
 
 These consolidated financial statements were authorised for issue by the Board of Directors in their 209  meeting held on August 29, 2019.

th
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* These are qualification shares given to independent directors pursuant to Company’s Articles of Association.

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
As at June 30, 2019

PATTERN OF SHAREHOLDING 

 No. of Shareholders Shareholdings Total shares held

 04 shareholding from 1 to 100,000 shares * 4

 01 Shareholding from 100,001 to 200,000 shares 150,000

 01 shareholding from 200,001 to 900,000 shares 750,000

 01 shareholding from 900,001 to 1,400,000 shares 974,997

 01 shareholding from 1,400,001 to 2,000,000 shares 1,500,000

 01 shareholding from 2,000,001 to 4,000,000 shares 3,750,000

 01 shareholding from 4,000,001 to 5,000,000 shares 4,124,999

 02 shareholding from 5,000,001 to 7,500,000 shares 15,000,000

 01 shareholding from 7,500,001 to 10,000,000 shares 9,519,000

 01 shareholding from 10,000,001 to 15,000,000 shares 15,000,000

 01 shareholding from 15,000,001 to 20,000,000 shares 17,019,000

 01 Shareholding from 20,000,001 to 25,000,000 shares 22,500,000

 01 shareholding from 25,000,001 to 59,712,000 shares 59,712,000

 17 Total 150,000,000
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Categories of Shareholders Shares held Percentage

Directors, Chief Executive Officer, their spouse and minor children(Note) 4 -

Associated companies, undertakings and related parties  

- Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited 59,712,000 39.81%

- MCB Bank Limited 22,500,000 15.00%

- LSE Financial Services Limited 15,000,000 10.00%

- Pak China Investment Company Limited 7,500,000 5.00%

NIT and IDBL  

- National Investment Trust Limited 9,519,000 6.35%

- Industrial Development Bank Limited 7,500,000 5.00%

Banks/DFIs/NBFIs  

- MCB Bank Limited 22,500,000 15.00%

- Habib Bank Limited 17,019,000 11.35%

- LSE Financial Services Limited 15,000,000 10.00%

- National Investment Trust Limited 9,519,000 6.35%

- Industrial Development Bank Limited 7,500,000 5.00%

- Pak China Investment Company Limited 7,500,000 5.00%

- Allied Bank Limited 1,500,000 1.00%

- Innovative Investment Bank Limited 750,000 0.50%

- ISE Towers REIT Management Company Limited 3,750,000 2.5%

Insurance Companies - -

Modarabas and Mutual Funds - -

Shareholders holding 10% (or more)  

-  Pakistan Stock Exchange Limited 59,712,000 39.81%

- MCB Bank Limited 22,500,000 15.00%

- Habib Bank Limited 17,019,000 11.35%

- LSE Financial Services Limited 15,000,000 10.00%

General Public  

a. Local - -

b. Foreign - -

Others  

- Crescent Steel and Allied Products Limited 4,124,999 2.75%

- IGI Investments (Private) Limited 974,997 0.65%

- Crescent Standard Business Management (Pvt.) Ltd. 150,000 0.10%

Note: These are qualification shares given to independent directors pursuant to Company’s Articles of Association.
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We, _________________________________________________________________________ of ______________________________ 

________________________________________, being a member of Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited (“the 

Company”) holding ________________________________________________________ ordinary shares as per Share Register Folio No. 

____________________________ and / or CDC Account no. ______________________________________________ do hereby appoint 

Mr. _______________________________ or failing him Mr. ______________________________ as our Proxy in our absence to attend and 

vote for us, and on our behalf at the Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on October 15, 2019 or at any adjournment thereof.

As witness my hand this ____________________________ day of ____________________________ 2019 signed by the said.

Notes:

1. A corporation or any other company registered under the Companies Act, 2017/ Companies Ordinance, 1984, where such corporation or such 
other company, is a member of the Company may, by resolution of its directors, authorise any of its officials or any other person to act as its 
authorized representative at the proposed general meeting of the Company, and the person so authorised shall be entitled to exercise the same 
powers on behalf of such corporation or such other company if he was an individual shareholder of the Company.

2. A member of the Company entitled to attend and vote may appoint another member as his / her proxy to attend and vote instead of him / her.

3. The instrument appointing a proxy shall be in writing under the hand of the appointer or of his Attorney duly authorised in writing or if such 
appointer is a corporation under its common seal or the hand of its Attorney.

4. The instrument appointing a proxy and the Power-of-Attorney or other authority (if any), under which it is signed or a notarially certified copy 
of that power or authority alongwith attested CNIC copies or passport of proxy, shall be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company 
not less than forty eight hours before the time of above general meeting of the Company.

Central Depository Company of Pakistan Limited
PROXY FORM

Signature of Appointer

(Name & Designation)

(Revenue stamp of Rs. 5/-)

Specimen signature of proxySpecimen signature of proxy

WITNESS 1:

Signature:

Name:

Designation:

Address:

CNIC No.:

WITNESS 2:

Signature:

Name:

Designation:

Address:

CNIC No.:
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Office
Addresses

registered office:

CDC House, 99-B, Block ‘B’, S.M.C.H.S., Main 
Shahra-e-Faisal, Karachi - 74400.
Tel: (92-21) 111-111-500  
Fax: (92-21) 34326031

Pakistan Stock Exchange 
Branch:

Mezzanine Floor, Pakistan Stock Exchange Building, I.I. 
Chundrigar Road, Karachi.
Tel: (92-21) 32416774   I   Fax: (92-21) 32444491

Lahore Branch:

Mezzanine Floor, South Tower, LSE Plaza, 19 
Khayaban-e-Aiwan-e-Iqbal, Lahore-54000, Pakistan
Tel: (92-42) 36368000-3   I   Fax: (92-42) 36368484-5

Islamabad Branch:

Room # 410, 4th Floor, ISE Towers REIT Management 
Ltd, 55-B, Jinnah Avenue, Blue Area, Islamabad.
Tel: (92-51) 2895456-9   I   Fax: (92-51) 2895454

Email:

info@cdcpak.com

URL: 

www.cdcpakistan.com

Customer Support Services:

0800 – 23275 (CDCPL)

For Overseas Callers:

+92 (21) 34326038

CDCPL

central-depository-company-of-pakistan-limited

cdcofficialpk
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